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Corporate Profile
NG Gb

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”, Hong Kong
stock code: 950) is a research-driven and market-oriented
biopharmaceutical company with more than 25 years of
operation in the pharmaceutical industry in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”).

The Group is fully integrated with solid infrastructures
in drug development, clinical development, regulatory,
manufacturing, sales and marketing based in Mainland
China with global perspectives. The Group has established
extensive partnerships with over 20 international companies
and currently markets 23 proprietary and licensed-in
pharmaceutical products in Mainland China, Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan.

The Group focuses on several key disease areas such as
cardiovascular, woman health, paediatrics, rare diseases,
oncology, ophthalmology, dermatology, obstetrics and
urology. It has more than 60 products under different
development stages stemming from both internal research and
development as well as from the licensing of development,
commercialisation, and manufacturing rights from various
United States, European and Japanese companies.

The Group carries out its sales and distribution activities in
Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Mainland China through Hong
Kong and Taiwan offices and branch offices in Guangzhou,
Shanghai and Beijing with direct and channel sales network
covering most of the provinces and cities in Mainland
China, marketing both domestic self-developed products
and overseas licensed-in products. Zhaoke Pharmaceutical
(Hefei) Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, is
currently operating the manufacturing plant of the Group
located in Hefei, Anhui Province of the PRC, comprising four
GMP-compliant workshops for the production of topical gel,
lyophilised powder for injection, small volume parenteral
solutions and eye gel. Zhaoke Pharmaceutical (Guangzhou)
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, is currently operating
the new manufacturing site in Nansha District, Guangzhou
of the PRC which include a complete range of solid dosage
production lines for the development and manufacturing of
tablets and capsules. Zhaoke (Guangzhou) Ophthalmology
Pharmaceutical Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, is also
operating the new manufacturing facilities for the development
and manufacturing of various types of ophthalmic products in
the Nansha site.
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The mission of the Company is to become a successful
biopharmaceutical group in Asia providing innovative products
to fight diseases and improve health and quality of life.

Currently, the Group has the following products in the market:

Corporate Profile
NCISEY
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Market
W5
Country Mainland Hong
of origin China Kong Macau Taiwan Medical application
R FERE BE -5 AE BERARE
Proprietary products:
ENEm:
* Livaracine® PRC v/ Blood clots and deep vein
thrombosis
* (SLEF)® Y M8 FOR BB AR AR M A%
Yallaferon® PRC v/ Viral infection
(LBER)® R RS RARRE
* Slounase® PRC v/ Hemostasis
* GREB)® aale ol
Eyprotor® PRC v/ Corneal ulcer
(BRE)® Y =ly=t
Licensed-in products:
SlEEM :
* Carnitene® Italy v v/ v Carnitine deficiency
* (Al &Ee)® BAA RIESTHRZ AE
Ferplex® Spain v/ v/ v/ Iron deficiency anemia
CGEEH)® sy HRENEE
* Zanidip® Italy v/ v/ v/ Hypertension
*(BEP)® BAM = M EE
Rasilez® Italy v v/ v Hypertension
(RE® BAA = &
Aloxi® France v Chemotherapy induced nausea
and vomiting
{Aloxi)® EHE LB ER L MR
Sancuso® USA v/ Chemotherapy induced nausea
and vomiting
(EFE)® B LB ER RO MR
Veloderm® Italy v/ Burns and wounds healing
(B%m)® BAM KR EREREE
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Corporate Profile

NCII SRy
Market
W5
Country Mainland Hong
of origin China Kong Macau Taiwan Medical application
Rt HE A it BE - AE BERAR
Gaslon N® Japan v/ Gastric ulcer and gastritis
(EtEE)® B BEBNER
UNIDROX® Italy v/ v Urinary tract infections and
respiratory tract infections
{UNIDROX)® BAM APR38R N WP B R
Levocarnitine oral Italy v/ v/ v Primary and secondary carnitine
solution deficiency
ERETERER EAH JREM R AL RIES TR IE
Mictonorm® Germany v/ Urinary incontinence
(Bimaa)® e PRKZE
Trittico® Italy v/ v/ Insomnia/Depression
(Trittico)® BAM KRR
Episil® Sweden v/ Oral mucositis pain
(REE)® i it ABERBEAKR
Dicoflor® Italy v v/ v Probiotics
{Dicoflor)® BEAA HER
VSL#3® Italy v/ v/ v v/ Probiotics
(vsSL#3)® BEAA BER
Zingo™ Hong Kong v/ v/ Topical local analgesics
(Zingo)™ B BEiEmEE
Omacor® Norway v/ Omega-3-acid ethyl esters
{Omacor)® bk Omega-3 7.5
Readyfusor™ Germany 4 Post-operative pain
management
{Readyfusor)™ =H MEEEER
Generic products:
FREm :
Treprostinil Injection PRC v/ Pulmonary arterial hypertension
HATDERTETR i FEDAK =5 R
e In the National Drug Reimbursement List of the PRC = AP EERERE A
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Revenue Wz
Profit attributable to the owners ZNAGIHEA A (LT
of the Company
Equity attributable to the owners AR A AFEIGEZE
of the Company
Earnings per share BRAEF
Basic £ YN
Diluted e
Dividend per share BRRE
Interim A Hf
Final R EA
Total WA

Dividend payout ratio

P SIRA L

Financial Highlights
B HE

2019 2018 Change
=SSkl —TNF 28
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
1,218,913 1,137,626 +7.1%
418,269 —70.0%
2,295,900 2,210,543 3.9%
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
70.67 —70.0%
70.28 —69.8%
3.4
8.4
11.8 —-52.5%
16.7%
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Financial Highlights
52

REVENUE (HK$’000)

st (F#T)

1,218,913
1,137,626

1,008,522
922,150 929,821

Ye

2017
2018
2019

e

a8

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
(HK$’000)

RARFEAARLER (FET)

2,295,900
2,210,543
1,804,346
1,601,726
1,467,438
N (00] (0)]
— — —
(@] o (@] Year
(q\ N ] ==
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
(HK$’000)

RATEA AR RF (FBT)

418,269

252,002
229,052 232,559

125,553
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— i i
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BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
(HK CENTS)

BREZREF (BL)

70.67
42.79
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Five-Year Financial Summary

IFUBRE

RESULTS 4

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
= -\ —T—+F "F-RF _"FT-10F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET AT TAL TAEL AT

Revenue Wz (L dlsheriel 1,137,626 1,008,522 929,821 922,150
Cost of sales HEMA ((Zoash) (391,255) (326,118)  (261,586)  (273,986)
Gross profit E7 798,256 746,371 682,404 668,235 648,164
Other income Hithz 75,694 52,069 31,756 48,368 12,194
Other gains and losses, net Httam RSB F8 (91,680) 239,156 20,753 (26,771) 9,999
Selling and distribution HERDHEER

expenses (il sl (221,740)  (214,150)  (204,225)  (256,465)
Administrative expenses THER (Zellere)) (188,926) (157,186)  (119,071) (87,625)
Provision for impairment loss B EERERR

on financial assets, net BEEE (73) (6,823) (1,692) (224) (959)
Research and development HERFAZEER

expenses (GRS  (153,171) (85,057) (67,886) (38,883)
Profit from operations R 141,405 466,936 276,828 298,426 286,425
Finance costs BTSRCAR (6,624) (4,710) (4,256) (3,803) (3,040)
Share of results of associates 2 HEA AR EE (11,895) (15,842) (14,944) (12,019) (29,450)
Profit before taxation BT ATR R 122,886 446,384 257,628 282,604 253,935
Taxation IR (59,541) (56,621) (54,689) (50,198) (40,938)
Profit for the year AERHA 63,345 389,763 202,939 232,406 212,997
Attributable to: THI AL -

Owners of the Company ANAEBA 125,553 418,269 232,559 252,002 229,052

Non-controlling interests IR (62,208) (28,506) (29,620) (19,596) (16,055)

63,345 389,763 202,939 232,406 212,997
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFEMBHE
FINANCIAL POSITION B AR
As at 31 December
Rt=A=t-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
= Lo —T-N\§ T+t ZE-RF T-1f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT THL TR THET T
Non-current assets ERBDEE Zdlelbels 2,002,012 1,451,206 1,177,685 1,009,659
Current assets MEBEE AWV YaM 1,004,541 873,318 883,712 841,469
Current liabilities MEBEE (eloslfe)l (676,825)  (431,085)  (358,375)  (281,956)
Net current assets MEBEEFE 532,784 327,716 442,233 525,337 559,513
Non-current liabilities ERBBE (254,310) (91,659) (96,507) (68,306) (52,344)
Net assets BEFE Zniell 2238,069 1,796,932 1,634,716 1,516,828
Equity attributable to the ADAER NEG R
owners of the Company PSR 2,210,543 1,804,346 1,601,726 1,467,438
Non-controlling interests IR ER 181,538 27,526 (7,414) 32,990 49,390
Total equity iR Zbipies 2,238,069 1,796,932 1,634,716 1,516,828
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the
“Company” or “Lee’s Pharm”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) and its board (“Board”) of directors
(“Directors”), | am pleased to present the annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

2019 was one of the more challenging years for the Group
since our inception in 1994. Nevertheless, at Lee’s Pharm, as
always, we work together as one team to weather the ups
and downs.

The start of the year 2019 was full of uncertainty when the
trade war between the United States and China entered its
second year and the deadline of Brexit was fast approaching.
Not only did the global economies had been increasingly
weighed down, Renminbi exchange rate was the one of
the first to bear the brunt and seven-per-dollar, the once-
critical psychological level, was no longer a sacred red line.
Despite modest sales growth achieved, the instability in
exchange rates throughout the year had posed additional
challenges to our profit margin, amid the inflationary pressure
in raw material costs and manufacturing and administrative
overhead.

As for the pharmaceutical sector in China, the Chinese
Government continued to carry out the medical and
healthcare reforms during the year under review.

The implementation of centralised bulk procurement regime,
which was first launched in November 2018 and represented
a potential paradigm shift for business models in the Chinese
pharmaceutical industry, has been further expanded from
11 major cities to nationwide since September 2019. Under
the new regime, many drug makers have been forced to
slash the prices of their off-patent drugs in order to compete
with local generics in the bidding. Nevertheless, this wave
of consolidation in the industry has also highlighted the
prominence of our research and development (“R&D”) efforts,
as the launching of new products to sustain future growth has
become more important than ever.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWRE

Another important milestone for the Chinese healthcare
industry was the new Drug Administration Law (“DAL”)
passed in August 2019 and came into effect on 1 December
2019. Policies included in the new DAL such as the
implementation of the Marketing Authorisation Holder (“MAH")
system, 60-workday deadline for the National Medical
Products Administration (“NMPA”) for the approval of clinical
trial application, and other policies accelerating regulatory
timelines for innovative products are all positive signs for
innovative pharma companies like us.

On the other hand, National Healthcare Security
Administration (“NHSA”) published the 2019 National
Reimbursement Drug List (“2019 NRDL”) in August 2019,
and came into effect on 1 January 2020, aims at improving
the efficiency of using limited medical insurance funds. Under
the 2019 NRDL, our major products are remained therein and
therefore we should expect to maintain a stable revenue on
our existing products over the near to medium term.

We believe it is crucial to bring more new drugs to market at
a faster pace. During the year under review and up to date,
we continued to make solid progress on our pipeline products
including Import Drug License (“IDL”) and Abbreviated
New Drug Application (“ANDA”) submission and new drug
approvals. Save for the recent approval of Treprostinil
Injection by the NMPA in 18 March 2020, to date, we have 4
applications for IDL and 6 applications for ANDA pending for
the review and approval by the Centre for Drug Evaluation (the
“CDE").

Drug development is the key process of bringing a new
pharmaceutical product to the market. During the year under
review, we invested nearly HK$326 million in R&D, including
expensed and capitalised parts, which was equivalent to
26.7% of our annual revenue in 2019, and accelerated our
various ongoing clinical development programs to reach the
destinations.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEERZEA A R A 7]
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Failure is always an unwelcome but necessary force that
shapes the biotech industry and drives innovation. In our
oncology area, we went through difficult times when China
Oncology Focus Limited (“COFL”)’s PHOCUS study failed to
reach the study objective. Nevertheless, we have not relented
and have ploughed on with our various oncology clinical
programs, including our immune oncology product PD-L1
monoclonal antibody. The encouraging results achieved in our
PD-L1 clinical development program, which has been bringing
a gleam of hope to the cervical cancer patients enrolled so
far, has lifted us up.

In our ophthalmology area, administer under China
Ophthalmology Focus Limited (“COPFL”), we have
successfully completed the Phase Il trial of Cyclosporine
A (“CsA”) Ophthalmic Gel for the treatment of dry eye
syndrome (the “DES”) and moved one step forward. In
addition, the registration enabling Phase Ill study of our in-
house developed Adapalene and Clindamycin combination gel
for acne, another project administered by COPFL, has been
completed recently and the study objective has been met
successfully.

With over 30 approved studies in various stages of
development currently in progress, we shall expect more of
our pipeline products being moved towards the harvest stage
which in turn continued to improve the Group’s longer-term
growth potential.

In addition to the traditional direct and channel sales network,
to keep abreast of the times, we have set up “Direct-to-
Patient” business department during the year under review
in order to unlock the potential and create more value from
selected products such as Ferplex® and Yallaferon® via new
distribution channels such as drug stores and third-party
eCommerce portals.

Chairman’s Statement
FERE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWRE

Our manufacturing capabilities in Nansha and Hefei plants
have been well poised. In Nansha site, we have successfully
manufactured batch samples in tablets, capsules and liquid
capsules for Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) applications
In Hefei site, we have also completed the
upgrading of the Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (“APIs”)
facilities.
expanded our manufacturing capabilities from traditional
dosage forms such as eye drop and tablet into specialised

and clinical trials.

In addition, during the year under review, we have

formulations such as Staccato® system that allow deep lung
delivery of drug and oral cytotoxic drug.

Staccato® Fentanyl is a handheld, multi-dose inhaler designed
to generate and deliver excipient-free fentanyl aerosol for
deep lung delivery to treat cancer break through pain, a highly
unmet medical need in China. The drug/device combination is
the first opioid product that has abuse-deterred and overdose-
prevented features built in. We have obtained the approval to
develop and manufacture the product in China by the NMPA.
The manufacture facility is erected in our Nansha site that
including critical processes such as stripe coating of fentanyl.
The clinical study sample has since been produced and test
has shown its conformity to specifications. Investigational
New Drug (“IND”) submission is expected during the second
quarter of 2020. Staccato® system is a drug delivery platform
with broad application, and we intend to leverage on our
know-how on the manufacturing of Staccato® system to
develop additional products.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEERZEA A R A 7]
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We firmly believe that having clarity in pharma business from
biotech entrepreneurship could bring about additional value
to the Group. As a result, we continue to pursue our goal
of separating our oncology and ophthalmology businesses
and incubating into standalone biotech entities. During the
year under review, the nurturing of our ophthalmology R&D
arm, namely COPFL, has gradually taken shape following the
completion of US$50 million raised in June 2019, including but
not limited to the establishment of ophthalmology specialised
scientific advisory board, executive management team and
R&D team. Together with the good progress of its clinical
development programs, COPFL is ready to move on to the
next stage of growth. For our oncology R&D arm, we shall
continue to support its ongoing clinical development programs
and to seek fundraising opportunity when the time is right.

Despite the stock performance of our investment in Windtree
Therapeutics, Inc. (“Windtree”) remained sluggish during
the year under review, we take a longer term view on this
investment. Meanwhile, our development program of a
device-drug combination as a treatment for respiratory
distress syndrome, namely AEROSURF, in China with Windtree
is in good progress. In addition, we have also participated
in the private placement of Windtree together with certain
investors in Asia and the United States in December 2019 for
the purpose to support its initiation of a new clinical study to
evaluate Istaroxime in early cardiogenic shock and the listing
application to list its common stock on the Nasdaq Capital
Market® (“Nasdaq”).
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWRE

Apart from the non-recurring loss incurred from the
discontinuation of the clinical trial of the PHOCUS Study in
oncology field, our core operations remained stable during the
year under review. In return for our shareholders’ support to
the Group, the Board recommended a final dividend of 3.8
HK cents per share. Together with the interim dividend of 1.8
HK cents per share, total annual dividend will be amounted to
5.6 HK cents per share. In addition, we have repurchased the
Company’s shares during the year under review, such amount
is equivalent to approximately 3.3 HK cents per share, with a
view to benefiting shareholders as a whole by enhancing the
earnings per share of the Company.

It was supposedly going to be a good start in 2020 when we
have seen more clarity over Brexit emerged following the
election won by Boris Johnson’s Conservatives, as well as
the phase one U.S.-China trade war deal signed. But all of a
sudden, the outbreak of a novel coronavirus, now officially
named as COVID-19, since January 2020 and now become a
pandemic has created great uncertainty for global economy
and our business operations in mainland China have been
unavoidably affected to a certain extent. Despite the situation,
our financial position remains solid and business fundamental
remains sound. We shall continue to monitor the further
development of the pandemic and market conditions as well as
the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group as a result.

Looking ahead, we are cautiously optimistic as we shall have
more competent products to be launched in 2020, such as
Treprostinil Injection, to drive revenue growth. The approval
and launch of a myriad of products in the next couple of years
will usher the Group into an exciting and accelerated growth
era and transcend the Group into one of the leading specialty
pharma companies in China.
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Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to thank to the
Board, all our business partners, management and every
member of staff for their continual support. We will spare no
effort to seek new growth opportunities and to enhance our
shareholders’ value.

Lee Siu Fong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRON

BUSINESS REVIEW

Given the backdrop of the volatile global macro environment,
2019 was the year not without its challenges.

The large population in China and the relatively low healthcare
spending as a portion of its gross domestic product (“GDP”)
have been continuing to provide the huge growth potential
to the pharmaceutical industry, which has also enabled the
Group to maintain a modest revenue growth during the year
under review. Nevertheless, the trade tension between the
U.S. and China as well as the Brexit uncertainty created
instability in global economy which in turn affected the world’s
currency, and unavoidably put the value of Renminbi under
pressure. Together with raw material costs, manufacturing
costs, and administrative overhead continued to run high
and inflation persisted in China, tough commercial conditions
remained throughout the year under review.

From the policy and regulatory perspective, Chinese
government continued to reshape and balance the affordability
and innovation in the industry. During the year under review,
the centralised bulk procurement program has been expanded
across the country which aim at reducing the cost of generic
products. Meanwhile, the new Drug Administrative Law has
brought many new rules and practices, such as Marketing
Authorisation Holder (“MAH”) system and 60-workday
deadline for the National Medical Products Administration
(“NMPA”) for the approval of clinical trial application, which
focus on the acceleration of the time-to-market of new
products. In addition, the new 2019 National Reimbursement
Drug List (“2019 NRDL”) that has been published by National
Healthcare Security Administration (“NHSA”) highlights the
government’s effort to support innovation that addresses
highly unmet medical needs such as rare disease and
malignancy. The Group sees these positive reforms have
gradually creating a better environment which encourages its
innovation especially for the drugs that address highly unmet
medical needs, areas where the Group has committed its
research and development (“R&D”) resources.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Despite the challenging global macroeconomic and domestic
pharmaceutical market environment in 2019, the Group
continued to make progress and delivered modest revenue
growth. Together with the acceleration in R&D and the
upgrade of manufacturing capabilities, the Group has been
reshaped into a more efficient organisation with higher growth
potential.

Revenue and Profit

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue increased
by 7.1% from HK$1,137,626,000 to HK$1,218,913,000
from the sales of pharmaceutical products. Major six
products contributed 93.1% of revenue in 2019, decrease
by 0.9 percentage points as compared to that of in 2018.
Sales of licensed-in products was HK$683,286,000 (2018:
HK$618,069,000) and accounted for 56.1% (2018: 54.3%) of
the Group’s revenue while sales of proprietary products was
HK$535,627,000 (2018: HK$519,557,000) and contributed
43.9% (2018: 45.7%) of the Group’s revenue.

Revenue of licensed-in products sustained double digit growth
for another year. Ferplex®, Zanidip® and Remodulin® achieved
decent revenue growth of 22.0%, 23.8% and 19.7%,
respectively, while that of Carnitene® remained flat during the
year. The Group has recorded revenue growth of 10.6% from
its licensed-in products in 2019, decreased by 2.9 percentage
points as compared to that of in 2018.

Revenue growths of proprietary products were mixed in
2019. Yallaferon® achieved another year of robusting growth
in its revenue of 35.3% and surpassed the HK$150 million
mark for the first time. However, overall revenue growth has
been dragged down by the underperformance of Livaracine®
and Slounase® during the year under review. The Group
has recorded a modest revenue growth of 3.1% from its
proprietary products in 2019, decreased by 8.8 percentage
points as compared to that of in 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE ST am o

Overall gross profit margin was held at 65.5% in 2019,
declined by 0.1 percentage point from 65.6% in 2018. Amid
inflationary pressures on production costs especially material
costs, such adverse impacts were largely mitigated by
cost containment and productivity enhancement measures
which enabled the Group to maintain stable gross margin
level throughout the year under review. In addition, the
Group’s R&D in new drugs remains at full throttle and
HK$325,985,000 was spent in R&D activities during 2019
(2018: HK$290,177,000), representing 26.7% (2018:
25.5%) to the corresponding yearly revenue, which is
among the highest in domestic pharmaceutical companies.
Among which HK$149,945,000 (2018: HK$153,171,000) has
been recognised as expenses and HK$176,040,000 (2018:
HK$137,006,000) has been capitalised as intangible assets.

The Group continued to transform its sales team and
streamline its sales and marketing efficiency in 2019.
Nevertheless, with new products coming onto the markets,
the Group has deployed more resources for the newly
launched products during the year under review and the
selling expenses to revenue ratio has increased to 20.7%
(2018: 19.5%).

Combined with the full impairment of the R&D costs amounted
to HK$108,564,000 by China Oncology Focus Limited
(“COFL"), a 65% owned subsidiary of the Group, in relations
to the Pexa-Vec global Phase Ill clinical trial for advanced
liver cancer (the “PHOCUS Study”) previously capitalised
has been made during the second quarter of the year under
review, net profit attributable to the owners of the Company
was HK$125,553,000 (2018: HK$418,269,000), decrease
by 70.0% as compared to that of in 2018, and recorded net
profit margin of 10.3% (2018: 36.8%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Manufacturing Facilities and Production
Capability

During the year under review, the Group continued to
enhance the production capability in both Nansha and Hefei
sites and achieved substantial progress. In Nansha site,
batch samples such as Apremilast tablets, Zotiraciclib (TG02)
capsules, Gimatecan liquid capsules, Mictonorm® capsules
and Epinastine tablets have been manufactured for GMP
application and clinical trials. Besides, the manufacturing of
Tecarfarin tablet batch samples for GMP application and clinical
trials is actively moving forward in good progress. Moreover,
the transfer of Aliskiren manufacturing technology has been
completed and batch samples have been manufactured and
submitted for GMP application. In Hefei site, the upgrading of
facilities for APIs such as Nadroparin calcium (HSgEfT=45) has
been completed. In addition, the Group had erected three new
manufacturing facilities in the Nansha premise. The Staccato®
fentanyl facility involves sophisticated thin coating process
with precision control. The stainless steel strip is cut and
welded in situs and the drug fentanyl is coated on the strip to
complete the building of drug cassette. As Staccato® fentanyl
is a drug/device combination, the device part is assembled
and tested in house. The device will enable Staccato® fentanyl
to be the only opioid drug with truly abused-deterrent and
overdosed-prevention features built in. Clinical sample has
been successfully produced in the Staccato® fentanyl facility
and Investigational New Drug (“IND”) is expected to be filed
in June 2020. The other two new facilities are the plants for
oral cytotoxic drugs and for continuous glucose monitor, a
medical device, respectively. Equipment installation is ongoing
in both facilities and full commission is expected during the
second quarter of 2020.
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Drug Development

The Group’s pipeline includes 58 projects from early- to
late-stage development in various therapeutic areas and
measurable progress has been made during the year under
review and up to date.

During the year under review and up to date, the Group’s
applications for Import Drug License (“IDL”), namely
Trazodone®, Prulifloxacin, INOMax® and Zingo®, are under
review by the Centre for Drug Evaluation (the “CDE”). The
Group’s applications for Abbreviated New Drug Application
(“ANDA”), namely Sodium Phenylbutyrate Tablet, Sodium
Phenylbutyrate Granule, Treprostinil Injection, Fondaparinux,
Nadroparin Calcium, Azilsartan and Bimatoprost ( & == A 7l
% )@ R /R ), were also in good progress. Among these ANDA
submissions, Fondaparinux is in the final technical review and
is pending for ANDA approval. Supplement data for Sodium
Phenylbutyrate Granule and Sodium Phenylbutyrate Tablet
has been requested by CDE and will be submitted soon.
The bioequivalence studies of Nadroparin Calcium has been
completed with success and the technical review is underway.
Azilsartan and Bimatoprost are currently under review by the
CDE. For Treprostinil Injection, the Group has received the
final approval from the NMPA on 18 March 2020.

In addition, the Group is also actively introducing and
developing other products such as Apremilast, Leuprorelin,
and Natulan® which aim at optimising its product mix in the
medium term.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Oncology

There are 10 oncology assets, including 5 innovative and 5
generic, administered under COFL and in development for the
treatment of a range of cancers.

In August 2019, the PHOCUS Study eventually ended in
vain after its interim results has suggested that the PHOCUS
Study was unlikely to meet the primary objective by the
time of the final analysis. As a result, full impairment of
the R&D costs amounted to HK$108,564,000 in relations to
the PHOCUS Study previously capitalised has been made,
and net profit attributable to the owners of the Company
has been negatively impacted thereby for the first half of
2019. Emerging from the failure of the PHOCUS Study of the
Group’s oncology R&D arm, COFL has conducted a pre-IND
meeting with the CDE for the combination Phase Ib/I1l trial of
ZKABOO1 and Pexa-Vec to treat melanoma and has reached
an agreement for the IND application with sufficient scientific
basis.

Nevertheless, the clinical studies for ZKABOO1 (PD-L1)
have made good progress in the during the year under
review and up to date, particularly the study of ZKABOO1
monotherapy in recurrent and metastatic cervical cancer.
The trial for cervical cancer is led by Doctor Lingying Wu as
the principal investigator. The trial consists of two phases, a
traditional open labeled 3+3 dose escalation phase followed
by an expansion phase. During the dose escalation phase, 3
doses, 5mg/kg, 10mg/kg, 15mg/kg, was tested with 14 days
administration cycle in patients with recurrent and metastatic
cervical cancer, and 5mg/kg was selected for the expansion
phase.
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So far the outcome of the expanded registration enabling
clinical study of ZKABOO1 for cervical cancer has been very
encouraging. To date, all 60 patients have been enrolled
of whom 36 patients have had at least one radiographic
response evaluation. Among those evaluated patients, 2 of
whom had complete response (CR) and 8 of whom had partial
response (PR), which indicated an implied Objective Response
Rate (“ORR”) of 27.7% among the evaluated patients.
Together with 15 out of the 36 evaluated patients had stable
disease (SD), which indicated a disease control rate of 69.4%.
With reference to a similar study of Pembrolizumab under
Keynote-158 conducted by Merck and Co., Inc. in the United
States in 2018, 98 patients were enrolled with an ORR of
12.2%, and in turn Pembrolizumab has successfully obtained
approval for patients with recurrent and metastatic cervical
cancer from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration using the
results thereof. The application to the NMPA shall be made
in 2020 if the results are able to continue with such positive
consistency which could lead to conditional approval of
ZKABOOL1 for this indication.

To date, two other Phase | clinical trials for ZKABOO1 in
urothelial cancer and sarcoma have been completed. Based
on the results thereof, a pivotal Phase 11l study of ZKABOO1
in combination with chemotherapy for the first line treatment
of urothelial cancer and a pivotal Phase 11l study of ZKABOO1
monotherapy for maintenance stage of sarcoma after its first
line treatment (to compare the event-free survival (EFS)) will
be initiated in 2020.
or being prepared for other solid tumors such as ovarian
cancer,

In addition, several studies are ongoing

glioblastoma and melanoma for other oncology
products such as TG02, Gimatecan and Pexa-Vec.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEERZEA A R A 7]

BAl  BAGEMEEFEZKABOOLAI AR S
BREOBKRAR  BERSAFE-INEMA
IF 60 BEEEEAL  HP36UBEE
BITEDLB RS R R EFTE - ZFTE
BEFBED TREMR (TEER) R8I
BEDE %ﬁ%ﬂ*ﬁ DERR) - ERPBEFMT
HHEER  BENFHERE(|EHEMR
$J>z%27.7%o ERZ6M BT HBEFRHLS
HRIBEBE  BRERZESEE69.4% °

28 Merck and Co., Inc. R=—ZT— \FEIR
& Keynote-158 £ & B 3 17 B Bk i & 41

HAELITE - BENIBREERHEMRR A
12.2% © At - RGBT LERE KM

EESEERMEREEEERIE  WARE
BUMREBRETERES - WEREBERELE
E— B Hﬁ—JEA—Y—?Eﬁ.%Eﬁk%ﬁ
B A] BE RS B IR (i ZKABOOLTE 1L 48
FETERRER o

B Al A E © ZKABOO17E [R 8 E R & & A
B SINREIHERRABRELETK - BRER
B4R - ZKABOOL B4t B BiE & ¥ PR 3§ L K2
B AENBEREINBHRER —E8EE
ZKABOO1 & — X AN B R # 5 A8 (PALL R
MmEMFEEFS)) MBERIEINERRFTER =

T _TEFA o UhS - STHEMERB(HIN
WEE MERRERB)NEGBERESER

(12nTGO2 - & B % MPexa-Vec) (5L 1IE
FEEITHRIEEERER -



Management Discussion and Analysis

Ophthalmology

There are 15 ophthalmology assets, including 5 innovative and
10 generic, administered under China Ophthalmology Focus
Limited (“COPFL”) and aim at developing for the treatment of
full range of ophthalmic diseases.

During the year under review and to date, COPFL has
successfully completed a Phase 11 trial of Cyclosporine
A (“CsA”) Ophthalmic Gel for the treatment of dry eye
syndrome (the “DES”) in China (clinicaltrials.gov registration
No.: NCT03676335), with the topline data show that the
experimental drug has similar or a trend towards better
efficacy than that of the marketed CsA Ophthalmic Emulsion.
COPFL plans to meet with the CDE to discuss and agree upon
The
pivotal study is expected to initiate patient recruitment in
early 2020.

a Phase |1l protocol of the CsA Ophthalmic Gel trial.

Dermatology

In addition, the registration enabling Phase Ill study of
the Group’s in-house product, Adapalene and Clindamycin
combination gel for acne, which is currently administered
by COPFL and is led by Professor Gu Heng from the Hospital
for Skin Diseases, Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences and
involved 28 dermatology centers in China has successfully
completed patient enrollment of 1,617 patients. Following the
treatment of the last patient that in early February 2020, the
readout of the topline data will be made available and New
Drug Application submission is expected during the first half
of 2020.

International Partnership

In-licensing strategy is the Group’s preferred mode of its
business development. However, in view of the overall
number of clinical trial programs has grown substantially
in recent years, the Group has become more selective in
entering into new deals. During the year under review and
up to date, the Group has been reviewing various projects,
especially in specialty areas in ophthalmology, but has not yet

concluded any deal.
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Strategic Investments

On 2 April 2019, the Company made an investment of
US$200,000 (approximately HK$1,560,000 equivalent) in the
convertible debt issued by RegeneRx Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.
(OTCQB: RGRX) (“RegeneRx”) to support its accelerating
development of RGN-259 for ophthalmic indications in which
the Group had licensed RGN-259 in the territories of China,
Taiwan, Macau and Hong Kong many years ago. In May 2019,
RegeneRx enrolled the first patient for ARISE-3, the third Phase
11 clinical trial to evaluate RGN-259, a sterile, preservative-
free eye drop in 700 patients with DES. This trial conducted
by RegeneRx is expected to be completed during mid-2020
and the Group will commence the registration enabling studies
of RGN-259 in China thereafter.

On 6 December 2019, the Company has participated in the
private placement of Windtree Therapeutics, Inc. (OTCQB:
WINT) together with certain investors in Asia and the United
States and made an investment of US$5,000,000 therein for
the purpose to support its initiation of a new clinical study to
evaluate Istaroxime in early cardiogenic shock and its listing
application to list its common stock on the Nasdaq Capital
Market®.

Corporate Development

The Group’s commitment to separate its R&D arms and to
incubate them into standalone biotech entities has reported
initial success. In May 2019, the Group has completed a
fundraising event for COPFL amounted to US$50,000,000
(approximately HK$390,000,000 equivalent) from a good
set of renowned investors by mean of the issuance of Series
A Preferred Shares thereto which enabled COPFL to build an
ophthalmology specific scientific advisory board, executive
management team and R&D team, and to bring its clinical
trial programs moving forward at full throttle.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Before the completion of the Series A Shares Subscription
Agreement (the “Completion™), the Group owned 92% of the
interest in COPFL. Upon the Completion on 13 June 2019, the
Group’s equity interest in COPFL was reduced to 50.117% of
the total issued share capital thereof (on as an enlarged basis
by taking into account the issuance of the Series A Preferred
Shares on an as if converted basis), and remains an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

In addition, the Group’s commitment to R&D has also brought
the number one ranking in the “Most Innovative Small and
Medium-sized Pharmaceutical Enterprises Award on the Asia
Pacific Region 2019” by Clarivate Analytics, a digital health
intelligence solution provider during the year under review.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Net Profit Attributable to the
Owners of the Company

The Group’s revenue increased year-on-year by
HK$81,287,000 or 7.1%, from HK$1,137,626,000 in 2018
to HK$1,218,913,000 in 2019. During the year, the sales

B E R am M

REKARTIRMD RERZE (TR ZAT - &
SEE B COPFL 92% Mz - RZZT—NF
NAT=HEXE - A& ERCOPFLAI IR
DLEHEBEBEITRABEE 250.117% (K5 Rz
BREBIREEMBEITZARYIELROEEXR
DE/TRA) - BHCOPFLI AALE 2 Ik
2EMB AT -

BEAN - AEBEME T mAEAEEEE —F
—NEDARRREFT TN BB [P
HRE— - 2B RRE AT RMH
FERRI B LN O EFE AR -

Bt %% B e
Woaz R 1 a] B A SELAF
AN & B Y% % F i 50 81,287,000 7 JT 5k

7.1% ' B=Z—/\%1,137,626,000/# T 1%
E=F—N%1,218,913,0008 T - RAFE

of proprietary products increased by 3.1% and the sales of R @ BEF|ERMBEEIERS3.1% @ Mol EER
licensed-in products increased by 10.6%. R$H & AI18R10.6% °
2018 Change
—E-N\F &
HK$’000
Revenue Wz FAT
Proprietary products BHEMR 519,557 +3.1%
Licensed-in products SI#EE MR 618,069 +10.6%
Total #Et 1,137,626 +7.1%

Net profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased
by 70.0% from HK$418,269,000 in 2018 to HK$125,553,000
in 2019.

RAREE ABEAFFHAL70.0% A=
— )\ 418,269,000/ 7T ' JBE _ZT—NF
#9125,553,000/8 T °
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Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin for the financial year 2019 was 65.5%,
decreased by 0.1 percentage point as compared with year
2018.

Other Income

Other income for the financial year 2019 was HK$75,694,000,
increased by HK$23,625,000 as compared with the
corresponding period of the prior year. Other income during
the year included certain one-off items such as development
grants from local government and research and development
service income.

Other Gains and Losses, Net

Other gains and losses recorded a net loss of HK$91,680,000
for the fiscal year 2019 which was mainly attributable to the
impairment loss on intangible assets of HK$117,652,000.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Due to the Group’s increased sales and marketing efforts
on pre-launch and newly launched products, selling and
distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December 2019
increased by 13.5% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year to HK$251,759,000, accounting for 20.7%
of the Group’s revenue, increased by 1.2 percentage points as
compared with 19.5% that of in the prior year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2019 increased by HK$50,162,000 as compared with the
corresponding period of last year to HK$239,088,000. This
accounted for 19.6% of the Group’s revenue during the
year under review, increased by 3.0 percentage points as
compared with that of 2018. The increase in administrative
expenses was in line with the Group’s ongoing business
expansion in its Nansha site.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEERZEA A R A 7]

EFE

—E-NFYPRFE 2 EFEE65.5% @ H—
ZT—N\FEE - BL0.1EES 2 -

Atttz

TE-NAFHBRFEZEMKE R
75,694,000 & T - & £ F [\ H 12 0
23,625,000/ 7T - AFEHMP R BIEE T
—RMEIEE - HIa0E 1R AT 5 3 4 Bh R A 2 AR
A o

Btz RE#EFHE

RZZE—NFURFE @ HtakEBEEE
91,680,000/ T # 618 TEHREFEE
B ET18117,652,000/8 AT EL ©

HERTHEH

HRAEEMAETER M RINEMERMNIHE
REHENE HMEE-_T—NAF+_A=+—
AEFEZHERDHERAREZFRBER
13.5% £ 251,759,000/% 7T © 15 A5 B Uk =
20.7% ' RAEFFAHIAI19.5%E 11 T 1.2(EH

DE ©

1TB &

HE-_Z—NWF+-ZA=+—HIEFEZTT
BER - WAFRHEIN50,162,000/8 T2
239,088,000 7T * 14 4~ £ (= [B] B8 F [& W
#19.6% © =T — \FHELLIEIN3.01H 8 5
Bh o ITHE R IR E ) A E A A HF
BERMBTE °



Management Discussion and Analysis

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses for the year ended
31 December 2019 decreased by HK$3,226,000 as
compared with the corresponding period of the prior year to
HK$149,945,000, accounted for 12.3% of the Group’s revenue
during the year under review, decreased by 1.2 percentage
points as compared with 13.5% that of in the prior year.
Together with the capitalised research and development costs
of HK$176,040,000 (2018: HK$137,006,000), the amount
spent in research and development activities during the year
was HK$325,985,000, increased by HK$35,808,000 or 12.3%
as compared with the corresponding period of the prior year.

Taxation

The income tax expense for the year ended 31 December
2019 increased by HK$2,920,000 as compared with the
corresponding period of the prior year to HK$59,541,000. The
Group’s effective tax rate was approximately 48.5% during
the year under review, increased by 35.8 percentage points as
compared with 12.7% for the prior year. Certain impairment
losses on intangible asset with no tax impact led to the
significant increase in effective rate in current year.

Investments Held

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s investment portfolio
amounted to approximately HK$689,940,000 (31 December
2018: HK$670,400,000) as recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position under various categories
including:

— interests in associates which are accounted for by using
equity method;

— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”); and

- financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”).

Changes in respective items in the consolidated statement
of financial position have been disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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B E & am Mo

Details of the significant investments in the portfolio under R-Z—hF+-_A=+—BHNHKEERT
financial assets as at 31 December 2019 are as follows: REHENERNREFTHOT ¢
Approximate
percentage to Changes in
Approximate the Group’s fair value
investment Fair Value audited total during the
cost as at as at assets as at year 2019
31 December 31 December 31 December Increase
Description of investment 2019 2019 2019 (Decrease)
r&E
RZB-NF
RZZB-nF R-ZF-nF t=A=t-H “B-NFR
+=A=1+-H +-A=1+-H NEEVEERE NATESE
REFE HBARERE NAYE BRBEDL BMED)
Windtree Therapeutics Inc. (Note 1) HK$446,258,000 HK$468,048,000 12.9% (HK$54,160,000)
Windtree Therapeutics Inc.(#1) 446,258,000/ 7T 468,048,000/ 12.9% (54,160,000 1T)
Other financial assets at FVTOCI (Note 2) HK$173,244,000 HK$146,873,000 4.0% HK$8,863,000
At A HEERA G 2EKRSIRNH B EE(HE2) 173,244,000 146,873,000 4.0% 8,863,000/ 7T
Total financial assets at FVTOCI HK$619,502,000 HK$614,921,000 16.9% (HK$45,297,000)
BATEERAMPAKRIIRNH B EELE 619,502,000 614,921,000 16.9% (45,297,000/7T)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Note 2) HK$12,561,000  HK$59,217,000 16%  (HK$4,705,000)
BATEEBRRRIIRNTEEE(HE2) 12,561,000/ 59,217,0007%7T 1.6% (4,705,000/7T)
Total financial assets HK$632,063,000 HK$674,138,000 18.5% (HK$50,002,000)
HBEELEE 632,063,000/ 7T 674,138,000/ 7T 18.5% (50,002,000 1T)
Note 1: Windtree Therapeutics Inc. is a clinical-stage, i1 : Windtree Therapeutics Inc. & — i i&
biopharmaceutical and medical device company and is IRFEER - AR ERBERMAR - H
principally engaged in the development of novel therapeutics TEREHBENRAE  FERCEE
intended to address significant unmet medical needs SEEETSPARGINRENERER
in important acute care markets, and the development FX RBEEAFESHESMLOE
programs are primarily focused in the treatment of acute R EERBEAE - REBRKFHRA
cardiovascular and pulmonary diseases. The Group held B 5 & Windtree Therapeutics Inc. #
14,119,099 shares of common stock of Windtree Therapeutics 14,119,099 i% & i@ % - %15 Windtree
Inc., representing approximately 34.4% of the total issued Therapeutics Inc. E % 77 % 15 42 £l &
shares of Windtree Therapeutics Inc. as at the date of this 34.4% > REIEFE « N5 @I KU E
annual report. During the year under review, the Group did £ fa] 7k & Windtree Therapeutics Inc.
not receive any dividend income from Windtree Therapeutics WREBA - AEBREENAES
Inc. The Group takes a longer term view on this investment as BZIE®RE B RAKEEHEWindtree
there are clinical development propgrams in which the Group Therapeutics Inc. F 2[R 87 ERIR F 3
and Windtree Therapeutics Inc. are working together and in SIS RAFER ©
good progress.
Note 2: None of the carrying amount of each of the financial assets [fiif2: R-ZE—hF+-_A=+—H HF KA

therein constitutes 5% or more of the Group’s total assets as

at 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group will closely monitor the performance of its
investment portfolio and will continue to invest strategically,
and will explore opportunities in monetising some of the
existing investments if appropriate opportunities in the market
arise.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
significant investment as at 31 December 2019.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s principal sources of working capital in the current
year mainly included cash flow from operating activities, bank
borrowings and the proceeds from the issue and sale of series
A preferred share of COPFL.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s current ratio (current
assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.59 (2018: 1.48).
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net cash position of
HK$670,641,000 (2018: net cash of HK$346,884,000) which
represented by below:

B E R am M

AEERENEREKREMAGNERE - #EE
TTREEMERE - Y EEMHHRBEEREE
SREHIREREEE LS -

B EXFEREEN  AEER_T-hF+=
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REEB7IVERE  RITEE AR 3EIT M
ECOPFLMARSIB LI FTSFIA ©

—E-AFE+-A=+—8 KEEH
MBLE(RBHEERURBERZ) £1.59
B(ZE—N\F :148F) NZE—HE
+TZA=FT—H8  AEENBESFENRRE
670,641,000 L( —ZE— N\F : RE& F5
346,884,000/87T) + HI AR

Q

2018

—EF-)\F

HK$’000

Net cash position REFERR FHIT

Cash and bank balances Re RIRTT4E 5 222,296

Pledged bank deposits DIEMIRITIER 46,524

Time deposits TE BT 207,298
Less: Short term bank and B AR REMEE

other borrowings (129,234)

346,884

The calculation of Group’s gearing ratio based on the net
borrowings (after deducting cash and bank balances) to equity
attributable to the owners of the Company was nil as at 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Taking into consideration the existing financial resources
available to the Group, it is believed that the Group should
have adequate financial resources to meet its operation and
development requirements in the future.

AEBEAMEEFHENGRRE RRITHER) A
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Hrfi H—JLnFFEI& Tﬁ

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its
treasury policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure to
credit risk by performing ongoing credit evaluations of the
financial conditions of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its funding

requirements.
Foreign Exchange Exposure

Currently, the Group earns revenue and incurs costs
in Renminbi,
Japanese Yen, New Taiwan dollars and United States
dollars. The Directors believe that the Group does not have
foreign exchange problems in meeting its foreign exchange
requirements. The Group will continue to monitor closely its

Hong Kong dollars, European Union euro,

foreign currency exposure and to consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure when necessary.

Pledge of Assets

Details of the pledge of assets of the Group as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 48 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Group as at 31

December 2019 are set out in note 49 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 1,308 (2018:
1,028) employees working in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Taiwan.

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of individual employees and based on the
trends of salaries in various regions, which will be reviewed
regularly every year. Apart from provident fund scheme,
retirement benefit scheme and medical insurance, employees
share options may also award to employees according to the
assessment of individual performance.

PROSPECT

With the macroeconomic and geopolitical environment
getting increasingly volatile and complicated which may bring
up inflationary and foreign currency issues, together with
the recent coronavirus outbreak which could last for some
time, 2020 will be the most challenging year that the Group
has ever faced before. Nevertheless, the Group remains
confident that its investment and commitment to new drug
development, sales organisation reform and expansion,
and cost containment will eventually make the difference,
chartering the Group to a new growth path.

In 2020, the upcoming new products, including the newly
approved Treprostinil Injection, as well as the redesigned
30g Yallaferon® and 4-vial box Ferplex® via new distribution
channels, may enable the Group to unlock the potential and
create more value. Together with 10 IDLs and ANDAs pending
for approval by the NMPA in the foreseeable future, the Group
will eventually drive strong and sustainable growth for the
future and create value for the shareholders.
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Directors and Key Personnel Profiles

EENRTEAEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lee Siu Fong
Chairman, aged 63

Ms. Lee Siu Fong joined the Group in April 1997 and has since
been responsible for the Group’s financial affairs. She is an
entrepreneur and had since 1992 established and run several
companies with primary responsibility in financial affairs. She is
the sister of Ms. Leelalertsuphakun Wanee and Dr. Li Xiaoyi.

Leelalertsuphakun Wanee

Managing Director, Chief Marketing & Sales Officer &
member of remuneration committee, aged 66

Ms. Leelalertsuphakun Wanee joined the Group in April 1997.
She was appointed the Chief Marketing & Sales Officer in
September 2003 and has been responsible for the Group’s
sales and marketing activities since then. She is the sister of
Ms. Lee Siu Fong and Dr. Li Xiaoyi.

Li Xiaoyi

Chief Executive Officer & Chief Technical Officer, aged
57, PhD

Dr. Li Xiaoyi holds a PhD in Pharmacology from the University
of lllinois at Chicago and was a postdoctoral fellow with
Parke-Davis Research Division of Warner-Lambert company
in the United States. He is an Honourary Fellow and Adjunct
Professor at the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He was appointed as a member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Anhui Province
in China in January 2018. He is the founder of the Group and
has been responsible for the daily operations and research
and development of the Group since 1994. He is the brother
of Ms. Lee Siu Fong and Ms. Leelalertsuphakun Wanee.
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Directors and Key Personnel Profiles

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Simon Miles Ball

Aged 41

Mr. Simon Miles Ball joined the Board on 29 December 2017.
He has more than 18 years of business and management
experience within the pharmaceutical industry. He is currently
the managing director of SMB Capital Limited, an advisory
practice operating across the life science sectors. He also
sits on the board of directors of Exelead Inc., a contract and
development manufacturing business. Previously he served
in a variety of operational and director positions at Leadiant
Biosciences Ltd and prior to that held regional roles with
broad transactional responsibility at several multinational
pharmaceutical companies. In addition, he is also a consultant
of Qualister S.A., a substantial shareholder of the Company.
He obtained his degree in physiology from the University of
Leeds. Save as the above, he does not have any relationship
with any Director, substantial shareholder or controlling
shareholder of the Company.
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Directors and Key Personnel Profiles
EENTEABER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Chan Yau Ching, Bob

Chairman of audit committee & member of
remuneration committee, aged 57, PhD, MBA, BBA, CFA,
MHKSI

Dr. Chan Yau Ching, Bob joined the independent Board on 14
January 2002. Dr. Chan has extensive experience in corporate
development and financial management of high-growth
companies. He had been a finance professor, researcher
and consultant. He had also served directorship at various
listed and privately held companies in Hong Kong and in the
United States. Currently, he is the managing director of KBR
Capital Limited, a company engaged in advising clients on
management and investment activities in China and Hong
Kong. He is the independent non-executive director of China
High Speed Transmission Equipment Group Co., Ltd. and
Daisho Microline Holdings Limited, which are listed companies
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Hangzhou Huaxing Chuangye Communication Technology
Co., Ltd., which is a listed company on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. He does not have any relationship with any
Director, substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of
the Company.
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Directors and Key Personnel Profiles

Lam Yat Cheong

Member of audit committee, aged 58, CPA (Practising),
FCCA, BBA

Mr. Lam Yat Cheong joined the independent Board on 1 July
2004. Mr. Lam is a sole proprietor of an audit firm and has
over 30 years of auditing and accounting experience. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He had also served directorship at various listed
companies in Hong Kong. He does not have any relationship
with any Director, substantial shareholder or controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Tsim Wah Keung, Karl

Chairman of remuneration committee and member of
audit committee, aged 61, PhD, MPhil, BSc

Dr. Tsim Wah Keung, Karl joined the independent Board on
20 September 2004. He currently serves as Chair Professor
of Life Science at the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree and a
Master degree in Biochemistry from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong, and a Doctorate in Molecular Neurobiology from
the University of Cambridge. He has published numerous
articles in biological sciences and traditional Chinese
medicines. He also serves in several local committees in
advising the development of traditional Chinese medicine
as health food products. He does not have any relationship
with any Director, substantial shareholder or controlling
shareholder of the Company.
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Directors and Key Personnel Profiles
EENTEABER

KEY PERSONNEL

Chow Yiu Ming

Group Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary,
aged 46

Mr. Chow Yiu Ming joined the Company in October 2014
and is responsible for the accounting and corporate finance
functions of the Group. He has over 23 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, financial management and corporate
finance. Prior to joining the Company, he had held several
senior positions with listed and private companies in Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree, majoring in Accounting and
Finance, from the University of Hong Kong and a Master
of Science in Professional Accountancy degree from the
University of London. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Fortune Sun (China) Holdings Limited which is a
listed company on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Jiao Zhongyu

Chief Officer of Enterprise Development Department of
the Group, aged 50

Mr. Jiao Zhongyu is responsible for the government affair and
legal affairs of the Group in the PRC. He was appointed as the
legal adviser of PRC investment by the Group in 1999 in his
capacity as a practising lawyer in PRC. He has been appointed
as the director of Zhaoke Pharmaceutical (Hefei) Company
Limited (“Zhaoke Hefei”) since 2010 and has extensive
experience in the government affair and legal affairs. In
2012, the Group established the Enterprise Development
Department and he has been appointed as the Chief Officer
thereof and responsible for the Group’s strategic planning and
development.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEERZEA A R A 7]

FEAE
0

EEIKHAER NRWE © 465k

FRAXER T —ME+ AMAKRRT - &
AEASEZ gt REEMHREE  REst &
% MBERENMECERETEEAA _—_T=F
BAEER - EMBEARRFR - RERBE SR L
MRILARREETERE - RARBEFLARE
AEIAEERER  BESHMASEENURK
BREEEREREE - RRHABTERBEEK
ZIMEESLTENT - Tt hPK A
ERBABEXRGHERBRLTENT - RITR
B (PBE)ZERARAR(—EREEBS X
ZRAR AT ER EWRE) OB IEMTT
BE=x-

KfpF

EETERREIMEE 505

RRFEEABRAKEEFTBNBRFER A
o RN —NNANFUTBERREME DER
AEEETRRECEAEZER - KR _-F
—SFERERNMEZ(AR)ERAT(ENE
BNDER  EBRRSHAREHE I AEEE
BB - AKER_ZE-_FRIUCEER
2B RHEAAEY A B EEERE LB RM
BETEIE-



Directors and Key Personnel Profiles

Lau Lit-Fui

Chief Operating Officer of China Ophthalmology
Focus Limited and President of Zhaoke (Guangzhou)
Ophthalmology Pharmaceutical Limited, aged 57, PhD

Dr. Lau Lit-Fui holds the PhD from the University of
Connecticut Health Center. Before joining the Group, he
had served as the associate director for the American
GlaxoSmithKline R&D China, and had been responsible for the
research and development of new drugs for over 23 years.
He has extensive experience in management of the research
and development of new drugs. He joined the Group in
2012 as the General Manager of Shanghai branch of Zhaoke
Hefei and was responsible for the business development of
Eastern China region. He had also served as the Head of
Research and Development of the Group and was responsible
for the management of the research and development of
drugs. During the period from May 2016 to March 2019,
he was appointed as the President and General Manager of
CVie Therapeutics Limited, the then associated company of
the Group in Taiwan. He was appointed as Chief Operating
Officer of China Ophthalmology Focus Limited and President
of Zhaoke (Guangzhou) Ophthalmology Pharmaceutical
Limited in 2018 and is responsible for the management of the
research and development of ophthalmic products.
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Directors and Key Personnel Profiles
EENTEABER

Victor Tsui

Chief Manufacturing Officer, Licensed Professional
Engineer, aged 53, P.E. MSc

Mr. Victor Tsui graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnics
University and University of Wisconsin with a master degree in
Engineering. Before joining the Group, he worked for various
pharmaceuticals companies in the United States for over 25
years and was responsible for production management. He
joined the Group in 2009 as Chief Operating Officer of Powder
Pharmaceuticals Incorporated (“PPI1”, an associated company
of the Group). He has been appointed as Chief Manufacturing
Officer of the Group since 2012 to oversee the Group’s
manufacturing operations. He has also been appointed as
director of PPI since 22 March 2013.

Yang Zhonggiang

Executive Deputy General Manager of Zhaoke
Pharmaceutical (Hefei) Company Limited, aged 45

Mr. Yang Zhongqgiang holds a master’s degree in
Pharmaceutical Engineering of Shandong University and has
a practicing pharmacist certification. He has been working for
the Group for more than 20 years, and has been working in
the Department of Research and Development of New Drugs
and Quality Department of Zhaoke Hefei. He has extensive
experience in the research and development of new drug,
project management and quality management. He had served
as the quality authorised person of Zhaoke Hefei since 2012
to oversee the company’s drug quality management and
protection works. In 2017, he has been appointed as the
Executive Deputy General Manager of Zhaoke Hefei.
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Directors and Key Personnel Profiles

Dai Xiangrong

Group Deputy General Manager and President & Chief
Operating Officer of China Oncology Focus Limited,
aged 40

Mr. Dai Xiangrong holds a bachelor’'s degree of biochemistry
and molecular biology, and a master’s degree of biochemistry
of Anhui Agricultural University. He is also a licensed
pharmacist. He joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible
for the research and development of new drugs. He has
extensive experience in preclinical studies, clinical research
and registration of new drugs. He was responsible for various
new drug development programs and succeeded in bringing
the programs to clinical research studies. He was appointed
as Senior Director of Research and Development Centre of
the Group in 2017 was appointed as Group Deputy General
Manager in March 2019. He was appointed as President and
Chief Operating Officer of China Oncology Focus Limited
in March 2018 and is fully responsible to the new drug
development and registration.
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Directors and Key Personnel Profiles
EENTEABER

Zhang Guohui

Deputy General Manager of Zhaoke (Guangzhou)
Ophthalmology Pharmaceutical Limited, aged 46, MBA,
BSc

Mr. Zhang Guohui has been working in Zhaoke Hefei for
more than 20 years. He was responsible for the research
and development of new drugs, production control and
GMP management. He has extensive experience in the
research and development and registration of new drugs
and technology project management. The Research and
Development Centre of the Group was established in 2012,
and he had served as the director thereof and was responsible
for new drug pre-clinical studies and clinical research,
the additional development of launched products, drug
registration affairs, science and technology project reporting
and monitoring work of adverse drug reactions. In 2017, he
was appointed as the Deputy General Manager of Zhaoke
(Guangzhou) Ophthalmology Pharmaceutical Limited and is
responsible for the research and development of ophthalmic
products.

Li Lok-Yee Mandy
Associate Director, R&D of the Group, aged 41, PhD

Dr. Mandy Li graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in
Biochemistry in 2000 from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong where she also received her PhD in 2004. Before joining
the Group, she had served as the Research Scientist for a
local biopharmaceutical company focused on the research
and development of innovative anticancer drugs. She joined
the Group in 2014 and is responsible for the research and
development of new drugs, project management, and
business development and licensing. She was appointed as
Associate Director, R&D of the Group in 2019 and is mainly
responsible for the project management and business
development of the Group.
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Directors and Key Personnel Profiles

Zhang Zeyun

Commercial Operations Director of the Group and
Executive Deputy General Manager of Guangzhou
Zhaoke Lian Fa Pharmaceutical Limited, aged 39

Mr. Zhang joined the Group in October 2018 and is
responsible for the business management of the Group's
direct sales team in China. He graduated from Guangzhou
University of Chinese Medicine with a bachelor degree in
Chinese Medicine. Before joining the Group, he worked
for several multinational pharmaceutical and healthcare
companies in China for over 15 years and was responsible
for sales and market access management. In March 2019, he
has been appointed as Commercial Operations Director of the
Group and Executive Deputy General Manager of Guangzhou
Zhaoke Lian Fa Pharmaceutical Limited (“Zhaoke Lian Fa”),
and is responsible for the commercial operations of the Group
and the daily operations management of Zhaoke Lian Fa, such
as rationalise marketing format innovation, responsible for
the Group market access department, establish non-medical
market sales team, and responsible for overall operations
management of the oncology products marketing team.

Huang Cheng
Senior Medical Director, R&D of the Group, aged 49

Dr. Huang Cheng joined the Group in June 2019 and is
responsible for the building and developing the medical
team as well as the management of daily operations of the
Group’s medical department, including strategy formulation
and preparation of clinical development programs and
strategy formulation of drug registration for the Group’s
pipeline products. He graduated from Shanghai Second
Medical University (currently known as Shanghai Jiaotong
University School of Medicine) with a Doctor of Medicine
degree, received master’s degree of public health from
Fudan University, and had served for Jinshan Hospital of
Fudan University and other medical institutions as medical
practitioner and had been promoted to doctor-in-charge.
He had also served for several multinational healthcare
corporations and biotech companies and responsible for
clinical development and medical affairs in various therapeutic
areas including respiratory, gastroenterology, cardiovascular,
rheumatology and immunology, and had led and participated
new drug applications and clinical trials of various small and
large molecules novel drugs in mainland China, the United
States and Australia.
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Directors and Key Personnel Profiles
EENTEABER

Fang Ling

Corporate Culture and Public Relations Director of the
Group, aged 51

Ms. Fang Ling graduated from Anhui College Of Traditional
Chinese Medicine (currently known as Anhui University Of
Traditional Chinese Medicine) with a major in traditional
Chinese medicine in 1992, and received her Master of
Business Administration in pharmaceutical management
degree from Renmin Business School in 2004. Before she
joined the Group in March 1999, she had served Anhui
Province Shucheng County Chengguan Town Hospital Division
during 1993 to 1998 as a Chinese medicine practitioner.
She had been serving for the Group for over 20 years in
various positions. She has been appointed Corporate Culture
and Public Relations Director of the Group in April 2019 and
also serves as the chief supervisor of the Beijing branch of
Zhaoke Hefei and the special assistant of the Chairman, and
is responsible for the external affairs such as brand building
and public relations for the Group, and internal affairs such
as corporate culture development, brand development plan,
corporate promotion strategy formulation, preparation and
organisation. She is also responsible for the management
of Lee’s Pharm internet-based official account for corporate
promotion, official website, management and operation of the
internal newsletter “Zhaoke Communication”, as well as the
management of the daily operations of the Beijing branch of
Zhaoke Hefei.

Zhang Zhenhua

Director of Human Resources and Development of the
Group, aged 47

Ms. Zhang Zhenhua holds a master’s degree of business
administration of the Southern Cross University Australia.
She has more than 25 years of working experience in
multinational corporations and with broad knowledge and
experience in human resources management. In September
2017, she was appointed as the Director of Human Resources
and Development of the Group and is responsible for the
management of human resources and development of the
Group.
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Directors and Key Personnel Profiles

Chen Yueshen

Director of Administration in China, aged 61

Mr. Chen Yueshen had been serving for the Group for more
than 20 years in various positions such as the Director and
Deputy General Manager of Zhaoke Hefei, Chief Operating
Officer of the Group and the Deputy General Manager of
Zhaoke Pharmaceutical (Guangzhou) Limited (“Zhaoke
Guangzhou”). He was responsible for the daily operations of
Zhaoke Hefei, including being responsible for the production
and quality management of Zhaoke Hefei. He has extensive
experience in quality management systems and GMP
production. In November 2018, he was appointed as the
Director of Administration in China and is responsible for the
Group’s administrative matters in China.

Yin Lei

Associate Director, R&D of the Group and
Deputy General Manager of Zhaoke (Guangzhou)
Pharmaceutical Limited, aged 47

Mr. Yin Lei holds a bachelor’s degree from the Anhui University
of Chinese Medicine. He is also a licensed pharmacist. He
joined the Group in 2014 and is responsible for the research
and development of new drugs. He has been engaged in
drug research and development for nearly 20 years and has
led to many successful cases in the field of small molecule
drugs, peptide drugs and biochemical drugs. In 2019, he
was appointed as Associate Director, R&D of the Group and
Deputy General Manager of Zhaoke Guangzhou and is fully
responsible for the research and development of new drugs of
the Group.
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Directors and Key Personnel Profiles
EENTEABER

Xia Hongling

Deputy General Manager of Zhaoke Pharmaceutical
(Hefei) Company Limited, aged 55

Ms. Xia Hongling holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the Renmin University of China and
has the qualification of accountant in China. Before joining
the Group, she had been responsible for the accounting and
finance function with a large state-owned manufacturing
enterprise for over 10 years. She joined the Group in
1997 and held various positions in accounting and logistics
department in Zhaoke Hefei for over 20 years. She has
extensive experience in accounting, finance and logistics
management in pharmaceutical industry. She has been
appointed as Deputy General Manager of Zhaoke Hefei since
2017.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors submit their report with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of the Group are the developing,
manufacturing and sale and marketing of pharmaceutical
products.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial
position, including a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, as well as the outlook for the
Group’s business, are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement”
(pages 11 to 17) and the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” (pages 18 to 33) sections. Particulars of significant
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the year ended 31 December 2019, if applicable,
can also be found in the aforesaid sections and the notes to
the consolidated financial statements (pages 104 to 292).
Description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by
the Group can be found in the section headed “Key Risks and
Uncertainties” below. Description of the Group’s relationships
with its key stakeholders is included in the section headed
“Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers”.
Furthermore, principal corporate governance practices
adopted by the Group and details regarding the Group’s
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the Group are provided in the “Corporate
Governance Report” section (pages 72 to 82).

This discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2019 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 95 to 292.

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Final Dividend”)
equivalent to HK$0.038 per share in cash (2018: HK$0.084
per share) to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company as at the close of
business on 1 June 2020. Together with the interim dividend
of HK$0.018 per share (2018: HK$0.034 per share) paid
on 30 September 2019, total distribution of dividend by
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 will be
HK$0.056 per share (2018: HK$0.118 per share).

Subject to the passing of the relevant resolution at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, it is
expected that the Final Dividend will be paid on 15 June 2020.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 51 to the consolidated financial statements.

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Particulars of the Group’s principal associated companies are
set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on pages 99 to 100. Details of movements in the
reserves of the Company during the year are set out in note
52 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserve available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$778,616,000
(2018: HK$743,089,000). This includes the Company’s share
premium account in the amount of HK$714,146,000 (2018:
HK$731,771,000) at 31 December 2019, which may be
distributable provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to HK$3,324,000 (2018: HK$1,359,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED, REPURCHASED AND
CANCELLED

During the year, as a result of the exercise of share options
under the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 26
June 2002 and the new share option scheme adopted on 10
May 2012, a total of 280,000 shares of the Company (the
“Shares”), fully paid, were issued for a total consideration of
HK$1,398,880.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank loans and other borrowings of the
Group are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the 2002 Share Option Scheme and New Share
Option Scheme disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below and note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Group, or existed during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the owners of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
repurchased its own shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as follows:
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Aggregate

Number Highest Lowest price paid

of shares price paid price paid (including

Month/Year repurchased per share per share expenses)
[EARREL:Ft

B/ BEROHE CENERESE SNASRBEE (BEER)
HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

September 2019 —E-NFNA 1,931,000 4.58 4.18 8,655,084
October 2019 —T-NF+A 2,458,000 4.55 4.23 10,985,975
4,389,000 19,641,059
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The repurchase of the Company’s shares by the Directors
during the year under review were made pursuant to the
mandate granted by the shareholders of the Company at the
2019 annual general meeting of the Company held on 20 May
2019 with a view to benefiting the shareholders thereof as a
whole by enhancing the earnings per share of the Company.

The above repurchased shares were cancelled on 5 November
2019 and the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced by the nominal value of these shares accordingly. The
premium and transaction costs paid on the repurchase of the
shares of HK$19,422,000 and HK$31,000 respectively were
charged to the Company’s share premium account.

Saved as disclosed above, there were no other purchases,
sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the financial year is as follows:

— Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 9.50% in aggregate for the Group’s total
revenue for the year (2018: 15.94%)

— Purchase from the Groups’ five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 74.18% in aggregate for
the Group’s total purchases for the year (2018: 78.42%)

— The largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 23.16% of the Group’s total purchases for
the year (2018: 24.85%)

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates
(as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange or any shareholder
of the Company (who, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of
the Company) had any interest in the Group’s five major
customers and suppliers.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout
the financial year. The Company has also purchased and
maintained directors’ liability insurance throughout the year,
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors

Lee Siu Fong, Chairman
Leelalertsuphakun Wanee, Managing Director
Li Xiaoyi, Chief Executive Officer

Non-executive Director
Simon Miles Ball
Independent Non-executive Directors

Chan Yau Ching, Bob
Lam Yat Cheong
Tsim Wah Keung, Karl

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Dr. Li Xiaoyi, Mr. Simon Miles Ball and Mr. Lam
Yat Cheong will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, have agreed to offer themselves
for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.
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Each of Ms. Lee Siu Fong (“Ms. Lee”) and Ms.
Leelalertsuphakun Wanee (“Ms. Leelalertsuphakun”)
has entered into a service contract both dated 14 January
2002 with the Company under which each of them has been
appointed to act as an executive Director on a continuous
basis until terminated by either party by giving to the other
party not less than three months’ notice in writing. During
the year, the monthly salaries and allowance for Ms. Lee and
Ms. Leelalertsuphakun have been revised to HK$394,107 and
HK$424,865 respectively.

Dr. Li Xiaoyi (“Dr. Li”) has a service contract with the
Company since 1 September 2003 and after that the
contract has been renewed. During the year, the monthly
salaries and allowance has been revised to HK$586,862.
Both the Company and Dr. Li shall be entitled to terminate
the contract by giving three months’ prior written notice. If
both of the substantial shareholders, namely Ms. Lee and
Ms. Leelalertsuphakun, and Dr. Li together, holding less than
30% of the issued share capital of the Company, Dr. Li shall
in his absolute discretion terminate the contract and shall be
entitled to the payment equivalent to the aggregate of his
monthly salary for the remaining term as compensation or
damages for or in respect of such termination.

Ms. Lee, Ms. Leelalertsuphakun and Dr. Li are executive
Directors. In accordance with supplementary agreement dated
16 April 2017 signed between the Company and each of the
executive Directors, employment terms of executive Directors
have been revised as follows:

1. Executive Directors are entitled to annual management
bonus 1.5% to 3.0% (determined based on the growth
in net profits of the Group) on the net profit of the
Group for the preceding financial year. Such sum of
the management bonus will be shared between all the
executive Directors in such proportion with reference to
their monthly salary in the final month of the complete
financial year.
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2. The annual salary increment shall be equal to official
inflation rate if the growth in net profits of the Group is
equal to or less than 15%, or should the growth exceed
15%, the sum of the official inflation rate and half of the
positive difference between the growth in net profits and
the 15% threshold.

3. Each of executive Directors will be entitled to lump sum
payment upon retirement and monthly pension payment
after retirement if he/she has engaged in continuous
service with the Company for certain years.

Each of Mr. Lam Yat Cheong (“Mr. Lam™) and Dr. Tsim Wah
Keung, Karl (“Dr. Tsim”) has been appointed on 1 July 2004
and 20 September 2004 respectively as an independent
non-executive Director. Contract with Mr. Lam and Dr. Tsim
has been renewed for three years from 1 July 2019 and 20
September 2019 respectively. Director’s fees for both of Mr.
Lam and Dr. Tsim are HK$144,000 per annum and bonus will
not be paid.

Dr. Chan Yau Ching, Bob has a three-year service contract
with the Company from 12 October 2007. The contract
has been renewed for three years from 12 October 2019.
Director’s fee is HK$144,000 per annum and bonus will not be
paid.

Mr. Simon Miles Ball has a three-year service contract with

the Company from 29 December 2017. Director’s fee is
HK$144,000 per annum and bonus will not be paid.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which the Directors had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND KEY PERSONNEL

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the key
personnel are set out on pages 34 to 46.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the management shareholders or
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules,
or has any other conflict of interests with the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

Save as the interests disclosed in the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities” below,
at no time during the year under review was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age or their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company and their associates had the
following interests in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO™)), as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules:

EERTHRARNESNER

R-ZF-hF+-A=1t—8 ARFEEK
TRASREZEBHNBEALTRARR RER
BAB(ERAEFLMEGRI(TEERTE
RBI 1) FEXVER) &9 B {0 K 48 B8 B £ 7 B 78 RC
BIREBEZ KRR GRPIE35215FE 2B
it - SRE TR RIS+ LM BEITAE
FETRFRZFNRETRI([RESTR AN
GARNE) KRB FH) LA T A AR

(a) Long position in Shares (a) RGIFE
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name of director Nature of interest shares held Total  shareholding
Esps BEME FEEEREA #st BRESESL
Lee Siu Fong Beneficial owner 1,684,375
FINE ERBEAA
Interest held jointly with
Leelalertsuphakun Wanee 1,600,000
B A RRE 2 B
Interest of a controlled corporation
(Note 1) 114,000,625 117,285,000 19.95%
—RE B e (L)
Leelalertsuphakun Wanee Beneficial owner 3,305,000
FRHE BHEBA
Interest held jointly with Lee Siu Fong 1,600,000
BN HRRE 2 B
Interest of a controlled corporation
(Note 1) 114,000,625 118,905,625 20.22%
—RE B EE R (1)
Li Xiaoyi Beneficial owner 41,092,766
FR EREBA
Family interest (Note 2) 16,000,000
Rk (MEE2)
Others 2,067,219 59,159,985 10.06%
it
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Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of

Name of director Nature of interest shares held Total  shareholding
EEpg BEME EEEREA #st BRESESL
Chan Yau Ching, Bob Beneficial owner 520,000 520,000 0.09%
BRI BuBA
Lam Yat Cheong Beneficial owner 300,000 300,000 0.05%
SIS BREBA
Tsim Wah Keung, Karl Beneficial owner 300,000 300,000 0.05%
EER BHEBA
Simon Miles Ball Beneficial owner 46,500 46,500 0.01%
Simon Miles Ball ERBEBA
Notes: FifsE
(1) 114,000,625 Shares are held through Huby Technology (1) 114,000,625 & % 5 = & # Huby

Limited (“Huby Technology”). Huby Technology is an
investment holding company jointly owned by Ms. Lee Siu
Fong and Ms. Leelalertsuphakun Wanee.

(2) These Shares are held by High Knowledge Investments
Limited which is wholly owned by Dr. Li Xiaoyi’'s spouse, Ms.
Lue Shuk Ping, Vicky (“Ms. Lue”). The interest held by Ms.
Lue is deemed to be part of the interest of Dr. Li Xiaoyi.

&)

Technology Limited ( [ Huby
Technology ] ) # & ° Huby
Technology A& AER A F] - WHZ
NE L REEE L L HRES

It % & 9 B High Knowledge
Investments Limited¥s A ° 5% A @lH
FMELMEBEAkLZLE((BLE )2
BHE c a X T RHANERERIESE
THEB SRR o
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(b) Long position in underlying shares — (b) RIEGEKR (7 RI%FE — K L alfg iR
share options of the Company 7=
Under the share option schemes of the Company, the BIBEARRAIRERESE - THERRQF
following Directors of the Company have personal EERAIRBRONBEREREESEA
interest in options to subscribe for the Shares. Details of o BT EESHEREFBOT

the share options granted to them are as follows:

Balance Balance
as at During the year as at Exercise
Exercisable 1 January RER 31 December  price per
Name of director Date of grant period 2019 Granted Exercised 2019 share
RZB-NF RZB-NF
-A-H TZA=1-A
£ RitiAH T8 HE& & e NEk  BROEE
(Notes) HK$
(B3) En
Lee Siu Fong 30 December 2013 1) 538,000 - - 538,000 7.300
I “T-=£+_A=1A
31 March 2015 2 446,000 - - 446,000 11.200
“Z-AF=A=1-H
31 March 2016 3 587,000 - - 587,000 5.754
ZZ-~E=A=1-H
13 April 2017 ()] 590,000 - - 590,000 7.548
“E—tENAT=A
13 April 2018 (5) 456,000 - - 456,000 11.216
3 \ERAT=H
15 April 2019 (6) - 592,000 - 592,000 7.324
“T-NFNATEA

2,617,000 592,000 3,209,000
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Balance Balance
as at During the year as at Exercise
Exercisable 1 January RER 31 December  price per
Name of director Date of grant period 2019 Granted Exercised 2019 share
RZB-0% RZB-NF
-A-H +=A=t-A
Ezi Rt RH T8 e b e NEk  SROTEE
(Notes) HK$
(H3) En
Leelalertsuphakun Wanee 30 December 2013 1) 338,000 - - 338,000 7.300
ZHEk “T-ZFT-A=1H
31 March 2015 2 446,000 - - 446,000 11.200
ZE-RE=A=TH
31 March 2016 (3) 587,000 - - 587,000 5.754
ZT-"E=A=T-H
13 April 2017 4 590,000 - - 590,000 7.548
“E-tEMAT=A
13 April 2018 (5) 456,000 - - 456,000 11.216
3 \ERAT=H
15 April 2019 (6) - 592,000 - 592,000 7.324
ZZ-NENATEA
2,417,000 592,000 - 3,009,000
Li Xiaoyi 31 March 2015 2 446,000 - - 446,000 11.200
IR “Z-fnF=fA=1-H
31 March 2016 (3) 587,000 - - 587,000 5.754
ZEEZA=TA
13 April 2017 ()] 590,000 - - 590,000 7.548
ZEtERATEA
13 April 2018 (5) 456,000 - - 456,000 11.216
2 \ENAT=R
15 April 2019 (6) - 592,000 - 592,000 7.324
“Z-hEMATEA
2,079,000 592,000 - 2,671,000
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Notes:
(1) Divided into 2 tranches exercisable from 30 June 2014 and
30 March 2015 respectively to 29 December 2023.
(2) Divided into 2 tranches exercisable from 30 September
2015 and 30 June 2016 respectively to 30 March 2025.
(3) Divided into 2 tranches exercisable from 30 September
2016 and 30 June 2017 respectively to 30 March 2026.
(4) Divided into 2 tranches exercisable from 13 October 2017
and 13 July 2018 respectively to 12 April 2027.
(5) Divided into 2 tranches exercisable from 13 October 2018
and 13 July 2019 respectively to 12 April 2028.
(6) Divided into 2 tranches exercisable from 15 October 2019
and 15 July 2020 respectively to 14 April 2029.
As at 31 December 2019, Dr. Li Xiaoyi had beneficial

interest in (a) 12,740 ordinary shares in Powder
Pharmaceuticals Incorporated; and (b) 830 share options
which can be converted into 830 ordinary shares of
Powder Pharmaceuticals Incorporated when exercised.

(d) save as disclosed above, no interests and short positions

were held or deemed to be taken to be held under
Part XV of the SFO by any director or chief executive
of the Company or their respective associates in the
Shares and the underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model
Code which are required pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a written resolution passed by all shareholders of
the Company on 26 June 2002, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”). At
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 10 May
2012, a new share option scheme of the Company (the “New
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted upon expiry of the
2002 Share Option Scheme.

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme shall be subject
to a maximum limit of 10% of the Shares in issue on 10 May
2012, the date on which the New Share Option Scheme is
conditionally adopted and approved by the shareholders at
the annual general meeting, which is 47,023,543 Shares.
The total number of Shares available for issue under the
New Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2019 was
24,855,543 Shares.

As at 31 December 2019, the number of Shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and New Share
Option Scheme was 17,123,000 (2018: 15,627,000) Shares,
representing 2.9% (2018: 2.6%) of the Shares in issue at
that date.

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF A
SUBSIDIARY

A share option scheme of a subsidiary of the Company,
CVie Therapeutics Company Limited, was approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 12 November 2012 (“CVie’s
Scheme”). Details of the CVie’s Scheme are set out in note
42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’

INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the following parties (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company which are required to be notified to the Company
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and
required to be entered into the register maintained by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRAFZZHEDS

RZZE-NF+ZA=+—8 TFIAL A
Al (RN RAESBHITRAARRRIN) A RIEE S
NEAEGEOIEXVEE2R3DEHETMERR
A - RRERE S R RDIF 336 R AL KT
ARARFEFRREMER AR B R A8
FAR D AV R SRR -

(a) Long position in Shares (a) RGIFE
Number of  Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name Capacity shares held shareholding
iy HE FREERHE RBRESEIN
Huby Technology Limited Beneficial owner 114,000,625 19.39%
Huby Technology Limited ExEAA
Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A Interest of a controlled corporation 81,405,000 13.85%
Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A —RXXER AR R
Li Zhenfu Interest of a controlled corporation 81,405,000 13.85%
Li Zhenfu —RKXEHEENER
Lion River I N.V. Interest of a controlled corporation 81,405,000 13.85%
Lion River I N.V. — RS EERER
GL Partners Capital Interest of a controlled corporation 76,165,488 12.96%
Management Limited
GL Partners Capital —RXEREEN R
Management Limited

Apta Finance S.A. Interest of a controlled corporation 58,503,898 9.95%
Apta Finance S.A. —RXEREEN R
Cavazza Paolo Interest of a controlled corporation 58,503,898 9.95%
Cavazza Paolo —RKXER AR R
Paponi Claudia Family interest 58,503,898 9.95%
Paponi Claudia BN S
GSR Capital Joy Corporation Beneficial owner 37,209,935 6.33%
GSR Capital Joy Corporation ExBEAA
Golden Sand Capital Ltd Interest of a controlled corporation 37,209,935 6.33%
Golden Sand Capital Ltd —RXER AR R
Wu Sonny Interest of a controlled corporation 37,209,935 6.33%
Wu Sonny —R X EER R
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Number of  Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name Capacity shares held  shareholding
iy HE FREERHE RBRELEIN
High Knowledge Investments Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 16,000,000 2.72%
High Knowledge Investments Limited — Ba#A A(HiizF1)
Lue Shuk Ping, Vicky Interest of a controlled corporation 16,000,000 2.72%
=Rk (Note 1)
—RXX A EE R (1)
Family interest (Note 2) 43,159,985 7.34%
Kkt (Hizt2)
Notes: BteE

(1) These Shares are legally owned by High Knowledge
Investments Limited, which is entirely and beneficially
owned by Dr. Li Xiaoyi’s spouse, Ms. Lue.

(2) These Shares are owned by Ms. Lue’s spouse, Dr. Li
Xiaoyi.

(b) Long position in underlying shares —

share options of the Company

(1) 1t % K& » B High Knowledge
Investments Limited& =6 @ %A
AR N ARETNRERLXLIE2HRE
WA ©

(2 #ZERMHBEREIHEBE/RIELE
5o

(b) BEKRGIE — AL AREKE

Number of  Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name Capacity shares held  shareholding
i HE FEERROGHE BREMEIL
Lue Shuk Ping, Vicky Family interest (Note 1) 2,671,000 0.45%
2K Kk (1)
Note: MI5E -

(1) These share options are owned by Ms. Lue’s spouse, Dr. Li
Xiaoyi.

(c) Short position in Shares

No short positions of other persons and substantial
shareholders in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporations were recorded
in the register.

1) ZEBEREAaZEIOEREE/NREL
%A -

(©) RIEGZXE
DT RAE A AR S

FLEREA A T R EB RN I HAER

BADHEIRE -
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the
Directors are not aware of any other person or corporation
having an interest or short position in Shares and underlying
shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is available to the Company
the percentage of the Company’s shares which are in the
hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares during the year and up to the date of
this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
conducted certain transactions with parties deemed as “related
parties” under applicable accounting standards. The details of
these transactions are set out in note 50 to the consolidated
financial statements. Save for the transactions mentioned in
the section headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” which is subject to announcement
and disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, certain transactions mentioned in note 50 to the
consolidated financial statements also constituted connected
transactions or continuing connecting transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt from the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and the Group had the
following connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions, and details of which have been disclosed in
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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Connected Transactions BEXSZ
1. Advance of shareholder loans to Powder 1. MAAREEBREQATSHELER AT

((E&DBNRRERREHMBRR

Pharmaceuticals Incorporated (“PPI1””), an
associate of the Group

BE _T-NAF+_A=1+—HILF

F REERELEREMEZBREFTOT ¢

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the following
shareholder loans were provided by the Group to PPI:

i

Interest Loan amount

rate per in original
Advance date Term annum currency Loan amount
Z2THHE FH FRR REMERE BXRE
27 March 2019 1 year 4%  HK$3,000,000 HK$3,000,000
—E-hAE=A=++H —F 48  3,000,000/87C 3,000,000/
14 June 2019 1 year 4%  HK$3,000,000 HK$3,000,000
—E-hEFEA+THIA —F 48  3,000,000/87C 3,000,000/ 7C
19 July 2019 1 year 4% HK$25,056,000 HK$25,056,000
—E-NFtA+NH —F 48 25,056,000/ C 25,056,000/
27 September 2019 1 year 4%  HK$3,000,000 HK$3,000,000
—E-NFALA=Z+tH —4F 4  3,000,000/87C 3,000,000/
18 November 2019 1 year 4% HK$8,000,000 HK$8,000,000
—E-hEF+—A+NAH —F 48 8,000,000/t 8,000,000/ 7T

Details of these transactions have been disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 27 March 2019, 14
June 2019, 19 July 2019, 27 September 2019 and 18
November 2019.

GL Partners Capital Management Limited (“GL
Partners”) is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
The Company and GL Partners are both shareholders
of PPl at the same time, while GL Partners, being a
connected person of the Company, is entitled to exercise
or control the exercise of 10% or more of the voting
power at any general meeting of PPl. Therefore PPI is a
commonly held entity under the Listing Rules. Therefore,
advance of shareholder loans to PPl constitutes a

connected transaction.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had interest in
33.92% of issued share capital of PPI.

HEXFHBENAAN PR
—AFZA=++tH  ZF-AEXA
+mE - ZF-ASEATAR =%
“AFAAZTEARZE-AFT—
ATNBZAERRE -

GL Partners Capital Management
Limited ([ GL Partners|) 82272
TERRE - XA F NGL Partners[Al
BEL 7 RER - MGL Partners(E A7
NEZBBEAL) BRAEEENEMRE
RE FITHESIREITEL0%IA AR
SR El BELTRANES &
LR EXRFBENER  FTIA - W@
ERRNRREFBKBERS -

R_E-NF+-_A=+—0  A&HE
FABREHTRANZ33.92%H0# °
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Continuing Connected Transactions

Provision of financial guarantee to PPI, as associate
of the Group

On 14 March 2019, the Company as guarantor entered
into a corporate guarantee in favour of a bank as a
security for the provision of a revolving loan facility
of up to HK$8,000,000, a demand loan facility of up
to HK$40,000,000 and an overdraft facility of up to
HK$4,000,000 (the “Facility”), provided that the total
outstanding balance of the overdraft facility and revolving
loan facility shall not at any time exceed HK$8,000,000,
to Powder Pharmaceuticals Incorporated for the purpose
of funding its normal commercial operation.

The above continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors
and they have confirmed that the transactions:

a. have been entered into in the usual and ordinary
course of businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries;

b. are conducted on normal commercial terms;

c. are entered into in accordance with the terms of
relevant agreements that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of Shareholders as a whole; and

d. have not exceeded the cap disclosed in previous
announcements.

The Company’s auditor, HLM CPA Limited, also has
confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions:

a. have received the approval of the Company’s Board
of Directors;

b. have been entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing the transactions; and
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c. have not exceeded the cap disclosed in previous
announcements.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction
requiring disclosure of connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions in accordance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all
the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
9 to 10.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group, which are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

Business Risk

The Group’s business risks include rapid change in the general
market conditions, downturn pressure on the overall economy
of China and price competition from other market players.
The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
business and review of material business decisions involving
material risks exposures from time to time.

Financial Risk

The Group adopts financial risk management policies to
manage its currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, and
liquidity risk. The Board also reviews monthly management
accounts, capital structure and key operating data of the
Group.
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Compliance Risk

The Board adopts procedures to ensure the Group is in
compliance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations.
The Group engages professional advisers and consultants
to keep the Group abreast of the latest developments
in the regulatory environment, including legal, financial,
environmental and operational developments. The Group also
adopts a strict policy in prohibiting any unauthorised use or
dissemination of confidential or inside information.

Operational Risk

The Group adopts procedures to manage its operational risk
such as inadequate management efficiency, inefficient raw
material procurement and production facilities utilisation. The
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems covering business,
financial, compliance and operational risks of the Group and is
satisfied that such systems are effective and adequate.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The sustainability of the Group’s business relies on the
growth of the Group’s employees. Remuneration packages
of the employees are generally structured with reference to
prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based
on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits
including mandatory provident fund, medical insurance
and performance related bonus. Share options may also be
granted to eligible employees of the Group.
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Relationship is the fundamentals of business. The Group fully
understands this principal and thus maintain good relationship
with the customers to fulfil their immediate and long-term
need.

The Group strives to maintain fair and co-operating
relationship with the suppliers.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND
SERVICES AND ENVIRONMENTAL
POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
its businesses and the communities with which it engages.
The Group pursues this business approach by managing its
business prudently and executing management decisions
with due care and attention. Over the years, the Group has
been fully committed to environmental protection. Periodic
internal control meetings are held to review environmental
issues in the production plants to update environmental
laws and regulations and to make valuable suggestions and
recommendations for improvement.

COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS

The Group is not aware of any instances of material breach
of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
such as the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
Listing Rules, and other applicable local laws and regulations
in various jurisdictions during the year ended 31 December
2019 and up to the date of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
The Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance Report
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules
will be published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange within three months after the publication of
this annual report.
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STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group companies operated in Hong Kong are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme set up
in accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance (Cap. 485). Under the scheme, the employees
are required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up
to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions
are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries up to
a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “Mandatory Contributions”),
and are charged to the profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The employees are entitled
to 100% of the employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon
their retirement at the age of 65 years old, death or total
incapacity.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the
PRC, the employees of the group companies operated in the
PRC are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
plan operated by the government of the PRC. Those group
companies are required to contribute a specified percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement is to make the specified contributions.

Executive Directors will be entitled to lump sum payment upon
retirement and monthly pension payment after retirement if
they have engaged in continuous service with the Company
for certain years.

Particulars of the scheme of the Group are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been audited by HLM CPA Limited who
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lee Siu Fong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board believes that corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and has adopted various
measures to uphold good corporate governance to safeguard
the interests of our shareholders, investors, customers and

staff.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2019, with deviations from provision A.5 of the CG
Code.

Under provision A.5 of the CG Code, a nomination committee
should be established to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and reappointment of Directors. The
Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of its
own members. The Board does not establish a nomination
committee and is not considering to establish the same in
view of the small size of the Board. The Chairman of the
Board is responsible for identifying appropriate candidate and
proposing qualified candidate to the Board for consideration.
The Board will review profiles of the candidates recommended
by the Chairman and make recommendation the appointment,
re-election and retirement of the Directors. Candidates are
appointed to the Board on the basis of their skill, competence,
experience and diversity of perspectives that they can
contribute to the Company.

Looking forward, the Board will continue to conduct reviews

on the Company’s corporate governance practices from time
to time to ensure compliance with the CG Code.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL
CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiries of all the Directors and the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with such Model Code and
required standard of dealing throughout the year ended 31
December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The non-executive Director provides the Group with a wide
range of expertise and knowledge in the pharmaceutical
sector. The independent non-executive Directors are persons
of high calibre; with academic and professional qualifications
in the areas of accounting, financial and pharmaceutical field.
With their experience gained from senior positions held in
other companies, they provide strong support towards the
effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the
Board.

The Company has a Board diversity policy whereby it
recognises and embraces the benefits of a diversity of Board
members. It endeavors to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board
members. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

The list of Directors and their roles and functions is posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company is
Ms. Lee Siu Fong and Dr. Li Xiaoyi, respectively.
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PEERRE

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual.

The Board formulates overall strategic plans and key policies
of the Group, monitors its financial performance, maintains
effective oversight over the management, risks assessment,
controls over business operations and ensures good corporate
governance and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements. Responsibility in relation to daily operations
and execution of the strategic business plans are delegated to
each of the executive Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 29 Board meetings
and 1 shareholders meeting were held and the attendance of
individual Director at these meetings is set out below:

TERTHRARNAGTI D - XIFHF—A
7L °

EFESHEAEENARBRRBRENEAR
R BEHEVBRE - AEHERE - RRTE
MAMEE - BRBEEES - LHEERR T
RABERRETEEREELEETRTE - ARE
EEBITRBERTENEEZRTRENTE
ERGRERE -

HE-T-AGE+-AS+—BILFE A5
ERRT-TAREEREHER—RBEK

28EN

€ ATARBEFHRE RN -

Number Number of
of Board shareholders
meeting meeting
attended/ attended/
Attendees Total Total
HEESEEE HERRKE
e R BN KRB BRE
Executive Directors
BITES
Lee Siu Fong (Chairman) 29/29 1/1
FNF(EE)
Leelalertsuphakun Wanee (Managing Director) 29/29 1/1
PR (E FARACHE)
Li Xiaoyi (Chief Executive Officer) 29/29 1/1
FINR(TTHAEE)
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Simon Miles Ball 10/29 0/1
Simon Miles Ball
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Chan Yau Ching, Bob 29/29 1/1
BR&RIE
Lam Yat Cheong 27/29 0/1
WHE
Tsim Wah Keung, Karl 29/29 0/1
B
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The Company’s auditor, HLM CPA Limited, also attended the
shareholders meeting.

During the year under review, a meeting was held between
the Chairman and all independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term,
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

All the independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
in writing to the Company that they have met all the
guidelines for assessing their independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Notwithstanding that certain
of the independent non-executive Directors have served on
the Board for more than nine years, in view that they have
demonstrated the attributes as independent non-executive
Directors during their tenure in office and taking into account
their written confirmation of independence as regards
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company considers that all
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent
and believes that their continued service as independent non-
executive Directors will be beneficial to the Company and the
Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group regularly updates Directors on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements regarding subjects
necessary in the discharge of their duties. In addition, the
Group has been encouraging Directors to attend training
courses or via online aids or reading relevant materials on the
latest development of applicable laws, rules and regulations
so that they can continuously update and further enhance
their knowledge and skills.

TEEERWRSE

D F 0 B AT B i & 31 67T R 2 R IR 8
BRAE -

REEFE  TREMBBEILIFNTESRE
EEERTUFA2.7THRRITT —REE °

FHATES

PRIAESEMTERHEZE—EREFH A&
ELB=FHERT K-

FRIEEIFATEZEMARAEMER - K
ZE/E EMARRES AMGAET R EE T
HRPAES - BER TBIUIFRTESTNE
EERBEBIF ERNRENTHAEER
RBYIFITES 2B YOEEREM L
MmRAEI.1MEZ E@MER - ARARRAE
BIUFNTEFTOBEY - YHRERFESS
VIFATESZRERBEHARREERE
A o

ESHIIREXERRE

AEBEMTEE=ZAM LTRARERERE
TRBEMFEEARAENEGERZENER
RENSKHER - I AEE-—BEZBHES
HEERERER  RARAPIZHERAE
IR L ETRBIEERER - EREA
R e S — PR R ERR A S e

Annual Report 2019 3k

75



76

Corporate Governance Report
REAWE

Records of the Directors’ training during 2019 are as follows:

EER_T-NFaEIRENT

Type of
continuous
professional
development

Directors training
FEEX

E=x BRIZIIER

Executive Directors

HITES

Lee Siu Fong (Chairman) (i) & (i)

ZINF(ERE)

Leelalertsuphakun Wanee (Managing Director) (i) & (ii)

F e (EFAETE)

Li Xiaoyi (Chief Executive Officer) (i) & (ii)

FINR(TTEAEE)

Non-executive Director

FHUITES

Simon Miles Ball (i) & (i)

Simon Miles Ball

Independent non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Chan Yau Ching, Bob (i) & (ii)

BRA&RIE

Lam Yat Cheong (i) & (i)

HHE

Tsim Wah Keung, Karl (i) & (i)

EER

(i) Attending seminar(s) or training session(s).

(ii) Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating
to the Company’s business or Directors’ duties and
responsibilities, the latest development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, etc.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEERZEA A R A 7]

() HFEERESHIFIRE -

(i) BERMARAEBREERE LM
RAIREMEREERENRMNEBER
BE - BMTIRRHEH -



Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND
ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s performance and
prospects. The Board is also responsible for preparing the
accounts of the Group, which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group on a going concern basis.

The Company set up an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 and the CG Code
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, internal control and risks
management system of the Group.

The audit committee is to serve as a focal point for
communication between other Directors, the external auditors,
the internal auditors (where an internal audit function exists)
of the Company, and the management as regards their duties
relating to financial and other reporting, risk management,
internal controls, external and internal audits and such other
financial and accounting matters as the Board determines
from time to time. The audit committee is to assist the Board
in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of
the financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management system of the Group, overseeing the audit
process and performing other duties and responsibilities as
may be assigned by the Board from time to time.

TEEERWRSE
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The audit committee comprises three members, Dr. Chan
Yau Ching, Bob (chairman of the audit committee), Mr. Lam
Yat Cheong and Dr. Tsim Wah Keung, Karl, who are the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company. In the
financial year ended 31 December 2019, four audit committee
meetings were held to review and comment on the Group’s
draft annual, interim and quarterly financial reports, met with
external auditor and provided advices and recommendations
to the Board. The individual attendance record of each

member is as follows:

E=T— 7L¢+ ﬂ ‘f’ Elﬂ:ﬁﬁﬂlir_ 2
TTHREZLZESE2:  WEHASENT

B FFERFEVHEREERARERESR
BN BENRITEE  YAEFERHER
E#EER - §RKBMERLFLENT :

Number
of audit
committee
meeting
attended/ Attendance
Attendees Total percentage
HESEKES
2EERE
HEgE HBRE i *E
Chan Yau Ching, Bob 4/4 100%
BRRIE
Lam Yat Cheong 4/4 100%
==
Tsim Wah Keung, Karl 4/4 100%
EER

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee has been established in February
2012 in accordance with the requirement of Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules. The remuneration committee of the
Company comprises two independent non-executive Directors
and one executive Director.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEERZEA A R A 7]
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Dr. Tsim Wah Keung, Karl is the chairman of the remuneration
committee and Ms. Leelalertsuphakun Wanee and Dr.
Chan Yau Ching, Bob are members of the remuneration
committee. The Company has adopted the model to make
recommendations to the Board to determine the remuneration
packages of individual executive Director and senior
management. The major roles and functions of the Company’s
remuneration committee are as follows:

a. Establish and apply a formal and transparent procedure
for setting policy on remuneration for executive Directors
and senior management, and for fixing the remuneration
packages for all Directors and senior management; and

b. Ensure that procedures and principles for fixing
packages of all Directors and senior management
are proper so that the levels of remuneration of
Directors commensurate with their qualifications and
competencies, and that such remuneration is sufficient to
attract and retain the Directors and senior management
but not excessive.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee
are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The remuneration committee meets at least
once a year. During the year ended 31 December 2019, 1
meeting are held by the remuneration committee and all the
committee member attended the meeting to approve the
annual bonus payable to executive Directors for the financial
year 2018 and the monthly salary of executive Directors
during the year under review.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the Board
has resolved that the senior management of the Company
comprise only the Executive Directors of the Company. Please
refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements for
details of the remuneration payable to the Directors.

TEEERWRSE

BERELDZZEGNIE  MTBELE
FRREBLTIFMEZEGHNKE - AATFED
RARESESREEZ RN - UEEERH
TEFRRREEBNFHMFE - ARBNH
MEZEenTEAEKBRENT

a. BYNEREANBZHEZFUREEBH
TEELSREBAENMENEE
YEEMBEEERHMREEA BB
il R

b. BRETHMEEELSREEAENE
FRRAEABIERE  UBESMEKT
ELR SR E AR R BE S AENE - G A B
RURSI RGEBEEREMEEAS -
BrEZ -

$rENE B o e B E0E B SN AR A B A8k R Bk
R FNEBREELBFRIT RS
#FoRBE_T-NAFt_A=1—BL#F
B FWEEeRTREgH MMEZES
REHEZEE  UHE—Z—\FHBRFE
RNRTER 2 FERS UREZFEANT
EE2BAFE -

RIBCXEATREB.LEE  EFHALA
FASRERBRBEARRNTES - FHRE
NEEMENHBRL2HEEMBHRRME
12 -

Annual Report 2019 3k

79



80

Corporate Governance Report
rEERNE

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary’s biography is set out in the section
under “Directors and Key Personnel Profiles” of this annual
report. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
company secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control and risk management systems over the
Group’s asset and shareholders’ interests, as well as for
reviewing such systems’ effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against misstatement or loss, and to manage risks of failure in
the Group’s operational systems. The systems include a well-
established organisational structure with clearly defined lines
of responsibility and authority, which is designed to safeguard
assets from inappropriate use, maintain proper accounts,
ensure compliance with regulations and regulate the handling
and dissemination of inside information of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has,
through the audit committee with the Group’s internal audit
team and the assistance of the management, conducted a
review of the Group’s internal control and risk management
system, including without limitation to financial control,
operational control, and compliance control. The Board
assesses the effectiveness of internal controls by considering
reviews performed by the audit committee, executive
management and auditors.

The Board is of the view that the internal control and
risk management systems are effective and there are no
irregularities, improprieties, fraud or other deficiencies that
suggest material deficiency in the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Total auditor’s remuneration for the fiscal year 2019 in
relation to statutory audit work of the Group amounted to
HK$1,326,000 of which a sum of HK$1,132,000 was paid to
HLM CPA Limited.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on payment
of dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the
Company and the Group and the conditions and factors as
set out in the dividend policy (including but not limited to
the Group’s financial results, cash flow position, business
conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings,
capital requirements and expenditure plans), dividends may
be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a financial
year and any final dividend for a financial year will be subject
to the shareholders’ approval.

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETINGS ON REQUISITION
BY SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) of the
Company. Two or more shareholders holding in aggregate
of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at the general
meeting of the Company may send a written request to the
Board of the Company to request for an EGM. The written
requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned, must
state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at
the registered office of the Company.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general meetings
may follow the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
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PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

1/F, Building 20E, Phase 3

Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2314 1282

Fax: (852) 2314 1708

Email: investor@leespharm.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents,
and these documents are published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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HLM CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

B X BED

Rooms 1501-8, 15th Floor, Tai Yau Building
181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
F U L EoE 18158

KA KE15H1501-8%

Tel T56: (852) 3103 6980

Fax f#E.: (852) 3104 0170

E-mail ##: info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF LEE’S PHARMACEUTICAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 95 to 292, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Revenue recognition
(refer to notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated
financial statements)

The Group’s revenue amounted to HK$1,219 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019. Sales of goods are recognised
as revenue when goods are delivered and titles have been
passed.

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators
of the Group and therefore there is an inherent risk of
manipulation of the timing of recognition of revenue.
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Our response

Our main procedures in relation to revenue recognition
included:

- Obtaining evidence regarding the transfer of effective
control of ownership.

- Testing the key internal controls over revenue
recognition, and assessing whether the accounting policy
related to revenue recognition was applied appropriately
and consistently throughout the year.

— On a sample basis, making selections from sales records
and delivery records, and tracing to their contracts,
delivery orders and customer’s acknowledgement of
receipts, and paying special attention to samples before
and after the end of the reporting period to assess
whether the relevant revenue was recognised in the
correct period.

Based on our procedures described, we found that the amount
and timing of the revenue recorded were supported by
available evidence.

Valuation of retirement benefits on defined
benefit plan

(refer to note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements)

The Group entered into service contracts with the executive
directors to provide certain retirement benefits. There is
judgement in determining valuation of the retirement benefits
as recorded at the end of the reporting period. The valuation
is based on a number of assumptions including discount rate,
growth rate of salary and life expectancy.
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Our response

Our main procedures in relation to the valuation of the
retirement benefits on defined benefit plan included:

- Assessing the independence and competence of the
independent external valuer appointed by the Group to
calculate the fair value of the retirement benefits.

- Assessing the accuracy and relevance of the input data
provided by management to the independent external
valuer by challenging and corroborating the market
data and information from similar transactions from
independent sources.

— Evaluating appropriateness of the methodology and
assumptions used by the independent external valuer.

— Testing mathematical accuracy of the underlying
valuation.

We found the methodology and key assumptions to be
reasonable.

Intangible assets recognition and impairment
assessment
(refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group reported intangible assets
of HK$695 million, of which HK$468 million were capitalised
development expenditure and HK$227 million were license
fees.

Development expenditure mainly comprised of development
of pharmaceutical products. The Group capitalised eligible
product development costs upon meeting the criteria as
described in Hong Kong Accounting Standard 38 “Intangible
Assets” (“HKAS 38”). Capitalisation criteria assessment
requires significant management judgement and there is
measurement uncertainty at inception and throughout the
lives of the individual projects.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Management is required to assess at the end of each reporting
period whether any indicator of impairment exists, which
requires significant management judgement and assumptions
with reference to the ability to use or sell the products, its
future market or economic development.

Our response

Our main procedures in relation to the recognition of
intangible assets included:

— Gaining an understanding of the business process
undertaken by management to assess the appropriate
accounting treatment for each project.

— Assessing the reasonableness of recognition and
eligibility criteria for intangible assets by challenging the
key assumptions used or estimates made in capitalising
the cost.

— Testing on a sample basis the expenditure capitalised
against source documents and signed contracts.

—  Assessing the ownership of license fees.

Our main procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of intangible assets included:

- Assessing management’s determination of the
impairment based on our understanding of the nature of
the Group’s business.

—  Assessing whether there are any indicators of impairment
by understanding the business, rationale for the products
under development.

— Discussing with and interviewing the responsible staff
and managers on the progress and future prospects of
respective development projects.

- Selecting products with significant development cost
and request for independent valuation to be done to
substantiate their carrying amounts.
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Based on our procedures described, we found the recognition
and impairment assessment on intangible assets to be
reasonable.

Impairment assessment of goodwill
(refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements)

Management is required to assess at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any indicator that goodwill may be
impaired. If any such indicator exists, the management shall
estimate the recoverable amount of the asset.

Our response

Our main procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of goodwill included:

— Assessing management’s determination of the Group’s
cash-generating units based on our understanding of the
nature of the business and the economic environment in
which the cash-generating units operate.

- Based on our knowledge of the business and industry,
challenging the reasonableness of the underlying key
assumptions and data used in the cash flow forecasts
(including revenue growth rate, operating profit, and
discount rate used).

Based on our procedures described, we found the estimations

of management in relation to goodwill are supported by
plausible evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Fair value measurement of unlisted
investments held as financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements)

The Group held several unlisted investments on a combination
of market observable inputs and valuation techniques. The
Group’s fair value measurement of the financial assets arising
from the unobservable inputs used in determining the fair
value of the unlisted investments was grouped under Level 3
of fair value hierarchy.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held several unlisted
investments which were measured at fair value amounted to
HK$136 million, representing 3.74% of the Group’s total assets
as at 31 December 2019. These unlisted investments had
significant unobservable inputs in the valuation, and hence
were categorised within Level 3 of fair value hierarchy.

The valuations of these unlisted investments are conducted by
an independent qualified valuer. The appropriateness of the
valuation is dependent on determination of different valuation
techniques and certain key assumptions. With different
valuation techniques and assumptions applied, the valuation
result can vary significantly.

As the unlisted investments are considered significant due to
the size of the balance and the inherent judgement involved
in determining the fair value measurement, is considered as a
key audit matter.

The fair value was determined using market approach, income
approach and reference to the prices of underlying investment
portfolio quoted by administrator. The determination of fair
value measurement requires the management to exercise
their judgement to ensure the appropriateness of the estimates
and assumptions.
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Our response

Our procedures in relation to management’s fair value
measurement of unlisted investments included:

— Evaluating the independent professional valuer’s

competence, capabilities and objectivity.

- Focusing on the valuation methodologies and assumptions

of unlisted fund investments that were classified as level
3 in the fair value hierarchy and involving valuation
specialists in evaluating and assessing:

—  the valuation techniques through comparison with
the valuation techniques that are commonly used in

the market;

- the validation of observable inputs using external
market data; and

- the reasonableness of management’s assumptions.

— Checking the accuracy and reasonableness of the input

data provided by management to the independent
professional valuer.

- Review sensitivity analysis in consideration of the

potential impact of reasonably possible upside or
downside changes in these key assumptions.

Based on our procedures described, we found the impairment

assessment on unlisted investments adopted by management
to be reasonable.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as

a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial

of the consolidated financial statements,

statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

HLM CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Lap Chi
Practising Certificate Number: P0O4084

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
melERk

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_T-NF+-A=T—HLFE

2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-)N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt aE FTHER FAT
Revenue e 5 1,218,913 1,137,626
Cost of sales SHE AR (420,657) (391,255)
Gross profit EF 798,256 746,371
Other income H s 8 75,694 52,069
Other gains and losses, net H ol R EHEF5E 9 (91,680) 239,156
Selling and distribution expenses  4& kD #HE (251,759) (221,740)
Administrative expenses THER (239,088) (188,926)
Provision for impairment loss on 75 & ER(EEIEREEFH
financial assets, net (73) (6,823)
Research and development MEKRFAEER
expenses (149,945) (153,171)
Profit from operations Syl 10 141,405 466,936
Finance costs B TSR AR 11 (6,624) (4,710)
Share of results of associates DGERE NP A (11,895) (15,842)
Profit before taxation FR A5 Al A 122,886 446,384
Taxation 1A 14 (59,541) (56,621)
Profit for the year REE R 63,345 389,763
Attributable to: A AT -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ =N 125,553 418,269
Non-controlling interests IR (62,208) (28,506)
63,345 389,763
HK cents HK cents
Al il
Earnings per share BAREA
Basic R 16 21.22 70.67
Diluted e 16 21.21 70.28
The notes on pages 104 to 292 form an integral part of these 51048 ZE 52928 2 i@ LS4 6 BME

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
reBalkHEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NE+-A=1+—HBLEE

—2-NEF

HK$’000
FH

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive (expense)
income:
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries

Reclassification of other reserves
upon deemed disposal of an
associate

Share of other comprehensive income
(expense) of associates

Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Fair value changes of financial
assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

R F
Hth 2 (F ) Wees

Hgn e BH O BER R AR ¢

BN B AR BERRBE 2
MR ERR

AR S H & — B & 2 Bl
BN BEMERE

DEBENR 2 it 2 E RS
(A
HER T esHmoReBa AR ¢

BAHEEREMEEKE
SRS EE 2 N EES

Other comprehensive (expense) income
for the year, net of tax

AEZEMbE2E(FI X)W
HIFRTHIA

Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year

AEZ2E(FX) BB

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TIATEERFEEmE S
(R4
ZA/NCIEZZS DN
FEIER AR

The notes on pages 104 to 292 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2019
RZZE—NFT+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
=t ISEN —T)\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt aE FTHER FAT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B REE 17 796,309 608,639
Intangible assets mEE 18 694,617 587,049
Lease premium for land THAEER 19 = 132,024
Goodwill Bk 20 3,900 3,900
Interests in associates N ey 21 15,802 27,623
Financial assets at fair value BRATFERREBERS RIS
through profit or loss BE 22 59,217 36,362
Financial assets at fair value BATHESEBEMEE R
through other comprehensive HIRRE B 75 & B
income 23 614,921 606,415
Deferred tax assets RIETIEE B 36 14,198 —
2,198,964 2,002,012
Current assets REEE
Lease premium for land T EEER 19 = 2,913
Inventories "rE 24 255,585 211,673
Trade receivables eSS E 5 BRI 25 153,039 149,495
Other receivables, deposits and EAbEYRIE « 1=E RIE
prepayments A 26 174,440 98,639
Advance to associates BTSN R 2B 28 42,738 38,713
Loan receivables FEWE TR 27 — 26,990
Pledged bank deposits BRI 29 40,345 46,524
Time deposits TE BT 29 410,136 207,298
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTHERR 29 364,994 222,296
1,441,277 1,004,541
Current liabilities REIAME
Trade payables JERTE SRR 30 80,145 66,079
Other payables and accruals Bt 5RIA R ERT B R 31 605,187 447,757
Bank and other borrowings IRITREABER 32 144,834 129,234
Lease liabilities/Obligations under T E& & FIEHEAE
finance leases 33, 34 9,745 858
Tax payables JER A IE 68,582 32,897
908,493 676,825
Net current assets REEEFE 532,784 327,716
Total assets less current EELERRBAE
liabilities 2,731,748 2,329,728
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PBIRR

At 31 December 2019
RZZ—hF+=ZA=+—H

Notes HK$’000
k=3 FTHER
Capital and reserves ERRHE
Share capital &N 37 29,396
Reserves (e 38 2,266,504
Equity attributable to the AAREE AELER
owners of the Company 2,295,900
Non-controlling interests IR A 40 181,538
Total equity R 2,477,438
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEBE 36 71,631
Lease liabilities/Obligations under FE&E FEHSAE
finance leases 33, 34 13,364
Derivative financial liabilities PTERMTBBE 35 80,085
Retirement benefits RRAEF 41 89,230

254,310

2,731,748

The notes on pages 104 to 292 form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 292
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lee Siu Fong
TNE
DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FAARRARL

Investments
revaluation
reserve

Share-hased

Merger compensation
difference reserve
WRff
MR
HK$'000
Tén

Other
TESErVes

i
HK$ 000
AR

Rt
HK$'000
AR

BEEDT
HK$'000
Tin

9200 18661 64787 33726
= 5,461 2 s
= (@47) = .

92,545

REREEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
(E—EB-NFTA=T—HILFE

Attributable
to non-
controlling
interests

Retained
profits

Exchange

reserve Sub-total Total
EXff
HK$'000

TEn

A it
HK§'000  HK$'000
TEn T

FERRERE &t
HK$000  HK$'000
Tin T

(80236) 1403033

2,210,543
5461
1,39

21526 2,238,069
5461
1,395

56 56

92,545 218,412 310,957

2,236 2,236

- (1967
125553 125553

(19672)
63,345

Share Share
capital  premium
kx  RitiE
HK$'000 HK$000
1 T
At 1 January 2019 RE-nE
i 20601 73L7L
Employee share option benefits  EEETERT = =
Exercise of share options filehiE 1,828
Share of reserve of an AM-EBEREZ
associate HE
Share options lapsedinan ~ A-EEELA%
associate ke
Gain on deemed disposal of  BALENER A
interests in subsidiaries wME
(Note 51.3) (Hs3)
Capital contribution from HiRERLE
non-controlling interests
Repurchase and cancellation of Bt
ordinary shares (Note 37) ERR(an) (19,453)
Profit (loss) for the year RERRTIER) =
Other comprehensive income A5 £ (12
(expense) for the year Ya(Fx)
- Exchange differenceson 5\ HEAFE
translation of financial RRAFZEN
statements of overseas 28
subsidiaries
- Share of other ~HEBEAT
comprehensive income A2E
of associates i
- Fair value changes of -BATEREH
financial assets at fair f2EkE
value through other A
comprehensive income BE/OT
29
Total comprehensive income. ~~ AEE2ANE
(expense) for the year (Fx)ag
2018 inal dividend paid BHZE-)\554
(Note 15) & (fit1s)
019 interim dividend paid 2 ZF-71574
(Note 15) R (Hik15)
At 31 December 2019 RE-NET2R
=t- 714,146

9,200 23,675

(42,112)

125,553 65,988

(49754)  (49,754)

(10662 (10662)

157,404 1468172 2,295,900

(45,297)

(649)

(49,754

(10,662)

181538 2477438
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
heo A fRE SR TR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

I EINE
Attributable
Share-based Investments to non-
Share Share Merger  compensation Other  revaluation Exchange Retained controlling
capital premium  difference reserve TESrves reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
IREA
e Rirkf afEE  ZMeRk HbRE  RESNER ik R 5 SERERER &t

HKO0D  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKS00D  HKSOD0  HKSO0D  HKSOO0  HKSO0D  HKSO00
TEL TR THL ThL TEL TR ThL L TEL TR ThL

At 1 January 2018

-R- E 29,547 724,868 9,200 15,368 41,401 (30,421) (31,809) 1,046,186 1,804,346 (7.414) 1,796,932
Employee share option benefits  EEE i) - - - 4,99 - - - - 4,99 - 49%
Exercise of share options fiikEmhE 54 6,903 - (1,582) - - - - 5375 - 5,375
Share of share-based A-EHEA
compensation reserve ofa  MRAEAZEE
subsidiary il - - - 2 - - - - 2 18 4
Share of reserve of an AE-BREATZ
associate G - - - - 57 - - - 57 - 57
Share options lapsed in an - H‘%s‘ %
associate - - - - ) - - 3 - - -
Share options lapsed in a
subsidiary - - - (143) - - - 143 - - -
(Gain on partial disposal of
interests in a subsidiary - - - - 24,185 - - - 24,185 (4,024) 20,161

Capital contribution from non- ~ FHERE&LE
controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 60,303 60,303

Profit (loss) for the year RERRT(BR) - - - - - - - 418269 418269  (28506) 389763
Other comprehensive (expense)  ZEFE{ZR
income for the year (R
- Exchange differences on —571 N
translation of financial HaRAS
statements of overseas ZBHER
subsidiary - - - - - - (48.,427) - (48,427) 158 (48,269)
- Share of other L AN
comprehensive expense Ef2E
of associates 53 - - - - (1,287) - - - (1,287) = (1,287)
~ Reclassification of other ~IRALE-H
reserves upon deemed BELT ﬂ%
disposal of an associate i
UL - - - - 428 - - - 428 - 428
~ Fair value changes of ~FATERRE
financial assets at fair fh2EkE
value through other JIGHB
comprehensive income BE/LT
29 - - - - - 64,147 - - 64,147 6,991 71,138
Total comprehensive (expense)  AEE2A(H)
income for the year Wsﬁ - - - - @59 G417 (840 4829 410 (@LB) 4L
2017 final dividend paid
(Note 15) - - - - - - S ) () - ()
2018 interim dividend paid
(Note 15) - - - - - - - @) 19 - )
At 31 December 2018

29,601 LI 9,200 18,661 64,787 33,126 (80,236) 1403033 2,210,543 21526 2,238,069

The notes on pages 104 to 292 form an integral part of these F104B £52928 v Bt E454 0%
consolidated financial statements. T2 —3MD -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NE+-_A=+—HLFE

2019 2018
“E-NE —T-N\E
HK$’000 HK$'000
THEL TAT
(Restated)
(L E5)
Operating activities REEK
Profit before taxation BREA A& R 122,886 446,384
Adjustments for: BLREIE A e
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHH 9,491 9,390
Amortisation of lease premium for land TSR R - 3,028
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BEREERTE
equipment 84,651 55,687
Fair value gain in derivative financial PTEEa Gz AT ERZE
liabilities (6,551) -
Fair value loss (gain) in financial assets RATEERERIIR MBEEEL
at fair value through profit or loss, net ATEBEMER)FE 4,705 (29,152)
Foreign exchange (gain) loss, net INISTE (W) BB R (2,071) 8,634
Gain on deemed disposal of associates RALERE AR W - (216,392)
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HERMBE W — (3,805)
Gain on realisation of loan receivables EREREZ W (22,200) _
Interest expenses FERZ 5,759 4,161
Interest income from bank and pledged ROREERRTERZFIEMA
bank deposits (8,529) (6,895)
Interest income from convertible AR TARERET 2 FEBA
instrument and loan receivables (943) (1,482)
Interest income from guaranteed PABESHRXANET 2 2 FEIRIGE 2 F S A
investments measured at amortised
cost (112)
Interest income from advance to B THE D RIFEZFIEMA
associates (1,544) (1,339)
Impairment of intangible assets B EE A 117,652 1,365
(Gain) loss on disposal of plant and HERRE k& () ER
equipment (67) 9
Provision for (reversal of) allowance for AR EEEERE(RE)
expected credit loss 73 (156)
Provision for slow moving stock TS B 697
Provision for retirement benefits RN 6,972
Share-based payments MRS 2 R 5,036
Share of results of associates AEHERAIER 15,842
Rewards to employees in the form of P Emikm A\ RENE S
listed shares 10,667
Write-off of other receivables MR A FE U IR 6,979
Write-off of expired stock MHBHEE 3,912
Write-off of property, plant and MiEm= - BB RRE
equipment 185
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

melenER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NF+_A=1+—HILFE

Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Decrease (increase) in pledged bank
deposits

ZEARYNNCERDRE

FEEM
W E ZR5E N

HitEYHR - e RERFREN

BEMRTERRD (E)

Increase in trade payables BB SR
Increase in other payables and accruals Hi R FIB R E AL
Cash from operations REMEENRE
Interest paid BRFIE
Income tax refund REIFEH
Income tax paid BRFEH
Net cash generated from operating RELBELNESFE
activities
Investing activities REEH
Additions of development cost and license ~ FIZER A & S| E

fee

Advancement to associates

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Decrease (increase) in time deposits with
initial terms of over three months

Increase in convertible instrument

Total interest received

Increase in loans receivables

Purchase of plant and equipment

Payment for construction in progress

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets

Proceeds from redemption of held-to-
maturity financial assets

Repayment from associates

Repayment from loan receivables

Net cash outflow from acquisition of a
subsidiary

RTBE AR ZRANHE

YBRELHEEAR M2 ERETIR

HHEE

WEBRDFEEARETIRNITH
EE

NAEA=A 2 EMERHD
($&m)

AR T AN

RLGEEL

e E SR

AR K&

ERTRMH

HENX - BENIRE MG
HOR

HEENEEZFRSHE

BORZHANKEELME

&R
Wi —FRBARELNRERT
it

R

I
il

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited Z=F A Zfifi % B IR A 7

2019
—E-hF
HK$’000

TRR

352,237
(53,239)
)

(77,498)

6,179
14,105

163,843

397,781
(4,592)
14,795
(8,031)

399,953

(242,366)
(8,000)

(30,793)
(1,551)

123,606
7,737
(7,800)
(64,335)
(53,877)

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
TAT
(Restated)
(&&7))

319,615
(66,768)
(75,578)

(8,506)

(18,609)
40,133
176,373

366,660

(4,160)
52

(41,302)

321,250

(175,737)
(44,751)

(31,150)
(5,913)

(164,155)
(3,724)
8,310
(47,765)
(71,912)
(58,199)

774
11,631

5,938
4,989
1,241



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEREEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2019

S

Notes
st
Net cash used in investing activities ~~ REEBERANREFE
Financing activities METE
New loans raised ST 45
Repayment of loans BEER 45
Proceeds from obligations under finance — BiEME&IEREHE
leases 45
Repayment of lease liabilities/obligations ~ EEHEAE BEHEAE
under finance leases 45
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares FXIE(T{ERE T BARATIS
upon exercise of share options TR 37
Capital contribution from non-controlling ~ JHEREZHE
interests 40
Net proceeds from deemed/partial disposal 134,/ 253 HEME A Fl#ER
of interests in subsidiaries without losing (k=) 2 Frigsua
control R 51.3
Payment on repurchase and cancellation of §&[E [ s 34 L @A 2 3
ordinary shares 37
Dividend paid ERERE 15
Net cash generated from financing METDELENRETH

activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

RERRESERMOED) FHE

R-A-RNREREEEE
IBERZH FE

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

RT=A=t-BHRERRSE
$E

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

RERRESZEDHN
Ra BRI
EHEH

Less: Time deposits with maturity over

three months

W =1AR &S BB

The notes on pages 104 to 292 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

F104EHEFE292 8 7 B ILE
Rz —

#Bin o

2019
—E-hF
HK$’000

TRR

(261,411)

68,713
(53,677)

397,593

(19,672)
(60,416)

323.792

462,334

222,296
8,886

693,516

364,994
410,136

775,130

(81,614)
693,516

“E-NFFTZA=1+—HILFE

2018
TN\
HK$'000
TAT
(Restated)
(&=7))
(570,423)

101,750
(71,332)

1,427
(788)
5,375

60,303

20,161

(61,568)

55,328

(193,845)

396,144
19,997

222,296

222,296
207,298

429,594

(207,298)
222,296

iR e RS

Annual Report 2019

103



104

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-—NF+-A=1+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the section headed “Corporate Information” in this
annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
the developing, manufacturing and sales and marketing
of pharmaceutical products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

—REH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new and amendments to HKASs and
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are relevant for
the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Settlement

HKAS 19
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
HKAS 28 Ventures
Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
HKFRS 9 Compensation
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2015 —
2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the other
new and amendments to HKASs and HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

FERFT IR BB IR EER
%Eiﬁﬂﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁ@u)&ﬁﬂ%

KEERAI LA G
HER ([ EE B EE ) REE
BB ([ BN
A1) REST

RAFER  AEBEREATES
ARG ZAREANEE 2 RA M
BHRERME BB TIFEEESE
AIREEMEREEAN((EBUBHRE
A |) MEER] -

EANBRSENE HE
16%%

EEERRBERER FAEHEEITHEEY
BZEg)-%B

F235%

BFLERE195 AT - BRSEE
ZIEET

EEeER$E28 REEARRAEARLZ
ZIEFT RS

Bbu RS A AR AREZRRIN R
EH 2 155] #

BRMBREREA .  BARBRELN=-ZT
EH) —AEE-_F—+FH

W EENE

BRI XAt E SN - RANFREREAMN
BEAGTENRBEANBHRE LR
HEFTHAKERE LBEFENYB
R RKBE R, RZEEA P ERKRA
HHOBRBELEEATE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”
and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore,
the Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease
in accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16
in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal
to the related lease liabilities adjusted by any prepaid or
accrued lease payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii)
transition. Any difference at the date of initial application
is recognised in the opening retained profits and
comparative information has not been restated.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

FERFT BB B IR EER
(TEBMBREED ) REE
& (&)

BB BHREERFI67HE ]

RN EE R IERE B RE
RBIZE16% - BB B]ESERF 165
BB B & THERISE 175 T | RIA
B

HECESR

AKBEERERATHA  BEEH
TS A5 1657 F& R A BL B E R B
BER G ENFEL17THRREE(BBRMER
TRBEREY) REFAREELHE
LBEEHE IR ASHEHENEHK - M3k
MU ERIEARNBEL RERREBEE
EMAR - Fitt - ARE Y ESHE
RERERBEHMEFENEH -

PR _ZE-NF—A—BHZEFTILHK
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165FMEHMRERAEEZER °

EREEA

W W

AEECEYERABENBRE LR
165 - RFAFERBERERBH(=Z
—hF—A—B)#R -

R_ZE—NF—F—HB ZA&EEHEAS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously

classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-

by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective

lease contracts:

relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” as an
alternative of impairment review;

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial application;

excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application;

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment;
and

used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as
at date of initial application in determining the lease
term for the Group’s leases with extension and
termination options.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

FERFT IR BB IR EER
(TEBMBREED ) REE
& (&)

BB BREERFI67HE ]

("
fEREBA ()

BB SRR 1R R B B 1658
R TR AL - AREERS
AREAOEHBEN  REERER
RIMIAERIEE S @ ERIB17RH R
BEERERAN FEREATE

i. XBRBBEERFEI7RIEE
SRBERKANEE HERRESR
BIMERDE  HAHESSAE

il

i. BESESANERERRBET
12 A RERNEERAEREER
ENEERE

i. RERXNERBHFEEAEEER
MR VI B R

iv.  BUELUEEERERELUERIE R A
B MOS0 4 70 R 1 T B 40 4 B R
BRRE R

v. BEREXERBEHNEERBER
REREEASETEERRE L
EEENEEES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR SRR T ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAMEEENBHREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG ([ERMBHRERER ) REE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 7] (&)

(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) BB HREERE1I67HE ]
(#&)

As a lessee (Continued) 1ERABEA (F)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases EHRLANOBRKEHEEZHENNE

previously classified as operating leases, the Group has EaER ASBEEREXERB 8K

applied incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group AHBEEE RIS ERMEK - PR

entities at the date of initial application. The weighted Fl2 hn#e 5 1E S B 5K A3 52.83% ©

average incremental borrowing rate applied is 2.83%.

At

1 January

2019

R=ZB—hF

—H—H

Note HK$’000
{iEss THERT

Operating lease commitments disclosed R-Z—N\F+_-_A=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 R R A & T B 11,958

Lease liabilities discounted at relevant  ZABEEEFFIRITENHEARE
incremental borrowing rates

Less: Recognition exemption B HERERE
— short-term leases — I E
Lease liabilities relating to operating RIER BB IR EERFE 1652 FER
leases recognised upon application of AR EHENHERE
HKFRS 16
Add: Obligations under finance leases Il : R=E—/\F+ZA=+—HER
recognised at 31 December 2018 R LS M &R (b)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—A—ANHEEAE
Analysed as: DR
Current Vi)
Non-current FEMEN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1
January 2019 comprises the following:

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

FERFT IR BB IR EER
(TEBMBREED ) REE
& (&)

BB BREERFI67HE ]

=
=]

(4
fEREBA ()

R-E-hF-—A—RERAREEZR
EEEBEATSEA :

Right-of-
use assets
EREEE
Notes HK$’000
BiaE FAT
Included in “Property, plant and BIREIYZE - BE R&EIF
equipment”:
Right-of-use assets relating to operating A& B SHRE LR FE165REED 1
leases recognised upon application of RS ERANEREEE
HKFRS 16 9,659
Reclassified from lease premium for land Bt EERAEHHB (a) 134,937
Adjustment included in property, plant RIEBFESFERF 175 AYE « H
and equipment under HKAS 17 B KRR R
— Assets previously held under finance  —LRIZREHERANEE
leases (b) 3,090
147,686
By class: LRSS ¢
Leasehold land MELTHb 134,937
Leased premises HEMHE 9,659
Motor vehicles E 3,090
147,686
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERMEEBUBHREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG ([EBHBEREER ] REE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 7] (&)

(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) BB BHEERFELI6H HE ]
(&
As a lessee (Continued) ERABEA (E)
The following table summarises the impact of transition TREMAEEE SN BRELEDNFEL6
to HKFRS 16 on retained profits at 1 January 2019. RH—_T—NF—H—BRBEHNHO
@,
Impacts of
adopting
HKFRS 16 at
1 January
2019
R=ZB-N&F
—H—H
HAEBIMK
HREEAEI6H
o2
Note HK$’000
Bt e FAT
Retained profits R B F

Right-of-use assets relating to operating JERA&E B SRS ERE 1650 EEE 1
leases recognised upon application of RIS SRR REEE

HKFRS 16 9,659
Lease liabilities relating to operating FERBAME R EERFE 1654 HE R

leases recognised upon application of RICLEHEEANEERE

HKFRS 16 (9.258)
Adjustment on prepaid lease payment  FAREFENESZIE (©) (401)
Impact at 1 January 2019 RZZF-—NF—A_BNEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Notes:

@

(b)

©

Upfront payments for leasehold lands were classified
as lease premium for land as at 31 December 2018.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, the non-current and
current portions of lease premium for land amounting to
HK$132,024,000 and HK$2,913,000 respectively were
reclassified to right-of-use assets.

In relation to assets previously under finance leases, the
Group recategorised the carrying amounts of the relevant
assets which were still under leases as at 1 January 2019
amounting to HK$3,090,000 as right-of-use assets. In
addition, the Group reclassified the obligations under
finance leases of HK$858,000 and HK$782,000 to lease
liabilities as current and non-current liabilities respectively
at 1 January 2019.

Rent-free period

These relate to prepaid lease payment for leases of
properties in which the lessors provided rent-free period.
The carrying amount of the prepaid lease payment as at
1 January 2019 was adjusted to right-of-use assets at
transition.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

2. BERAXNBEEBUBEREER
(TEBMBREED ) REE
& (&)

BB BREERFI67HE ]

(&
RN (8)
fiax -

(a) MELHWHENFR=ZT—N\F+A
=t+—B2EATHAEER - NE
REBV KR EENFELI6HRE - i
HEBERERD KRBT S (DB A
132,024,000/t 2 2,913,000/ 7t )
BNDHERERAEESE -

(b)) FEMBMEBEETHEEMS @ ~EE
ERR =T hF—A—BNHEAET
KI1EREE & 2= (AR E(E 3,090,000/ 7T ) &
B AFERAEEE - 1IN AEER
TE-NF-A—AERERELRE
858,000/ 7t &2 782,000/ L E #1548
REEEE  HRARBABRIERS
=l

(c) #HE
ZEEPHARERAMZ YERES
ENHEEREER R_F—NF—A

— B BNEEFEZREEERBE
KRR ERREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

FERFT BB B IR EER
(TEBMBREED ) REE
& (&)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) BB BHEERFELI6H HE ]

(&

EREAA (H)

As a lessee (Continued)

RZE—-NF—R—BZEEMBRR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial KPERNSEEELATHAE - °%
position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not SEPENBRWARBEENA -
affected by the changes have not been included.

The following adjustments were made to the amounts

112

Carrying Carrying
amount amount
previously under
reported at  Impacts of HKFRS 16
31 December adopting at 1 January
2018 HKFRS 16 2019
R-B-hF
F i —-A—H
R=ZZ-N\F BEEE
TZA=t—-H HHEBHE BBERSEEN
EHr HERUFELE FI6REHRZ
EEE HHRE BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TR
Notes (audited) (restated)
st (g=51) (7&&:51)
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 608,639 144,596 753,235
Lease premium for land — THHEEER-ERD
non-current (@) 132,024 (132,024) -
Lease premium for land — current ~ THHEER - 5i# (@ 2,913 (2,913) =
Other receivables, deposits and HiBUGE - e RERHE
prepayments (c) 98,639 (401) 98,238
Obligations under finance leases MERSAE— S
— current (b) (858) 858 -
Obligations under finance leases HEMERE—FRD
— non-current (b) (782) 782 -
Lease liabilities — current HEEBE-D = (5,669) (5,669)
Lease liabilities — non-current HEAGE D - (5,229) (5,229)

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
December 2019, movements in working capital have
been computed based on opening consolidated statement
of financial position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed

above.

New and amendments to HKASs and
HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKASs and HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKAS 1  Definition of Material*

and HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Definition of a Business?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE
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BB BREERFI67HE ]
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fEREBA ()

Mz : SEREEDEZERBE_T—NF
ToA=StT - HIEFERLEHES
ZBREREME @ £EES2EHT
RBAE-Z—NF—A—BHHD
FAUBHRRARTE -

EEfEE R ER BT EE
A ERIRE B BHREEARE
1&aT

7 o5 B30 4 42 2 44 T 51 B SR A B0 5K
AR E SRR RE BT
R R EAEET -

BEM RS2 REBRALT
175

BRGHRERELRR EAZES!

BE G R F8H

ZIERT

BEMBREERES KB ES?

BT

BERBREEAFY EENKYE

¥ BEGEER

FIGRREBHH

HELRETH B

Hl

BAMBHREENE REERHBELANA
10 RERGHE  AEEZRMEAEHE
RIE285% 2 57T Efad-g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKASs and
HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020, with earlier application permitted
2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions

for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1
January 2020, with earlier application permitted

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021, with earlier application permitted
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKASs
and HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential
amendments “the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards” will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of these new and amendments to HKASs
and HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and amendments to HKASs and HKFRSs would
have a material impact on its results of operations and
financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In additions, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019)
or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirely,
which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR SRR T ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s
and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. Gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair

value, except that:

3. FESFHHEE)

EBEEOH (&)

RURE B8 - PTIE 2 R A8 R| B B R A
AEZABRBEEZ A FERER - HET
SR B BRSO

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”
at the acquisition date;

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after reassessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that does not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS
9 would be accounted for on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had disposed directly of the
previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost
less any identified impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indicator that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR

AR SRR T ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Goodwill (Continued)

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described below.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset within the scope
of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the associate is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

- the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or
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ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer
for more than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amounts receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. Where the
contract contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the Group applies
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 of not adjusting
the transaction price for the effects of any significant
financing component.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Manufacturing of proprietary products and trading
of licensed-in products

Revenue from manufacturing of proprietary products
and trading of licensed-in products are recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the product
and accepted by the customers. No right of return by
customers is allowed based on either contractual terms
or in business practices. Revenue is thus recognised
when the products are delivered to the customers and
the customers accepted the products. There is generally
only one performance obligation and the consideration
include no variable amount. Invoices are usually payable
ranging between 30 and 120 days.

Other income

Services is recognised at the point in time when control
of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on services have been rendered to customers. Invoices
for above services are generally issued on completion of
services rendered.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Contract balances

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing

Upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in note 2

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

(a) Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

Upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with

transitions in note 2 (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

©)

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of machinery and equipment
and premises that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

- the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

- any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

- an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

TEESBER(E)

HE (&)

RIBHEE2 2 BEEAEEY R REER

$F16%5% (&)
AEEEREA (B)

(b) EHESENMEEEEEHES

AEBHNEERARKBESESR
REAAXERNEERTEEE
BEEENEERS NREBEALY
XERAEHHENERRR - A%
EEHEEEEERERMAZIAR
% EHHEMEEEEEHER
NRBAEEEHARBERERER

(c) EREEE
EREEENKARE

HERBNVRAEDHE

- HEHEHMMALZA N
B P

BRI & KA
RENEMEERETR

- AEEBANEMNBER

IDF N

- AKEERHEBRBEBE
ZE - ERAMEEMELX
HAAMEEMEEZHEEGR
0GR P A5 E RO AR AE P 38 A

EFEETRCAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

Upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transitions in note 2 (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

©

(@)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use assets and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item within
which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 97)
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost
of right-of-use assets.
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Are R mR N
For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_T-NF+_A=T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

Upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with

transitions in note 2 (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(e) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.

The lease payments include:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

- variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable by the Group

under residual value guarantees;

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the

option; and

- payments of penalties for terminating a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising

an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESHBERE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leasing (Continued) FHE (&)

Upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with

RIBHEE2 2 BEERAEBYRERE 2R

transitions in note 2 (Continued) £1655 ()
The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEFEZEATN ()

(e) Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-

use assets) whenever:

(e) MEREE)

MR A TEAMBERLZ — A%
EHBERBEETENGE(ALY

TERAE R E EETTIHERE)

the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review/expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)

Upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with

transitions in note 2 (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

®

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

- the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

- the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a
lease component and one or more additional lease
or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
Prior to 1 January 2019
The Group as a lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy
on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR SRR T ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
Prior to 1 January 2019 (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are
considered as integral part of lease payments, the
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange differences
on monetary items receivable from or payable to
a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of
the net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group’s interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong Dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences is re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals, the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost to those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as a deduction
from the carrying amount of the relevant asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purposes of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefits are provided to eligible staff of
the Group. Hong Kong employees enjoy retirement
benefits under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.
The employer’s monthly contribution is 5% of each
employee’s monthly salary with maximum amount of
HK$1,500 per month for each employee.

The pension schemes covering all the Group’s employees
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Taiwan
are defined contribution schemes at various funding
rates, and are in accordance with the local practices and
regulations.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans (including state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme)
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plan

For defined retirement benefits plan, the cost of providing
benefits is determined by the valuation conducted by
independent valuer at the end of the reporting period,
amortised over the expected average remaining working
lives of the participating directors.

The retirement benefits recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the cost of
providing benefits, based on the valuation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the service. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payment arrangements
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details
regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-
settled share-based transactions are set out in note 42
to the consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share-based compensation reserve). At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to share-based
compensation reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payment arrangements
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reserve in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion
of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)
Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax
treatments, the Group considers whether it is probable
that the relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain
tax treatment used, or proposed to be use by individual
group entities in their income tax filings. If it is
probable, the current and deferred taxes are determined
consistently with the tax treatment in the income tax
filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress as described below), are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets (other than construction in progress) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-
line method, at the following rates per annum:

5% — 20%
20% — 33%
20% — 33%
20% — 33%

Buildings

Leasehold improvement

Plant and machinery

Office and laboratory equipment and
electronic equipment

Motor vehicles 10% — 33%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and

depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Intangible assets
License fee (intangible assets acquired separately)

License fees are consideration paid for the license
contracts and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. License
fees with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are ready for intended use over the remaining
license period. The license period ranges from 3 to 10
years, with certain licenses contain renewal clause.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

License fees with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

TEESBER(E)

WX BERZEAE

EHERIBEFERZEERYPAED
TELRENGR WX BEERE
THETIMERER - HEXWMEYE - K
FEh&REREMEENREHERER
BEHEMGRAEKRAENEZRETE
W IR HER ©

BEEE
SRR (BIRB 2RI EE)

BMEBEDRENGONZRE @ AR
X AR R 5T B 5H N REFRERBSIER ©
BEAREANERAFM 2 ENETAAE
BEREARERBRT ENB T IAS
e ENPNF=21+F ETEHNZ=
BEBGR -

BEHEERNEETDRETER M
EMEETES 2 P ERARRELEALRK -

ATREAMERFER 2 ENE TR
B RETREER (B ) -

Annual Report 2019 3 149



150

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Development cost (internally-generated intangible
assets — research and development expenditure)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development of licensed-in products or from the
development phase of internal projects is recognised if,
and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

- the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first
meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Development cost (internally-generated intangible
assets — research and development expenditure)
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation commences when the development of
products completes. Amortisation of development cost
of internal projects is over the estimated useful life
of 5 years, while amortisation of development cost of
licensed-in products is on the same basis as license fees.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indicator that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indicator exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired. If such
indication exists, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss .
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions (Continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

- the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XTESHHEEME)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued) BB AE)
Financial assets (Continued) MKEEE)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial HBEEZ ERA TS (E)

assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if: VS EERFEEE W :

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of e HBEBEXZARETAKREE
selling in the near term; or £

- on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of - RUIFHERFETDEZRIMBIEA
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manages together and has a recent actual pattern 12 WA HERE AR BERE
of short-term profit-taking; or 5k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments/partnership interests designated

as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments/partnership
interest at FVTOCI are subsequently measured
at fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments/partnership
interests, and will be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Dividends are included in profit or loss.

(iii) Financial assets as at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

This category contains investments in life insurance
policies. The Group accounts for the investments at

FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains

and losses” line item.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

3. FESFHHEE)

BB A(E)

MBEE(HE)

HHEEZDERAKTE(E)

Q)

iii)

BERBEAFEEEEMEE WS
FIBR T A AR

AP EEBEMEEREIIRZ
BETA SR ERNRERLRR
RNHEFE - ERVEEHELN
Yoas b 5 1R EL At 2 T K e R
RIBERFEERTR - BAERE
FHE o REF RSB TEHRSBEEL
ERARE AR BE I
e RARDBECHE -

2 NG B FE AR MR AL B Y R R B
ZEEa TARENR BN EaR T
FERR - BRI B ARRER R @ FE D
BRERA - [REFT AR -

RAVEEBREAECVBEE

AN ELEBHRASTIZ A HEEB
Hip 2ER R RIS E RIE A FEE
BEMEEREAE Y HEEE
Bz A HEEBEGDE -

ZRBBERABRRIRE - &
SEHRERER A HEEBERD
N

BATEEBBNHESMHEE
1R B R A R B MY A T E 3
B TWATEKAREERES
R - RMIBR R F
BB TR IER S B BRI T
AR B3I &+ 3 5 AT E AU 25
RE#E AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables (excluding
prepayments and other items which were not financial
instruments), deposits, loan receivables, advance to
associates, pledged bank deposits, time deposits and
cash and bank balances) which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component. The
ECL on these assets are assessed collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR SRR T ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12 months ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.

@

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 365
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

®

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating
of “investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For loan commitments, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is
considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition of a loan
commitment, the Group considers changes in the
risk of a default occurring on the loan to which a
loan commitment relates; for financial guarantee
contracts, the Group considers the changes in the
risk that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Q)

iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 365 days pass due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the basis:

- Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s trade receivables and other receivables
(excluding prepayment and other items which
were not financial instruments), deposits, loan
receivables, advance to associates, pledged
bank deposits, time deposits and cash and
bank balances;

- Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

- External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Except for financial assets at FVTOCI the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
fair value of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial liability is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified is held for trading if:

- it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

- the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as FVTPL.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. For financial liabilities that contain embedded
derivatives, such as derivative financial liabilities, the
changes in fair value of the embedded derivatives are
excluded in determining the amount to be presented
in other comprehensive income. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are
recognised in other comprehensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they
are transferred to retained profits upon derecognition of
the financial liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables,
other payables (excluding receipt in advance and other
tax payable), obligations under license contracts,
retirement benefits and bank and other borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group
is initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, is subsequently measured at the
higher of:

- the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the revenue recognition policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derecognition — substantial modification of financial
liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of
a financial liability with substantially different terms as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net
of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different
from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly, such
exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms
is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or
fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss
on the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities (under
HKFRS 9 since 1 January 2018)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial liabilities’ original effective
interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial
liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial
liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and on hand, and time deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

(i) the entity is an associate or joint venture of
the Group (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) the entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the Group is an associate of the third
entity;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group.

Close members of the family of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the

entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on the historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. As at
31 December 2019, the carrying amount of goodwill is
HK$3,900,000 (net of nil impairment loss) (31 December
2018: HK$3,900,000, net of nil impairment loss). Details
of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Determination of impairment loss event and
estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on past-
due status of debtors as groupings of various debtors
on this basis demonstrate similar loss patterns with
shared credit risk characteristics. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Determination of impairment loss event and
estimated impairment of trade receivables
(Continued)

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$153,039,000, net of allowance for ECL
of HK$440,000 (31 December 2018: HK$149,495,000,
net of the impairment loss of HK$381,000).

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s financial
assets (including financial assets at FVTPL and financial
assets at FVTOCI) and financial liabilities (including
retirement benefits and derivative financial liabilities) are
measured at fair value with fair value being determined
based on significant unobservable inputs using valuation
techniques. Judgement and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the
relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating
to these factors could result in material adjustments
to the fair value of these instruments. Details of the
fair value measurement are disclosed in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment and right of use
assets

Being part of the principal activities, the Group acquired
certain license fees and capitalised development cost
relating to the development of pharmaceutical products,
since these costs meet the recognition criteria of HKAS
38. The Group reviews the carrying amount of all
intangible assets held at the end of the reporting period
and HK$117,652,000 (2018: HK$1,365,000) impairment
was considered necessary for these assets.

As at 31 December 2019, in view of impairment
indicators, the Group performed impairment assessment
on property, plant and equipment approximately
HK$641,225,000 and right-of-use assets property
approximately HK$155,084,000 (31 December
2018: property, plant and equipment approximately
HK$608,639,000) respectively. No impairment losses (31
December 2018: no) in respect of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets have been recognised
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Deprecation

The Group’s net carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets) s as at 31
December 2019 was approximately HK$796,309,000 (31
December 2018: approximately HK$608,639,000). The
Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment,
using the straight-line method, at the rate 5% to 33%
per annum, commencing from the date the assets
is placed into productive use. The estimated useful
lives and dates that the Group places the assets into
productive use reflect the directors’ estimate of the
periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the assets.

Share-based payments

The Group recognises share-based payments expense
on options granted. Share-based payments expense is
based on the estimated fair value of each option at its
grant date, the estimation of which requires the directors
to make assumptions about future volatility of the
Group’s stock price, future interest rates and the timing
with respect to exercise of the options. The effects of a
change in one or more of these variables could result
in a materially different fair value. The fair value of the
share options granted during the year was estimated at
HK$5,288,000 (2018: HK$6,322,000) and the amount
associated with share-based payments for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is HK$5,461,000 (2018:
HK$5,036,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes in
various jurisdictions. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amounts received and
receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers during the year which is recognised at point in
time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Chairman of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose
of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on the types of good delivered.
No operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Proprietary — Manufacturing and sales of self-
products developed pharmaceutical products
Licensed-in —  Trading of licensed-in pharmaceutical

products products
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NE+-_A=+—HLEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DHER(H)
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and results T 7 R A
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and REBZBERERERAIZRIEED
results by reportable and operating segments: BT -
Proprietary products Licensed-in products Consolidated
ERER SIEER ga

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
=LAl T\ eyl —T-/\F et okl —T-/\F

HK$'000 EEEGTEIVE  HK$'000 EETTECIOE  HK$'000 TSIV

TR AL ThR THT TRR ThL

Segment revenue k6 535,627 683,286 (WALEIRE 1,137,626

Segment operating results DL EE 251,376 PRERRE 195,821 157,706 [YYETeY 408,239

Research and development FiENFEZR

expenses (26,885) (7.699) IRERENENY  (145.472) QRGUERIDY  (153,171)
Impairment of intangible & AER(E

assets = (117,652) (KDY  (117,652) (1,365)
Segment results PHEE 224,491 242,834 (44,891) ) 179,600 253,703
Gain on deemed disposal of S AHEBE AR

associates Uezs - 216,392
Unallocated income FATRWA 19,262 40,725
Unallocated expenses ROERZ (57,457) (43,884)
Profit from operations Eyavi] 141,405 466,936
Finance costs B (6,624) (4,710)
Profit before share of results  A{5EFE D AIZEH

of associates et 134,781 462,226
Share of results of MG EAREE

associates (11,895) (15,842)
Profit before taxation BREE A 122,886 446,384
Taxation #iE (59,541) (56,621)
Profit for the year TEEEF 63,345 389,763
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales in the year (2018: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment results represents the profit earned by
each segment without allocation of central administration
costs including directors’ emoluments, transactions
with associates, fair value changes of certain financial
instruments at FVTPL, interest income, finance costs,
share of results of associates, and income tax expense.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

Proprietary products

Licensed-in products

7 REFR ()

7 BB R AR ()

EXEHRzDBRETIREIIBEL 2
Ygs e RAFERALESBE X5 (=
T-N\FE)-

ANz @t R B 3T AN E
SETBERMER - DEEE TR EF
RITHRAN(BRESHE - B2 Q7
ZRP  BAFEBBERIEZET
BB TRAZRAFEZS  MBKA - B
BRA - DB ERRIEE - UNAE
MRS ) 2150 &0 BRPTIRER @ A o
AR E R EERREETERUEE
BB MFHED RIRB 2T -

DEHEERRRE

AREBEELEB B 2MELE DI
ZONTIR ¢

Consolidated

SHER SlEER Gy
2018 2018 2018
—E-N\E “I-N\E —E-N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAT
Segment assets NHEE 457,940 1,852,998 2,310,938
Unallocated assets RORAE 695,615
Total assets BEME 3,006,553
Segment liabilities PHARE 194,306 321,170 515,476
Unallocated liabilities ROEAE 253,008
Total liabilities AfEesE 768,484
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than interests in associates, deferred tax assets,
part of lease premium for land/right-of-use assets
and financial assets at FVTPL, advance to associates,
loan receivables, pledged bank deposits, time
deposits and cash and bank balances. Goodwill is
allocated to segment of proprietary products; and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than bank and other borrowings, tax payables,
deferred tax liabilities, derivative financial liabilities
and retirement benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEPER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Other segment information (included in Bt 7 SBEX (B 5 &5E w58 7
the measure of segment profit or loss or HWEEZITERTHIERTEE
segment assets or regularly provided to BERREZEF)

the chief operating decision maker)

Proprietary products Licensed-in products Consolidated
EHER SRR &8
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-hF EEmtayltEl —F-0F EEmtagta —F-NF kit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAL TAR TAT ThR TAL

Depreciation of property, % * BB k&fE(BHE

plant and equipment RREEE) T8

(including right-of-use

assets) 55,687
Amortisation of intangible ~ Ef/EE 2

assets 9,390
Additions to non-current  WAFEREREEE

assets (Property, plant IER TG

and equipment, and REWERE)ZEM

intangible assets) during

the year 172,277 127,489 213,099 178,359 385,376 305,848
Impairment of intangible ~ EFAEZHE

assets 117,652 1,365 117,652 1,365
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Geographical information

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
more than 90% of the Group’s revenue was derived
from activities conducted in the PRC, no geographical
information on revenue is presented. The Group’s assets
and liabilities for the year, analysed by geographical
market, are as follows:

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

6. ZHEER(H)

1 BB

REBEE_ZT-—NEFE=_FT-N\FT-H
=+t—HIEFER  AEEBE90% 2 U
wmIRERPBILE 235 - IES
PRt @ D RSl D 2 WEmER - AEE
RAFEEEMSAINMZEERARE
I

The PRC Hong Kong and others Total
HE ERRE @t
2018 2018 2018
N\ —EN\E “EN\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEL THET
Total assets EELE 2,017,209 989,344 3,006,553
Total liabilities AfEEE 343,340 425,144 768,484

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR
CUSTOMERS

For both the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no single customer accounted for 10% or more of the
Group’s total revenue.

7. AREEREFZEH

REZ2_ZT—NEA_ZFT—N\FE+_A
=+ HIEMBEFEE  $ESE—FE(G
AREBEWZEZ10%3K A E o
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8. OTHER INCOME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR SRR T ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

8. Hfttrss

Interest income on:

Bank and pledged bank deposits
Guaranteed investments measured

at amortised cost
Advance to associates

Convertible instrument and loan

receivables

THBEZFBWA
RITR B EIFRITER
A SHR AT E 2 FERIRE

B THE QAR
AR T A K FEIRE R

Total interest income

Government development grants
Rental income from an associate

Incentives from vendor

Research and development income

Sales of research materials
Sundry income

UESY Nt

K B 3 4 B
KEBERBZBS KA
e P 22
fige R BB A

HE TR R

R

The Group received the development grants from
the local government as recognition of the Group’s
performance and development of high-technology

pharmaceutical products.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited Z=F A Zfifi % B IR A 7

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT TAT

8,529 6,895

112
1,339

1,482

9,828
20,925

AEBMU R T BFR A ANRERE R
FZESMXEER M THFRERME) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SR e TS SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE=F-NF+-A=t—HILFE

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 9. HttWEREEFHE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx FAT
Gain on disposal of intangible assets & & EE 2 Wat — 3,805
Gain on deemed disposal of BA LS E AR 2 WS
associates — 216,392
Impairment of intangible assets EREEZRE (117,652) (1,365)
Gain (loss) on disposal of plant and  H&EmME Mk s (EE)
equipment 67 9)
Gain on realisation of loan ERERE R 2 W
receivables -
Fair value (loss) gain in financial BEATEEBERYR MEEE
assets at FVTPL, net ZAFEEE) W F R 29,152
Fair value gain in derivative financial T4MEEE 2 AFEUKZS
liabilities —
Write-off of property, plant and M - BB K&
equipment (185)
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net HNES B 5 Wk (B518) /558 (8,634)
239,156
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

10. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 10. &&HER

Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging: K A E HIBR T 515518 -

2019
—E-hF

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use
assets)

Amortisation of lease premium for
land

Amortisation of intangible assets

W - BB LR E(BEERE
BE)ZHE

THHAEEMZEH

BV EE#HEGTAHERA)

HK$’000
TR

(included in cost of sales) 9,491
Total depreciation and amortisation  #T& K H4a % 94,142
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREN N & 1,326
Staff costs BITAA 287,514
Share-based payments VARR 9 2 A~ 2 30IE 5,461
Research and development costs M kFAZEER 149,945

Operating lease payments in respect
of rented premises

Cost of inventories charged to profit
or loss

BRERMEZKLHENK

KRB MR 2 FERA

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited Z=F A Zfifi % B IR A 7

397,244

2018
—ZT—)N\&F
HK$’000
FHT

55,687

3,028

9,390
68,105

1,183
225,370
5,036
153,171

8,431

371,244



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NF+-_A=1+—HILFE

11. FINANCE COSTS

11. BA#ER AR

2019
—E-hEF
HK$’000

Interest expenses on: MERX :
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER
Lease liabilities/Finance leases HESE WMEHES
Total interest expenses for financial 3D AR AT EEBERYER

liabilities not classified as FVTPL
Bank charges

M REZ B A 88

RITEM

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMEN

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules

and CO is as follows:

Fees

e
HK$'000
&1
Executive Directors #iEs
Lee Siu Fong £
Leelalertsuphakun Wanee SRR

Li Xiaoyi (CEO) ZR(HEE)

Non-executive Director FafEs

Simon Miles Ball Simon Miles Ball

Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTES
Directors

Chan Yau Ching, Bob BARE

Lam Yat Cheong BilEE

Tsim Wah Keung, Karl B2y

Total 5

TS

Salaries,
allowances,
and other  Discretionary
remuneration bonus
I B
REtAe
HK$'000

Thr

Biek
HK$'000
Tar

5,625
6,063

8,376

FERx

5,067
692

5,759
865

6,624

2018

—TN\F

HK$’000
THAT

4,099
62

4,161
549

4,710

12. EERFTETHAEME

Employer’s
contributions
to pension
schemes
hdon |
fFHzEEER
HK$'000
Thn

Sub-total

/J\ﬁ-
HK$'000
Thn

5,643
6,066
8,394

144
144
144

20,679

Equity-settled
share option
expense
WhELE
BRERR
HK$'000
Thn

REENE
benefits

BitEA
HK$'000
Tén

9,838
10,373
6,037

1,001
1,024
910

Annual Report 2019

REBERLELHRAIRABGIREZE
ERFBRITBRABRANERZMEMT

2019

Total
emoluments
B-hF
Heag
HK$'000
Thn

16,572
17,463
15,341
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 12. EERFETBAEME (F)
EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
Salaries, Employer's
allowances, contributions Equity-settled 2018
and other  Discretionary to pension Retirement share option Total
Fees  remuneration bonus schemes Sub-total benefits expense  emoluments
I %4 mfEHE WhiEE 0%
(k Rt MERA  fRZEHES It IR ERER [iEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
AT ThL T AT T T AT ThL
Executive Directors 4iEs
Lee Siu Fong Y15 - 3,881 3,626 18 1,525 1,502 906 9,933
Leelalertsuphakun Wanee SR - 4,184 3,910 18 8,112 4121 839 13,078
Li Xiaoyi (CEQ) AR - 5,779 5,400 18 11,197 1,343 725 13,265
Non-gxecutive Director FinEe
Simon Miles Ball Simon Miles Ball 144 - - - 144 - - 144
Independent Non-executive ~ BUHTEES
Directors
Chan Yau Ching, Bob RRE 144 - - - 144 - - 144
Lam Yat Cheong HBE 144 - - - 144 - - 144
Tsim Wah Keung, Karl EER 144 - - - 144 - - 144
Total a3t 576 13,844 12,936 54 21,410 6,972 2,470 36,852

The directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments shown
above were for their service in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

There was no arrangement under which a director or

the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2018: Nil).

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

EXBRZEERTBITRAEBMETS
RERARNRRRAEBEEEH AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled
to bonus payments which are determined based on a
percentage of the Group’s profit after tax for the year.

During the year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group under
the share option scheme of the Company. Details of
the share options scheme are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Transactions, arrangements or contracts
in which directors of the Company have
material interests

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2018: Nil).

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors of the Company or body corporate controlled by
such directors, or entities connected with such directors,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year (2018: Nil).

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

12. EERFETRASHME (H)

ARBETHTEFTERKWIURAKE
REFRBREOEN B DL FTE ZTEAT °

RAFEERN  ETESHRRFANAEE
M 2RISR R BB SR T
FBRE - BRAE S ZFHBEHR G Y
BIRKMIEEA2

ERAEERBEEA BB ZX
£ ZHHEX

RAFEFERLAAFEARTAER - K
NRAIHHEMB ARG EE RN AR L
TAARRRESTRNEREEEREmA
BEARS - kA AHH (EREENLHE
BEREAER(CE—/\F: &)

x5

RAFEFREAAFEERETMERE - 83
BUAARARRES - ESEFAABERE
EZEMERAXGAZER EER

AREMZ S (ZF—\F : &) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 13. AEBEFAL

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during RAFERN  AEERAEZZRSHMMA L
the year included three (2018: three) directors, details B =ZR(ZZE-—NF : =ZR)R/ER
of whose remuneration are set out in note 12 above. AEE  AMe2 s LXHE12 - &
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining SHATFESRRBAL(ZZE—NF :
two (2018: two) highest paid individuals who are neither MEB)WIERARBESHEZITHA
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as B RENMESIT ¢
follows:
2018
—ET-)\F
HK$’000
FAT
Salaries and other benefits e REAMRET 4,234
Employer’s contributions to RRRENIE SR E MK
retirement benefit schemes 36
Equity-settled share option expense LARSHEALE ~ BERAS & FH 843
5,118
The number of the highest paid individuals who are not S AT (WIERARESE) ZEHMN
the directors of the Company whose remuneration fell T RBIB R 2 ARG -

within the following bands is as follows:

2018
—E-N\F
Number of
individuals
AL
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 8 LE
2,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 T=
3,000,000/ 1
2
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13.

14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(CONTINUED)

During the year, there were no share options granted to
certain non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
individuals in respect of their services to the Group under
the share option scheme of the Company.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

13. ABmEFAL(E)

RAFEE  WERETIHFEETRFEE
TBRAENRSHALRRERNAEE
PRI ARIG R A N BB A 8K B
PAE o

RAFEA  AEBVENTFRERS
FALTHSERSBEEMAKREE - X
A IOARS ) 22 ) Sk BB AR 156

TAXATION 14. HiHE
2018
—ZT—)\F
Note HK$’000
e TAT
Current tax I8
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERENEH 43,694
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (PSR 25,326
69,020
Over provision in prior years WA F R RRER A
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBNED (2,298)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B EATETE (285)
(2,583)
Deferred tax EIERIA
Origination and reversal of EAERBOERERE
temporary differences 36 (9,816)
56,621

Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2
million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million
according to the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.

BREMSHEREH  HEZT—LEK
ZE-N\EFF+ZA=T—HLEFENSE
RIS R J1328.25% (B R E2B BB T
HErERTE ) % 16.5% (YU R2E 8
BITA A ETERFUATDETHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR SRR T ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

14. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 14.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rates of the PRC subsidiaries range from
15% to 25% (2018: 15% to 25%).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as follows:

BiE (%)

RIEFPBCEMERE(RERSH
EDRCEMSFIAZE A -
WEB AR Z K AE15%E25%( —F

— )\ : 15%%25%) °

REMBDERREL ZHRIBNIZARF

AR BITIREGHE ©

AEFZBEBEX HEEA

HAD s M SRR T

2019
—E-hF
HK$’000
TAERT

122,886

Profit before taxation B3 A A A

Notional tax at the rates applicable  #&EAAERIMIR 248 2 T R4E
to results in regions concern KB &I

Tax effect of share of results of DIEHE AR RE TG 2
associates

Tax effect of expenses not deductible FEEEIE = 7] T 05 2 AFEE
for tax purpose 7

Tax effect of income not taxable for  FLF{EM 5 BERH U AN HZ
tax purpose z

Over provision in prior years B FERERE

Tax effect on temporary differences FERLREZENFHETE
not recognised

10,727

1,963

34,864

(3,951)
(4,720)

(268)

47,914

(24,247)
419

(3,160)

Tax effect of tax losses not RERTIEEENTIEZ 2
recognised

Tax effect of preferential tax EERERNHIETLE
allowance

Tax at other jurisdictions EAth RlAMER 2 B8

Utilisation of tax loss previously not BB %Al ARIER 2 FiIEE B
recognised

Tax charge for the year AEE ZBIEH

59,541

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited Z=F A Zfifi % B IR A 7

B R AEER

2018

—F-)\F

HK$'000
THAT
446,384

72,629

2,614

12,981

(46,858)
(2,583)

(131)
24,412
(7,051)

608

56,621



14.

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$562 million
(2018: HK$223 million) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the estimated tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

14. BIE(E)

R-_ZE—NAF+-_A=+—8 A&H
{51 11 2R B AR 2 AT 4 R 1B 8 6 R s A
R IEE B L) A562E BB (=T — )\
& : 223AEBIT) © AR ARAETRAR 2R
m F B TR - B I Rt BB A 1A
RIELERIBEE -

DIVIDENDS 15. ®E
2018
—N\F
HK$’000
FHETT
Dividends for ordinary shareholders HRAFEERIED IR TARARLE
of the Company recognised as IRARER 2R E. -
distribution during the year:
2019 interim — HK$0.018 (2018: fﬁﬁqﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁo 018757t
2018 interim dividend HK$0.034) - N\F: — \EFH
per share Hx/%\ﬂx0.034,’§75) 20,129
2018 final — HK$0.084 (2018: 2017 —/\Eakﬁﬁfﬁﬁo 084757T
final dividend HK$0.070) per share —ZT—)\F: —HFRHA
HXMHXO.O7O/;\§7'E) 41,439
61,568

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019
of HK3.8 cents per share (2018: final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2018 of HK8.4 cents
per share), in an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$22,349,000 (2018: HK$49,754,000) has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM”), and is not included as a dividend
payable in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019.

RIEHTER  EFCEZREEHE
E—NFF+_A=+—RHLEFEZR
Hﬁ%é BR3.8BM(ZZTE—N\F : & ZE
—N\F+ZA=+—HIEFERH
Hxs 475l & #£4922,349,0007%
—/)\%E : 49,754,000/ 7T) *
HIFAR %ﬁé%)ﬁﬂxiﬁiﬁgwﬂiiﬁ
Ek%J)ﬂth}&?& C HAEE o RiEE
BREMEAR=ZZE—NFET-HA=1+—H
fre BRI R A 2 P AR BARR ©

B E |
—\\ ~~ M\
3 0 m

/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BRER
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share RAEHER AEESRERR SR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the TORAE NAISIRETE -

following data:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
Earnings: 2 -
Net profit attributable to owners M EEREAREERFINS 2
of the Company for the purpose RATHEE AR FE
of basic and diluted earnings per
share 418,269
2019 2018
—E-hE ZE-)N\F
Share(s) Share(s)
’000 ’000
TR TR
Number of shares: RDEE -
Weighted average number of M EBRERRANE 2 @K
ordinary shares for the purposes of  fI#EF5%:
basic earnings per share 591,841
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary  ZERDBEEERZ
shares:
Options Rt 3,313
Weighted average number of Mt EEFRESERTM 5 < Tk
ordinary shares for the purposes of I 2L
diluted earnings per share 591,886 595,154
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NE+-_A=+—HLEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BERZRE

(Office and
laboratory
equipment
and
Leasehold Leased Leasehold Plant and electronic Motor  Construction
Buildings [and premises  improvement machinery equipment vehicles  inprogress Total
HAERHAR
g7 ) HEMR  EENERE REREE  RERETHE i EEIR it
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEn Tin TEL T Tin TEL Tin Thn

CoST A
At 1 January 2018 RN
-R-H 246,623 - - 20,791 98,658 62,381 12412 210,839 711,704
Exchange rate adjustments  E2 % (14,638) - - (923) (1749) (4.290) (#17) (11,063) (39,075)
Reclassification i - - - - (%) 9% - - -
Additions HE - - - 6,467 33,820 29,354 2,211 58,199 130,111
Transfer in (out) EA(H) 39,940 - - - 46,621 2,791 - (107,358) -
Disposals it - - - - (11,062) - (163) - (11,225)
Wite-off i . = - (10%3) (194) (3.667) (466) (3) (5,455)
At 31 December 2018 e l3
t2A=f-A 211,925 - - 25,242 160,010 104,664 13,637 210,582 786,060
Adjustments upon EREEIBREENE
application of HKFRS 16 16567l 232 - 145,666 9,659 - - - - - 155,325
At 1 January 2019 R-2-7E-R-B
(restated) (iE5) 271,925 145,666 25,242 160,010 104,664 210,582 941,385
Exchange rate adjustments  EX:5% (4,576) (2,700) (312) (6%2) (4,256) (2,156) @3739)  (18567)
Reclassification i (45,469) - - 4,634 40,802 3 - -
Additions HE 713 1,021 23,111 8,206 27,000 27,933 53,877 143,010
Transfer in (out) B\ 13823 . . 15815 26,043 12,289 (67.970) .
Disposals i3 - - - - (63) (192) (714)
Wite-off i (50) . . (626) (1,689) (3,798) (6,977)
Modifiation of HEBEE
lease term (651)
At 31 December 2019 RIB-E
t2A=+-A 236,366 143,987 52,579 247,847 138,774 192,750 1,057,486
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE_ZT-NFT-_A=1+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% - BMENRE(E)

(CONTINUED)
(Office and
laboratory
equipment
and
Leasehold Leased Leasehold Plant and electronic Motor  Construction
Buildings [and premises  improvement machinery equipment vehicles ~in progress Total
BAZRWRR
| £ ) HEMR  EEMERE HERAR  RRRETIE g KRIR it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
TR Tin TER TR Tin Thn TERL TR TER
DEPRECIATIONAND  HERBE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2018 RE-NE
-A-A 37,708 = = 9,357 54,707 36,463 7807 - 146,042
Exchange rate adjustments 5% (2649) - - (413) (323) (1,908) (331) - (859)
Reclassifcation 5ing - - - - ©) 9 - - -
Charge for the year FERRR 16,914 - - 4690 18,976 13,686 1421 = 55,687
Eliminated upon HERSH
disposal - - - - (10,280) - (162) - (10,442)
Eliminated upon M
wite-off = = = (1,023) (156) (3,625) (466) = (5,270)
At 31 December 2018 RB-E
t2A=1-8 51,973 - - 12,551 60,003 44,625 8,269 - 177,421
Adjustments upon EREENBREE
application of HKFRS 16 E16%FifE238E - 10,729 - - - - - - 10,729
At L January 2019 RF-hF-A-A
(restated) () 51973 10,729 = 12551 60,003 44,625 188,150
Exchange rate adjustments B3 (863) (239) (52) (249) (1,788) (899) (4,204)
Reclassification BB (20,789) - - 232 20531 26 -
Charge for the year REERE 14,095 2901 8505 6,808 29358 21,738 84,651
Eliminated upon ek
disposal 4 (191) (655)
Eliminated upon ks
wite-off (50) (614) () (37%) (6,765)
At 31 December 2019 NEE-nE
t2p=1-H 44,366 13391 8,453 18,728 106,597 61,501 261,177
CARRYINGAMOUNTS K
At31December 2019 HZF-NF
t2A=1-A 192,000 130,596 24,020 141,250 192,750 796,309
At 31 December 2018 NoE-NE
t=A=t-A 219,952 - - 12,691 100,007 60,039 5,368 210,582 608,639
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
re IS ERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHEZT-NF+-_A=1+—"HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - MERSE(E)
(CONTINUED)

The buildings are situated in the PRC under medium- AR B EFARHAE o
term leases.

As at 31 December 2018, included in HK$5,368,000 RZE-NF+ZA=+—8 -
motor vehicles there is an amount of HK$3,090,000 in 5,368,000 LA EBIERIEMEHNE
respect of assets held under finance leases. B 2B E3,090,000/87T °

The Group as lessee AEBERAAA

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant FEREEE(BERYE  BERRERE)

and equipment)

Leasehold Leased Motor
land premises vehicles Total
HELH# HEWH AE CH)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAT FAT FAET
As at 1 January 2019 R=ZE-N%F—HF—H
Carrying amounts (Note) BREE (M) 134,937 9,659 3,090 147,686
As at 31 December 2019 R=Z—h#F
+=A=t-H
Carrying amounts RHEE 130,596 24,020 468 155,084
For the year ended HE-Z-NF
31 December 2019 +t-A=t—HLFE
Depreciation charge WEER 2,901 8,505 234 11,640
Note: Details on adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 PHEE - %\:g—ﬂi—ﬂl—ﬁfﬁé%m%;‘%ﬂﬁ%iﬁ
are disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial %%Ellﬁle%ﬁﬁ’aﬁ'\%ﬂﬁéﬁéﬂ?ﬁ‘%i&%
statements. P25 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Are R mR N

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-h&F+-A=+—HILEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant
and equipment) (Continued)

17. W% - BEKk&E (&)

FEEERERBA(F)

ERAEEE(BERYE  BERERSE)

(&)

HK$’000
T
Expense relating to short-term leases and HMS e g EAE BB E L
other leases with lease terms end within 12 #1652 Bi121E A A EIBR R EEE
months of the date of initial application of MEMEERBENES
HKFRS 16 3,199
Total cash outflow for leases HERS ML LT 15,579
Additions to right-of-use assets CREEERNE 24,147

For both years, the Group leases various offices,
warehouses and motor vehicles for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 24 months to
5 years.

Certain leases of motor vehicle were accounted for as
finance leases during the year ended 31 December 2018
and carried interest ranged from 3.72% per annum to
3.79% per annum. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several leasehold lands
where its manufacturing facilities and office buildings are
primarily located. The Group is the registered owner of
these leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these leasehold lands.

The Group regularly entered short-term leases for leased
premises and equipment.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NE+-_A=+—HLEFE

18. B EE

License  Development
fee cost Total
E-vilE- BB AA @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET THT
COST %S
At 1 January 2018 R=ZZ—N\F—A—H 204,137 306,304 510,441
Exchange rate adjustments b e = (3,417) (15,946) (19,363)
Additions NE 38,731 137,006 175,737
Disposal & (7,754) (72) (7,826)
Impairment DRI (1,037) (895) (1,932)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ-—N\F+=-A=+—H
1 January 2019 kZZE—NF—H—H 230,660 426,397 657,057
Exchange rate adjustments fE R (1,108) (6,761) (7,869)
Additions N 66,326 176,040 242,366
Impairment EREL (24,112) (116,876) (140,988)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-N&+=-A=1+—~ 271,766 478,800 750,566
AMORTISATION e
At 1 January 2018 RZZ—-\&—H—H 50,556 11,247 61,803
Exchange rate adjustments fE =R - (618) (618)
Charge for the year REEEE 8,880 510 9,390
Eliminated upon impairment ERIERE Sk !
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\F+-A=1+—H
1 January 2019 R=Z—NnF—H—H 59,436 10,572 70,008
Exchange rate adjustments fE R - (214) (214)
Charge for the year REERE 9,141 350 9,491
Eliminated upon impairment RER L (23,336) - (23,336)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+ZHA=1+—H 45,241 10,708 55,949
CARRYING AMOUNTS HREE

At 31 December 2019

R=F-NF+-A=1—H

At 31 December 2018

R=_F—\F+=-A=1+—H

226,525

468,092
415,825

694,617

171,224 587,049
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

19

20.

. LEASE PREMIUM FOR LAND 19. THHEHEEA
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FATT
Carrying amounts at 1 January R—HA—RZEREE 145,597
Exchange rate adjustments b SR TR (7,632)
137,965
Amortisation for the year I EHESH (3,028)
Carrying amounts at 31 December R+ ZA=+—BZEHE 134,937
Current portion of non-current assets FEMENE E 2 mENE S (2,913)
Non-current portion BN EB S 132,024

The leasehold land is held under medium-term lease and
situated in the PRC.

IR EMEE T AT ERSRA

GOODWILL 20. &
2018
—ZT-)N\F
HK$’000
T
At cost B A
Balance at beginning and at end ER R FLR 2 G5 8R
of the year 3,900

The goodwill tested for impairment is allocated to
the cash-generating unit that constitutes Proprietary
Products Business. The recoverable amount of
proprietary products unit is determined based on a value
in use calculated and represented by the management
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 10% per annum (2018: 10%
per annum).

The value calculated by using the discount rate is higher
than the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit;
accordingly, the management of the Group determined
that there is no impairment of the goodwill.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
sRa B RS R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—Z-NF+-A=+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. P& QR 2=
Details of the Group’s interests in associates are as AEERBE DT 2 ERFFIEAT ¢
follows:

2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Cost of investment, unlisted TEXA - FELT 93,445 93,445
Share of post-acquisition loss and LB E EE R E 2 E W
other comprehensive income, net of K2 WILE
dividends received (65,990)
Share of associates’ reserves DREE N R 168
27,623
Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the RIREEAR SRR - AEFBMES AT Z
reporting period are as follow: EIp N
Proportion
of ownership Proportion
Place of incorporation/ interest held of voting rights
Name of associate operations by the Group held by the Group  Principal activities
FEEfRELZ rEERE
L EINGEA HRAL/ SE FrEERRL Al REELA TEEH
2019 2019 2018
2 —T = SN —T)\F
Powder Pharmaceuticals British Virgin Islands/ SRS 33.92% | el 33.92% Development, manufacture
Incorporated (“PPI1”) Hong Kong and sale of pharmaceutical
(Note a) products

LRELERAR(BR))(Mia) EBESES/BA % REREEED

RIT Biotech (Holding) British Virgin Islands/ 24.12% 24.12% LRV 24.12% Operate a central pharmacy
Company Limited (“RIT”") Hong Kong for compounding
(Note b) radiopharmaceuticals

RIT Biotech (Holding) EBRABE/BE REEAHTEENNPRER
Company Limited ([RIT])
(Ftztb)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)
Notes:
a. PPl has two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Powder

Pharmaceuticals (HK) Co., Limited (incorporated in
Hong Kong) and Powder (Guangzhou) Pharmaceuticals
Co., Limited (incorporated in PRC), and are engaged in
developing, manufacturing and trading of pharmaceutical
products.

RIT has a wholly-owned subsidiary, RIT Biotech Company
Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged
in operating a central pharmacy for compounding
radiopharmaceuticals.

Summarised financial information of
associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts
shown in the associates’ financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NE+-_A=+—HLEFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. REE N E 2R ()
(CONTINUED)
(i) Summarised financial information of () BELBZHBEFHBE
associates (Continued) (&)
PPI RIT CVie Taiwan *
L4 RIT MR~
31 December 31 December 31 December
+=A=t-A t=A=t-A t2A=t-8

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
il ST\ et CT\F Rty —T)\F
HK$'000 LIS HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TAL TER Thn &L TR

Current assets REEE 23,461 6,332 4,959 Kl N/ATER LN
Non-current assets FRaEE 32,420 26,707 17,380 7,637 B/ M NATER
Current abiites rDaf 85,989 3201 2950 WAV I NATEA
Non-current liabilities FRaag 6,302 - 1812 N/ATER ERULESHE
PPI RIT CVie Taiwan *
& RIT hERE*
1 January 1 January
2019 to 2018 to
31 December ARV
2019 2018
Year ended Year ended “E-hE —E-\&
H2EE HEEE -f-AZ —f-B%
2019 2018 2019 2018 Z2-E 2)\§
Z2-NE E)\E Z2-NE 22\ Rl A=A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR ThL Thx ThI Thn ThI
Reverue g . 7,768 el \/ATER
Loss from operations s (26,043) (24,235) (9,181) (0] N/ATER
Loss for the year/period AEE/4HER (28,364) (24,375) (9,431) (CREDN  N/A FER (10,344)
Other comprehensive Ath2ERARR)
income (expense) 55 = N/A TR
Total comprehensive AEE/BR2ERY
expense for the 3
year/period (28,309) (24,375) (9,431) (CHERY  N/A TER
Dividend received during A% /HERER L
the year/period AMEZfRE - - N/A RER
*  CVie Therapeutics Limited (“CVie Taiwan”) ceased *  RITE-N\F hEBERGOKE
to be the Group’s associate during year 2018. RAR([HERE])KIERARE

BB AT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. REtE ARl 2= (&)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Summarised financial information of () BELBZHBEFEE
associates (Continued) (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial it E R E B AR A B TS R
information to the carrying amount of the interests KRR 2 H L N AR 2 REE
in the associates in the consolidated financial HERINR ¢
statements:
PPI RIT
= RIT
31 December 31 December
+=—A=+—H +=A=+—H

2019 2018 2019
A — T\ ek

HK$’000 FGHool HK$’000

FET FAT FER
Net (liabilities) assets (BE)EEFE (36,410) (8,265)| il 2els

Proportion of the NEE P A R L A

Group’s ownership

interests 33.92%
Goodwill P 23,995

Carrying amount of the A&£E R RAEE
Group’s interests 11,645 21,191 4,157

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22. RAFEZEBIBZIIRNTIE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS &E
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FHETT
Investments in life insurance policies AFRBRERE (firra)

(Note a) 3,651 3,588
Unlisted warrants (Note b) I EaRARERE (Fitb) 49,223 32,774
Club membership debenture (Note ¢) €& &5 (Fffztc) 3,800 =
Convertible instruments (Note d) AR T A (FsEd) 2,543 -

59,217 36,362
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2018

—N\%F
HK$'000
TAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

The fair value measurement of these assets are disclosed
in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Notes:

a. These represents the life insurance policies with an
insurance company to insure executive directors of the
Company. Under the policy, the beneficiary and the policy
holder is the Company. The Group is required to pay an
one-off premium payment. The Group can terminate the
policy at any time and receive cash based on the cash
value of the policy at the date of withdrawal (“Cash
Value”), which is determined by the premium payment
plus accumulated interest earned minus the accumulated
insurance charges, policy expense charges and a specified
amount of surrender charge if the withdrawal is made
between 1st to 15th policy year.

b. These represent the warrants issued by both public and
private companies operated in the biopharmaceutical
sectors in the United States.

©- The club membership debenture is stated at fair value
which is determined by other quotation in similar market
and is categorised as Level 2 of the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined under HKFRS 13.

d. It refers to the unlisted convertible promissory notes
issued by an overseas-listed biopharmaceutical company
(the “Issuer”), with total principal amount of US$200,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,560,000), bearing
5% interest rate per annum and with maturity in 2024.
Pursuant to the underlying agreement, the outstanding
note amounts and unpaid interests could be converted into
the Issuer’'s common stock.

22.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

BLOVEZBRRSIMRN
EE(&)

ZEEBEZ AT EFEFRBRN GRS VB
wmKMIE44 -

G

a. AR RARE—ERBRARASZR
BIREE - WARRMITESRIR - BRIE
RE  IEARREFHEAEBLRAQF -
REBEESIN—RBRE - AEE AR
BRI HREE - WEMRER I B E8
BeEE(BEEEDKERE 56
RS EETIRREBM N TR
FE - BRIFTRBRER - REMIE
BEBESHENREFES (WRARE
F1E15FHE)ETE -

b. UWIAEBRAEYREZNRERILER
BB H O RAAERE

c. EEREFROUNSEMRERE
ENAFEIE - XD RSB BYHR
SREQEIIFHMNEZ =EIZE N FE
ERAPFE28 -

d.  BIyBINETmZEYME AR ([ 81T
A ) EITH AR € 4258 /5200,000% 7T
(HHEMR#1,560,000/87T) 2K E
ATARE R EE - BXABBF5% '
2024 F E| 8 - BIEMAREHZE - REE
ERSBRAIMNASATERAEITA
2 EmEpg
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. RAFEZBHMZEHWES
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE RN EE
INCOME
2018
—T-N\F
HK$’000
FHETT
Equity securities listed outside REBAIMDR 772 BRANEH
Hong Kong (Notes a, c) (MfzEa -~ c) 490,652
Unlisted equity securities (Notes b, ¢) FEEMRAES(HEb ~ ¢) 44,491
Unlisted partnership investments F EMmERIKRE (Fizd)
(Note d) 71,272
606,415

The fair value measurement of these assets are disclosed
in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Notes:

a. The fair values of listed securities are based on quoted
market closing prices available on the relevant exchanges
as at the end of the reporting period.

b. These represent the Group’s equity interests in private
entities incorporated in Switzerland and the United States.

- These investments are not held for trading, instead, they
are held for long-term strategic purposes. The directors of
the Company have elected to designate these investments
in financial assets at FVTOCI as they believe that
recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’
fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the
Group’s strategy of holding these investments for long-
term purposes and realising their performance potential in
the long run.

d. These represent partnership interests in private funds.

214 Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEER1ZEAL A R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rra SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. BATEEBRHMEEIES
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE RN BERE (&)
INCOME (CONTINUED)
The movement of financial assets at FVTOCI for both BHE_Z—NFER_FE—NE+=A
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: =+T—HLEFE ERATFEBEBREME

E WSk MBS EERE T

2018
—ET-)\F
HK$’000
FETT
At beginning of the year REH] 201,826
Addition NE 31,150
Converted from loan receivables 8 5 AR E R 46,524
Converted from convertible ERe AR T A
instrument 6,957
Proceeds from disposal of an & — & A R FTS R0E
associate 259,487
Rewards to employees in the form of A MG EZEE S
listed shares (10,667)
Fair value (losses) gains on EREREM AT E(EE)
revaluation recognised, net U ) F 58 71,138
At end of the year RELK 606,415
In December 2019, the Group subscribed the common RZF-—NEF+ZA AKEER
stock from Windtree Therapeutics Inc. (“Windtree”) Windtree Therapeutics Inc.
at US$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately (I'Windtree | ) R & & @Kk « &
HK$39,000,000). Part of the consideration was settled by 5,000,000 7t (18 & X #739,000,000
conversion of US$2,950,000 (equivalent to approximately ABIL)EHE - AP HREEEBL IR
HK$23,010,000) loan receivables. 2,950,000% 7T (48 X #723,010,000
BIT)RERERES -
24. INVENTORIES 24. &
2018
—ZT-)\F
HK$’000
FBIT
Raw materials [EA 16,224
Work-in-progress & m 35,811
Finished goods BURK 159,638
211,673
No inventories are carried at net realisable value at both RZE—NFRZZE-—NFEF+ZA
31 December 2019 and 2018. =1+—H  SBEFENAREIRFEIER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

25.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

25. EWE F R

2018
—E-N\%F
HK$’000
TAT

FEWE 5 fR K
B EREEEERE

Trade receivables
Less: Allowances for ECL

149,876
(381)

149,495

The credit period on sales of goods is 30—120 days. The
Group has recognised an allowance for ECL of 100%
against all receivables over 365 days because historical
experience has been that receivables that are past due
beyond 365 days are not recoverable. Allowances for ECL
are recognised against trade receivables over 180 days
based on estimated irrecoverable amounts determined by
reference to past default experience of the counterparty
and an analysis of the counterparty’s current financial
position.

The following is an analysis of trade receivables by age,
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates
the respective revenue recognition dates, and net of
allowance for ECL at the end of the reporting period:

EmHEZEEHR30E120 ° AT
EiB365H 2 B FIAM S - AEED
HER100%BEREEHERE - REAR
RBEKS: - BHEIB365 R 2 EUYIA
#EIRE - BB HEE180R 2R KE Z
ERME  BREEERREBIREGL
AR B R IR - AT R Y E
RIADNSEH T2 BEROKERY S
RPN INETE -

AT REWEZERFANREHTERR
Rz oM WAREBEZAH(EE K
AR BHEE) 27 RBREREEE
B

2018

—ZT-)N\F

HK$’000

AT

0-30 days 0Z30H 79,663
31-120 days 31%120H 51,751
121-180 days 121%180H 7,872
181-365 days 181%365H 10,206
Over 365 days and under 3 years 365 A ER=FLAR 3
149,495
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the Group’s trade receivables at
31 December 2019 and 2018 approximates to their
corresponding carrying amount.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts which
are past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group has not recognised an allowance for ECL
because there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances nor does it have a
legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the
Group to the counterparty.

Aging analysis of receivables that are
past due but not impaired

ire BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

BHEZT-NF+-_A=1+—"HIFE

25. EIWE SR (E)

—E-NAFER-_F-N\F+=H
T—H AKREZERREZERR A
FEEEREREERS

[ %

EXFBEECEREESERABERRRE
A ARaREREREBEERE
BiEzyR RAREEERIEENXN
HERARRAEDRRAAKE - K&
B3 E it F AT A TR AR E
= BT & - IR AT AKR
SBERE T Z EAFIRIEE -

TR 8 K B E 2 FE W 4 R 2 fR i
ZH

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FET

B H -
1%180H
181%365H

Overdue by:
1-180 days
181-365 days

57,621
23

57,644
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iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 25. EWE SR (&)

Movement in allowance for ECL A EEERRESE
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FAT
Balance at beginning of the year FH 2 R 561
Exchange rate adjustments b R 2 (24)
Write-off i gH =
Provision for (reversal of) ECL TERMEE R R A () (156)
Balance at the end of the year FRHER 381

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted
up to the end of the reporting period. The concentration
of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being
large and unrelated.

Aging analysis of receivables that are
past due and impaired

REERKEZEFEE JRER - &K
SEERRKESERBVNIREEE
AHEBERENRARALZEEER
ZEAEE  HREFEPEMRALERR
B MEPEERRABR

BRI R R E 2 EW IR R
T

2018
—E-N\%F
HK$’000
TAT

Overdue by: BHA
181-365 days 181%365H
Over 365 days and under 3 years 365 A ER=FUR

23
358

381
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27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 26.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

HEWRIE - BERFENR

PREPAYMENT 15
2018
= N\F
HK$’000
FHETT
Utilities and rental deposits NERG RIERES 3,786
Prepayment for acquisition of plant  AEMEMEE « RISEVE 28
and equipment, services and (NE/SE
materials 69,451
Prepaid other tax HAh A1 10,889
Others (Note) HAh (faE) 14,513
98,639

Note: Others includes deposit for purchase and receivables
from other debtors.

During the reporting period, there is no provision
for impairment loss (2018: HK$6,979,000) on other
receivable recognised in profit or loss.

iz HtBREEER:RREEMEBA
2 FEMSRIA

AR HAR - 4 A b B UGB R B S
BEE(—Z—)\F : 6,979,000/5 )
DI EZERER o

LOAN RECEIVABLES 27. BWER
2018
—EF-)\F
HK$’000
FATT
Unsecured, fixed-rate loan IR - B F R EUWE R
receivables 26,990

The unsecured, fixed-rate loans bear interest at 4% per
annum. During the year 2019, the loans were partially
repaid and the remaining amount was converted into
equity securities listed outside Hong Kong as disclosed in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

WA - BEAEERZAEAEF
B Wi A B R AT 236 B
R-F—N% - BREBHHE  BE
SEME AN EBSIMLE £ 2 BA

%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
b= A

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

28.

29.

ADVANCE TO ASSOCIATES

This represents the loans to associates which carry
interest rate of 4% (2018: 4%) per annum and are
repayable within one year.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/
TIME DEPOSITS/CASH AND BANK
BALANCES

As at 31 December 2019, pledged bank deposits
represent the Group’s security given to banks for
facilities granted to the group entities and CVie Taiwan.

As at 31 December 2018, pledged bank deposits
represent the Group’s security given to a bank for the
facilities granted to CVie Taiwan and Windtree.

The pledged bank deposits would be released within one
year and therefore are classified as current assets.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which are in
range of 0.01% to 0.50% (2018: 0.01% to 0.50%) per
annum. Time deposits carry interest rates in the range
of 1.95% to 2.76% (2018: 1.89% to 2.10%) per annum.
Pledged bank deposits carry interest rate in the range of
1.35% to 2.20% (2018: 0.40% to 3.08%) per annum.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

28.

29.

BN THE QT ZRE

IiEmBERFERZER  FEXAEE
FAB(ZZE—\F :48) BR—FR

&g -

EBEBBRITEREHEFER
RERBRITEER

R-ZE-NF+-_A=+—H 2H&H
RITEFFRANAEEEEIERRTLES
BERITRTREMELNERR

RZEBE—NF+_A=+—H 2K
HIRITERNANEE g &£ 5 &
Windtree R 1TH% F g & i 1E 1 AU 3K 17

[}
oA °

EEMRITERAR —FRFELR -
BRRBEE -

285

IRITAERIET IS TR B - miHHER
HFENT1R0.01%E0.50%(=—ZF— N\
& :0.01%Z£0.50%) - EHEFERIZLE
FNF1.95%F2.76%( —ZT— )\ 4F :
1.89%%2.10%) 2 FEE & - B iF
BRITHEREEFN T1.35% = 2.20%
(ZZ— )\ : 0.40%ZE3.08%) 2 F|&
ETE e



30.

31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE PAYABLES

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

30. BNESKRM

The fair value of the Group’s trade payables at 31 AEERNEZEREFR_ZE—NEFER=
December 2019 and 2018 approximates to their ZE-NF+TZA=1+—HBZAVEHEE
corresponding carrying amount. FREERS °

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at 31 NTAERZZE-—NFERZZE-N\F+=

December 2019 and 2018:

A=1+—BHENE SRAOREIN

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
AT
0—90 days 0%£90H 44,609
91-180 days 91%180H 21,213
181-365 days 181%365H 115
Over 365 days 3658 A £ 142
66,079
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods EBEATERNESHEEHA90H - &
is 90 days. The Group has financial risk policies in place EBEERIGEE NI IBRESEE » AR
to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit REFTAEMNTIEREERBERANS T -
timeframe.
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 31. HftENFIAKETE A
2018
—ZT—)\F
HK$’000
AT
Contract liabilities aHBIE 214,944
Sales guarantee deposits HERBIRS 88,941
Other payables for plant and B 5 I 55 18 B AR 75 o2 L L P A5 S0 TR
equipment and services 64,707
Other tax payables H bR FHIE 4,002
Obligations under license contract BRI & A EHE 8,292
Accrued staff salaries and welfare ZEMEE H I AEF 25,019
Others (Note) A (Pf3E) 41,852
447,757
Note: Others includes payables to other creditors and accrued Miet : Eih BRI A ERE A 2 RIE R E

expenses.

SHEM -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 32. SRITRHEMMER
2018
—F-N\F
HK$’000
FATT
Secured bank borrowings classified DA RSE G2 EEBETES
as current liabilities (Note a) (fff5Ea) 127,483
Unsecured other borrowings classified 248478 & (&2 ZK B E 1S3
as current liabilities (Note b) (Fg5ED) 1,751
129,234
Carrying amount of the borrowings  JEf &2 BREE (FfizEc) :
are repayable (Note ¢):
Within one year R—FR 45,529
More than one year but BB —FETBIERE
not exceeding two years 26,337
More than two years but HRIB AR E A
not exceeding five years 57,368
129,234

Notes: B

a. As all the bank borrowings include a clause that gives L
the lenders the unconditional right to call the borrowings
at any time (“Repayment on Demand Clause”),
according to HK — Int 5 which requires the classification of
whole borrowings containing the Repayment on Demand
Clause as current liabilities, all the bank borrowings were
classified as current liabilities.

b. The unsecured loan is borrowing from non-controlling b.
interests of an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company which bore interest rate of 4% per annum and
are repayable within one year.

C. The table is based on the agreed repayment schedule c.

provided by banks and agreed terms with non-controlling
interests.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rra SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 32. |RITREMER(E)
(CONTINUED)
The ranges of effective interest rate on the Group’s bank N6 B SR 1T I B 15 R B0 B R ) 3R G [
and other borrowings are as follows: LU
2018
—Z—)\F
Bank and other borrowings HRIT R B TR 2.88%—
4.79%
The Group’s bank and other borrowings are denominated REBRITREMERATHIEEE :
in the following currencies:
United
Hong Kong States
Dollars Dollars
BT e
HK$'000 HK$’000
T T
As at 31 December 2019 R-E—h&F+=-HA=+—8
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+HA=1+—H 129,234 -
33. LEASE LIABILITIES 33. HE&SME
Within one year R—FA
More than one year but not exceeding BB —FE BB E
two years
More than two years but not exceeding BBERFEETBBRSF
five years
Less: Amount due for settlement within B RBBEETERTZEARGEZ
12 months shown under current KIE
liabilities
Amount due for settlement after 12 months SERBAE NEAT @A RAS 2 KE
shown under non-current liabilities
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies of HEAEURBASEER 2 EHA

the functional currencies of the relevant group entities. A -
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ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

34. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 34.

LEASES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group leases motor
vehicles under finance leases with lease term and
interest rate ranges from three to five years and from
3.72% to 3.79% per annum respectively. At the end of
the lease term, the Group has an option to purchase the
motor vehicles. No arrangements have been entered into
for contingent rental payments.

BMEREAE

R-ZE—N\E+_A=+—H £&£E
BEBREHERRARE  BHEFF
ERFNF=ZE2RFENTF3.72% =
3.79% c RHEIR - REEARIEEER
B o WA AR KEERERNE
HE o

Present
value
Minimum of minimum

lease lease
payments payments
RIE BEHEE
HEFKE MIEZRE
2018 2018
—T-N\F TN\
HK$'000 HK$’000
FAIT FAT
Amounts payable under finance RIERERE 2 B FRIE -
leases:
Within one year R—FR 904 858
In the second to fifth year inclusive —EAFR(BEEEMRF) 801 782
1,705 1,640
Less: Future finance charges W AREEER (65) N/A N
Present value of lease obligations MEAE2TE 1,640 1,640
Less: Amount due for settlement B RBEETERT ZEAR
within 12 months shown =g L]
under current liabilities (858)
Amounts due for settlement after FER (B A 12455 2 /1B
12 months 782
Obligations under finance leases are denominated in BEMERELNEITEME - B8

Hong Kong Dollars, which is also the functional currency

of the relevant group entities.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

This represents the carrying amounts of the derivative
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period
resulting from the redemption rights (“Redemption
Rights”) granted to the holders of series A preferred
shares of China Ophthalmology Focus Limited (“COPFL”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, to
require COPFL to redeem the series A preferred shares
therefrom under certain conditions. The Redemption
Rights were granted by COPFL in connection with an
issue and sale of its series A preferred shares which was
completed on 13 June 2019.

The redemption price for each series A preferred share
shall be an amount in cash equal to the sum of (a) issue
price of series A preferred share, (b) an amount which
would result in each holder of a series A preferred share
being deemed receiving an internal rate of return of 13%
in respect of each series A preferred share, measured
from the date of first issuance of the series A preferred
shares until the date of closing of the redemption of
any series A preferred share, plus (c) any declared but
unpaid dividends on such series A preferred share.

The Redemption Rights shall terminate on the earlier
to occur of (1) the 6th anniversary of the closing date
which was 13 June 2019 or (2) one calendar day before
the first submission of a listing application form with the
Stock Exchange in respect of the equity securities of the
COPFL (the “First Filing”), provided that if a qualified
IPO (as defined in the subscription agreement dated
23 May 2019) has not been consummated on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange within 12 calendar months
of the date of the First Filing (the “Revival Date”), the
Redemption Rights shall automatically be restored in all
respects as of such Revival Date.

35.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

TTEMBRE

HERRESRR ARG ERE
F{& A F]China Ophthalmology Focus
Limited ([ COPFL |) BV A 5 51| 8 5E AR %
BABERER ([ ERE])mEENDT
£ BEREME - ZKCOPFLIBEE
TREFERIAR B SERR - COPFLE—F
—NERNAT=ZBRITRIEEHARIE
FERR AT R O 4 o

BERARIEERNBEERESER(@) A
RIBEREITE - (D) TAFRIIELK
ZERB AR R ERAZRI B LK
213% c AR R HENEE(BARIIE
SRR ERETTH RAEBEERARIIE L
Bz RHIEHE) @ I L(c)BRIART
8 5 IR H 0] 2 BIR1B 8 R T A9 AR B
ZRNNESEHE -

BOEERATREHEZBREL
QOEKRB(ZZE—NAFEXRA+T=H)%E6
A 5% (2) FLCOPFLAY AR AN 38 5 [A) Bt A2 AT
RREXEMBEBERE(TEXRBEE]D A
—EER  HWEERBARAEE(E
ERHBAT—NFRA-_T=HH
REHR) W ERNERAEB R =
EEAN(TREBH ) REE R FT EIRSE
B AIBEREAEEMAEFEESHRES
W18 B B Z AR5 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

35.

36.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

Further details relating to the Redemption Rights were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23
May 2019.

The carrying amount of the Redemption Rights
is recognised and measured at fair value which
was independently valued by Savills Valuation
and Professional Services Limited, an independent
professional valuer not connected to the Group. Further
details of the fair value measurement of the Redemption
Rights are disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements.

35.

TTEMBEEGR)

AMEE NS — SHEERAAFA
HA-E-AERA-+ZAMALS
HE -

BOENREEDZEAFERR R
B AFEREARETABEENEL
BEXRHEME-AFRENGEERER
BRERARBEIEE - BREAFE
AENE-THBEREEMBERRME
44K EE -

DEFERRED TAXATION 36. IEAEHIE
The following is the major deferred tax balances T RREMRBTFERRACEZR
recognised and movements thereon during the current RIS R B EE) -
and prior years:
Deferred tax (assets) liabilities B E(EE)EE
Accelerated Tax on Right-
tax Intangible unrealised of-use Lease
depreciation assets profit assets liabilities Total
AERET
MERERE Bl EE 258 fEREEE HEEE szt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx Th ThL Th1 ThI Th
At 1 January 2018 R=E-)\&-A-A 537 46,819 (7,375) - = 39,981
Exchange difference EiER - (2,270) - - - (2,270)
Charge (credit) to profitor loss I (:EA)E& 524 2,316 (12,656) = = (9,816)
At 31 December 2018 and AZE-\EtZA=1-R
1 January 2019 k=%-n%-A-A 1,061 46,865 (20,031) - - 27,895
Exchange difference EiEE - (1,033) = (43) 42 (1,034)
(Credit) charge to profitor loss ~ (tA)HIBEE (457) 25,026 5,850 3,724 (3,571) 30,572
At 31 December 2019 R=E-NF+-A=1-H 604 70,858 (14,181) 3,681 (3529) 57,433

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax (assets) liabilities
(Continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis
of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

36. EFEBLIE (&)

FAEHRE(EE)ER(F)

IREEMBARRK2IIME - BEHR
HEERABKEEE - TRAMUB
B B M 5 2 BIERIRAER AT

2018
—)\F
HK$'000
THET

EERAEE
EREARE

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

27,895

27,895

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to HK$505 million (2018: HK$571
million) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

BERECEMSESE  BZTT/\F
—A—Bie - REME QR RES
%IJPﬁ*JEZH“%;,\%%&Wﬁ?D%R E=RATN
BE 2122 ) 43 (o] AR B Y B /2 B BT R ER
/ﬁﬂmﬁzgﬁq%a@isosﬁéﬁém_5
—N\F 57T1EBHEL) KR RZEY
E%%%EEAT%EEMH%%T%T\@?E@ i
RIZETBRERATERZEERERE
FHRIRERRIA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR SRR T ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. B&
Number of shares Share capital
REA e

2019 2018
= —2-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TAL

Authorised: AT -

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREE0.05B TN ERR 1,000,000,000 [EMEKINT] 50,000

Issued and fully paid: BETRESR :

At beginning of the year REA 592,029,343 590,943,343 29,601 29,547

Exercise of share options (Note a) TR (Fita) 280,000 1,086,000 14 54

Repurchase and cancellation of ordinary #5015 &R (Hizth)

shares (Note b) (4,389,000) - (219)

At end of the year RER 587,920,343 29,396

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the RBEE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HItF

movement in the Company’s share capital is as follows: EBR  ARATPIRA =BT :

(@) A total of 280,000 new shares were issued upon (@) RIRBEARRERERT 2 (ME42)
exercise of 280,000 share options under the 171£280,000/) BB ERB B TS
Company’s share option schemes (note 42) at an 280,000 ¥ ik 1h - BRE A
aggregate consideration of HK$1,395,000 (net of 1,395,000/ 7T (MIBR BT AR)
issuance cost) of which HK$14,000 was credited Hr14,0008 TIEABRAALR
to share capital and the remaining balance of H 1,381,000 TTIE A & B
HK$1,381,000 was credited to the share premium ABE o HEoN - FE RS RS AR FE (L TR 1B
account. In addition, an amount attributable to 447,000/ T E #E AR 19 S A5 2 B
the related share options of HK$447,000 has been S EGEEEE IR REER -

transferred from share-based compensation reserve
to the share premium account.
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37. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) During the year, the Company repurchased its own

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

37. BRA(4])

(b) RNFEER  ARBFEBHIFMED

ordinary shares through Stock Exchange as follows: B & EERNAT
Highest Lowest Aggregate
purchase purchase purchase
Number of price per price per price
ordinary ordinary ordinary (including
Month of purchase BEAG shares share share expenses)
EER SREER SREBER HBEE
BRHBE BEEEE SEBEE (BEEA)
HK$ HK$ HK$’000
BT BT THET
September 2019 —ZT-NFENA 1,931,000 4.58 4.18 8,655
October 2019 “E-NET+A 2,458,000 4.55 4.23 10,986
4,389,000 19,641

The above ordinary shares were cancelled in
November 2019 and the corresponding expense is
HK$31,000.

None of the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities
during the year.

FHEERA T —NAF+— A
i - 1HEE B A31,000/5 7T °

RAERRN - BEADTNBAT
WE - R E AL R £
B o
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iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

38. RESERVES

Share premium

Share premium represents the difference between the
nominal value and the issuing value of the shares.

Merger difference

The merger difference represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time
of the Group’s reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares in 2002.

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve comprises the
fair value of share options granted which are not yet
exercised.

Other reserves

Other reserves represent (i) the difference between the
consideration and the carrying amount of the net assets
attributable to the reduction of, or additions of, interests
in subsidiaries being disposed to, or acquired from, non-
controlling interests; and (ii) share of associates’ reserve.

Investments revaluation reserve

Investments revaluation reserve represents the
cumulative fair value changes, net of tax, of financial at
FVTOCI assets until they are disposed or impaired.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]
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38.

39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve relating to the translation of the
net assets of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries from
their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation
currency are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange reserve. Such
exchange differences accumulated in the exchange
reserve are reclassified to profit or loss upon the disposal
of the foreign subsidiaries.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

In April 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the
issued share capital of Dreamboat Ventures Limited
(“Dreamboat”) at a total consideration of HK$2,400,000
from Lee’s Techno-Net Limited (“Techno-Net”).
Dreamboat is an investment holding company. The

38.

39.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

it (&)
ERRE

EEBAEEGIINB AR 2 EEFE
Tiéﬁljj EPEEMESRAEEZERER
Eﬁﬁ FEREMEE R EERIL R
HEE - ELFEET R ZEH
E EENEHEEIINNBARREND

B o

g;A

W i — R Bt/ A &

RZZE-—AFEA  AEENUER
& 2,400,000 /& JT B Lee’s Techno-
Net Limited ( [ Techno-Net | ) U
#% Dreamboat Ventures Limited
([ Dreamboat ] ) #1100% 2 21T AN o

transaction has been accounted for by the acquisition Dreamboat/&—EIEEER AT o JEIER
method of accounting. SEIRKEEEANEE -
Consideration transferred BRZ1E
HK$’000
FAT
Cash consideration RERE 2,400
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ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 39.

(CONTINUED)
Consideration transferred (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

W Bs — RE B B B ()

BRCAE(E)

RYFEEMBZEEMER ZBEWT

HK$’000
T
Non-current asset EREEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 22V {E:FE BI8257I8R 2 B 75 &7
loss 3,800
Current asset REEE
Deposits s 143
Current liability REAE
Other payables and accruals H AT RIE R T & R (1,543)
2,400

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and deposits at the date of acquisition
amounted to HK$3,800,000 and approximately
HK$143,000 respectively. The gross contractual amounts
of those financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and deposits acquired amounted to HK$3,800,000
and approximately HK$143,000 respectively. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows
not expected to be collected amounted to nil.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rra SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 39. Wis—EMWE AT (&)
(CONTINUED)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WHREEE ZmE
HK$’000
FATT
Consideration transferred R RE 2,400
Less: Net assets acquired B BB EEFRE (2,400)
Goodwill arising from the acquisition WREEE 78 —
Analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is W 7B RENITnT -
as follows:
HK$’000
FATT
Cash consideration paid BERNRESNRE 2,400
Less: Cash and cash equivalent acquired of B BEWEERERREEE -
Net cash outflow in respect of the acquisition U —FEKIBA R ZRER HF5E
of a subsidiary 2,400
Included in the profit for the year is approximately AEENEFEE4381,0008 7T 2 &
HK$381,000 loss attributable to the additional business B DreamboatzE 4 7 FEINETEFTEN ©
generated by Dreamboat.
Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019 in AATESRAMBER T —NE—
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group’s A—HZEK @ BIAEEFAKRA K H
revenue and profit for the year would not be materially BraetaRTE -
impacted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B R R TR
For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-F-NF+-A=+—AILFE

40. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 40. FEFERRER

Share-based

Share of net

compensation

assets of reserve of
subsidiaries subsidiaries Total
AEMEAR Wt B A E AR AR
MEERE XML RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT
At 1 January 2018 RZZ—/\$—H—H (7,498) 84 (7,414)
Capital contribution from non- R E
controlling interests 60,303 - 60,303
Share of loss for the year NEREEER (28,506) = (28,506)
Share of other comprehensive income 2157 E E it 2 F
for the year
— Exchange difference on translation —#ZE5N\HBA AIHBHRE
of financial statements of ZERER
overseas subsidiaries 158 - 158
— Fair value changes of financial —RAHEREAEMEERR
assets at fair value through SRz Bis & E 2 ATE
other comprehensive income 5 6,991 = 6,991
Share of employee share options A1hiE B ERERR
benefit - 18 18
Share of share options lapsed B R E 102 (102) =
Additional non-controlling interests  tH&—fEHIB AR Z B ERFT
arising from partial disposal of B 7 BRI

interests in a subsidiary
At 31 December 2018 and

RZZ-\F+-A=+—-RK

at 1 January 2019 “E-1F-F—H 27,526 27,526
Capital contribution from non- FEIR R &
controlling interests 2,236 2,236

RRHERB LR B DN

Additional non-controlling interests

arising from deemed disposal of EE BN R R
interests in subsidiaries 218,412 218,412
Share of loss for the year AMEAEERE (L)) (62,208)

Share of other comprehensive AEAFEENZERS

expenses for the year

— Exchange difference on translation —#E 8/ NIEA AEHEHRE
of financial statements of ZERER
overseas subsidiaries

— Fair value changes of financial —RAFEEREME AN
assets at fair value through Sk 2 B & E 2 ATE
other comprehensive income 23) (3,185) (3,185)

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=+—H 181,538 181,538

(1,243)

(1,243)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs
to the Scheme with maximum amount of HK$1,500
(2018: HK$1,500) per month for each employee, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The total cost recognised in profit or loss of HK$758,000
(2018: HK$728,000) represents contributions payable to
the Scheme by the Group in respect of the current year.
As at 31 December 2019, contributions of HK$4,000
(2018: Nil) due in respect of the reporting period had not
been paid over to the Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
and Taiwan are members of a state-managed retirement
benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC and
Taiwan. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits is to
make the specified contributions.

Defined benefit plan

Retirement benefits scheme represents the retirement
benefits provided to the executive directors of the
Company.

Each of the executive directors will be entitled to lump
sum payment upon retirement and monthly pension
payment after retirement if he/she has engaged in
continuous service with the Group for certain years.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

41. RIKEF

EHF R E

NEBERBESBEEERES 2 ERG|
MRBEeFTEI([E]) - Z5FEIZE
EEAEENEESFHE @ AXFEA
EHNESRFE - AEERZEED
BATENAHS%AER - ERES
ME BA&E=2EALL005T(ZF
— /% : 1,500%7T) + MiE BZE{EH 8
Bl & BRI LR o

I8z N R A 42K A8 758,000/ 7T (=
T— \£ : 728,000/ T ) BAEB LA
FEENZAENOHE - RZZ—NF
TZA=+—H ' REHENEMER
4,000 (=T —\F : T)EAZNT

Zatal o

AEBzFERBENBARIZEER
PRk EBBFEFEZBERERRKE
M8z B - BARIGARTIERK
AR ZHFTE B D AR AR M AT 8K
UERBAEHRES - NEEBRKE
MgEAEZ BEERERFEHRMR -

EHEE a1 &
BABHNFERARRBRITEFRM
HYRIRER] o

ERTEFMECHERBAREET
F - ARBERNERKERS —RBFE
ERERRERFBARKSE -
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i

AN

S=Rp e e

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

41.

42.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The carrying value of the retirement benefits represents
the cost of providing benefits determined by valuation
conducted by independent valuer at the end of the
reporting period, amortised over the expected average
remaining working lives of the participating employees.
The fair value of the retirement benefits at 31 December
2019 was valued by Peak Vision Appraisal Limited,
an independent professional valuer not connected to
the Group. The fair value of retirement benefits was
accrued in the consolidated financial statements but the
retirement benefits scheme was not established up to the
date of this report. Thus, no actuarial gain or loss will be
considered.

During the year, HK$26,248,000 provision for retirement
benefits (2018: HK$6,972,000) was recognised in profit
or loss.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
The Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2002 Share
Option Scheme”) and new share option scheme (the
“New Share Option Scheme”) were adopted on 26
June 2002, and 10 May 2012 respectively for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors, eligible
employees, advisers and consultants.

At 31 December 2019, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the 2002 Share Options Scheme and
the New Share Option Scheme was 17,123,000 shares
(2018: 15,627,000 shares) representing 2.9% (2018:
2.6%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

41.

42.

RKER (&)

EE a1 & (&)

SRRAE A 0 AR T B /3 108 S (B AP Y 3R
SHRARBMETHNAEEELZRS
HEBWEHFHG T THEFHTIAE
B o RRBHR -_F-NEFE+=
A=+—B2ZAaFELEREFHEER
AR (EASEY EEENEYEXMAE
BD) (18 o RIRENH D FEREA M
BERAE  BREAREAH - RIK
BAF B ERY - At §TE2EE
R REE

RAFE - RIBmNER 26,248,000/
T (ZZ— )\ : 6,972,000/ It ) iE K
& F 2 st -

BBRESTE
ZAAYT]

AARMBERETE([ =T =FHER
AT E] ) MR AT &) ([ #r BB AR st
ED)HRR—BEE-_EXA-TBE
—E—_FAATHBB BEEME
= AEREES  BRERFEHRAATRME
H2E) o

—hNWE+=ZA=+—RH ' =T
:iﬂ%ﬂxﬁéﬁ%ﬂ&%ﬁﬁ%ﬂx%ﬁ%‘ﬁéﬁ—ltE
B RIDARITENBRER S RHRG
HH A17,123,000% ( =& — )\ F :
15,627,000/ ) * HHE R AR 7R %
HEZEITKRMA2.9%( —ZF— )\ F :
2.6%) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(CONTINUED)
The Company (Continued)

For the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the total number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company (“Shares”) in issue at the time of listing,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of Shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the Shares in issue, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

For the New Share Option Scheme, the total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the New Share Option Scheme shall
be subject to a maximum limit of 10% of the Shares
in issue on the date on which the New Share Option
Scheme is conditionally adopted and approved by the
shareholders at the AGM, unless the Company obtains
an approval from the shareholders in general meeting
to refresh such 10% in accordance with the Listing
Rules. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the New Share Option Scheme will not be counted for
the purpose of calculating such 10%. The overall limit
on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes must not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time.

The exercise price is determined by the directors, and
will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Shares.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

42. fBlRERt 8 ()

A2 a] ()

R_ET_FHEREFEMS  BEE
BANRBREE LA - BIFZTET
RO ERER S KB RD BB T /&R
BARNBR EMEREMNEZBITRG ([&
7 1)810% - EEELEFSARRAFRRE
B - REM—FRA - BT RATER
TEMATHEREMEETRETE
THRMDEE TEBBARRDEITR
MHI1% °

SLATEAESEIME - NTERIEHE
R AE R B 1% H &Y P A RE A A iy ] E 3
TN EBEZERNERBFAS
BRI RA ML EF B S B B
MEBTRMDA RS ER10%FIRR -
BRIEARDRBRE EMARRARBEERARE £
ERBRRIEFTHEML0%R A - Bt
BER10%REME - RIFHEKE
BEEMES S SUEE- e 3 S
A o RIEFT I AR AT 8 R (T o] H A BB AX
BABERE RDARITENABETE
SNB R AREATE T AT BE AT 8RB
ERERBEIMTEBATITRNEHITROM
30% °

TEEDNHESEE - U TPRAT
EEMZRSE - (YROREKE BB
miE : ()RONERRL A AES
F B TPHWRHE - RGDBRDOEE
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AR e SRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT—NF+_A=t+—HILFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 42. BRAEST (&)

(CONTINUED)
The Company (Continued) A a](4&)
Details of the Company’s share option schemes during RAREE - NAGIWEIRE S 155
the current year are summarised as follow: T

Outstanding Outstanding

at : at

01.01.2019 During the year 31.12.2019 Exercise

R=B-hE RERA R=B-hfE price per
Date of grant -fA-H Granted Exercised Lapsed Tt=B=t—H Exercise period share
RHRH HARITE BRH Bfift BAX WRTE T BRITKE
Category |:
£H:
Directors
EZ
30.12.2013 876,000 876,000 30.06.2014-29.12.2023 HK$7.300
ZE-ZF1tZA=1H “E-MERAZTHE 7.30087
31.03.2015 1,338,000 1,338,000 30.09.2015-30.03.2025 HK$11.200
“2-1%=A=1-H “E-EFAA=TAE-E-RF=A=1H 11.20087
31.03.2016 1,761,000 1,761,000 30.09.2016-30.03.2026 HK$5.754
“E2-~"F=R=1-H “B-AEAAZTHE-B-AEZAZTH 5.754%7
13.04.2017 1,770,000 1,770,000 13.10.2017-12.04.2027 HK$7.548
“3-t5mA+=A “EB-tETATSHEC2CtERATZR 7.54887
13.04.2018 1,368,000 1,368,000 13.10.2018-12.04.2028 HK$11.216
“2-\¥mAT=H “E-N\FtAt=AE-E-N\FMAT=A 1121687
15.04.2019 - 1,776,000 1,776,000 15.10.2019-14.04.2029 HK$7.324
“E-N¥mATRA ZE-AETATEREZE-AFMATRA 7.324%87
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4= A

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT—hWEF+-_A=t—HIFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(CONTINUED)

The Company (Continued)

Outstanding
at

01.01.2019
R=B-0F
Date of grant -A-H
RHAH WATRE
Category II:
£o8
Employees
ER
12.01.2010 240,000
“2-T5-A+ZH
08.10.2012 3,500,000
“3-Z51+A/\R
05.04.2013 300,000
“Z-=£MAEA
30.12.2013 1,874,000
ZE-ZF+ZA=1A
07.10.2014 600,000
“E2-TE+ALR
07.10.2014 750,000
“3-TEALA
03.10.2017 1,250,000
“2-t41+A=R
15,627,000
Exercisable at the end
of the year
REFTHE
Weighted average
exercise price HK$7.378
EFETER 7.378%%

During the year
REER

Granted  Exercised Lapsed

BRM BT B&H

(280,000)

1,776,000 (280,000)

HK$7.324  HK$4.996
732481  4.996%T

42. fERREstE (&)

Outstanding
at
31.12.2019
R=ZB-h¥
+=A=t-H
LS
240,000
3,220,000

300,000

1,874,000

600,000

750,000

1,250,000

17,123,000

15,485,000

HK$7.411
741187

The weighted average share price on which the options

were exercised in current year is HK$6.80.

A2 7] (4&)

Exercise period

fiess

12.07.2010-11.01.2020

Exercise
price per
share

BREE

HK$2.200

Z§-¥EtAI-AB-§-EE-At-F 2.20047%

08.10.2013-07.10.2022

HK$4.996

“E-ZE+BNRE-E-CE1ALH 4.996% T

05.10.2013-04.04.2023

HK$5.620

—E-CE+RREAZ-E-=EMAMA 5.62087

30.12.2014-29.12.2023

“R-PE+=A=tHE

30.06.2015-06.10.2024

HK$7.300
7.300%7

HK$10.340

“E-REAB=TRZE-E-METAAA 10.340%7

03.10.2015-06.10.2024

HK$10.340

“E-RE+AZAECR-NETAAR 10.340% 7

03.10.2018-02.10.2027

HK$6.190

—E2-\E+B=RAZ-E-tE+AZA 6.190%7

REFDITERBERE Z NEFHRER

6.80/%8 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 42. BRAEST (&)

(CONTINUED)
The Company (Continued) AL a] (&)
Details of the Company’s share option schemes during REFE  AAa R ERESTEIFFEM
the prior year are summarised as follow: MR

Outstanding Outstanding

at at

01.01.2018 During the year 31.12.2018 Exercise

RIZ-N\E REER RIZ-\F price per
Date of grant —-A-B Granted Exercised lapsed T-A=1—H Exercise period share
b=l RIATTHE B Bt BAM MASTRE {76 BRITEE
Category I:
4
Directors
£Z
30.12.2013 876,000 - - - 876,000 30.06.2014-29.12.2023 HK$7.300
ZT-=5+ZR=+H “T-NERA=THZE 7.300/87C

ZEZ=EtZAZtNA

31.03.2015 1,338,000 - - - 1,338,000 30.09.2015-30.03.2025 HK$11.200
“Z-FF=A=t-H “Z-AFNAZTEZE-Z-RFZA=TA 11.200%71T
31.03.2016 1,761,000 - - - 1,761,000 30.09.2016-30.03.2026 HK$5.754
“Z-xF=f=t-H ZENENR=TREZZZE=A=1A 5.754770
13.04.2017 1,770,000 - - - 1,770,000 13.10.2017-12.04.2027 HK$7.548
“T-tEMA+=A “FtE+AT=RE-StENATZA 7.548/87T
13.04.2018 - 1,368,000 - - 1,368,000 13.10.2018-12.04.2028 HK$11.216
—Z-\fmA+=A ZE-\FTATZRE-Z\FNATZA  11.216%71
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 42, BRRwEsHEI(&)
(CONTINUED)
The Company (Continued) AL a] (&)
Outstanding Outstanding
at at
01.01.2018 During the year 31.12.2018 Exercise
R=E-N\F REER RN\ price per
Date of grant —-A-B Granted Exercised lapsed TZA=1—H Exercise period share
b=l HATTHE BEH Bt BAR HATE {76 BRTEE
Category II:
£-8:
Employees
E5
12.01.2010 240,000 - - - 240,000 12.07.2010-11.01.2020 HK$2.200
“Z-TE-A+ZH ZT-TEtRTZRE-T-TF-A+-H 2.200/870
20.12.2010 300,000 - (300,000) - - 20.06.2011-19.12.2020 HK$3.750
“Z-ZETZA=tH “E——FRAZTHE 3.750/87
ZZZZETZATAA
08.10.2012 4,136,000 - (636,000) - 3,500,000 08.10.2013-07.10.2022 HK$4.996
“2-—%tANR —F-—=F+R\BE-Z__%tAtA 4.996/57
05.04.2013 300,000 - - - 300,000 05.10.2013-04.04.2023 HK$5.620
~“Z-=4MAAA ~E--E+RRAE-Z-=4£MANA 5.620/570
30.12.2013 2,024,000 - (150,000) - 1,874,000 30.12.2014-29.12.2023 HK$7.300
Z3-=F+ZA=1H “Z-MET-A=TAZE 7.300/87C
ZE=ETZAZThE
07.10.2014 600,000 - - - 600,000 30.06.2015-06.10.2024 HK$10.340
“Z-METALA ZE-REARA=TREZZMETASA 10.340/57C
07.10.2014 750,000 - - - 750,000 03.10.2015-06.10.2024 HK$10.340
“T-METALA ZE-RFTAZAZ-Z-ME+AKRA 10.340% 7T
03.10.2017 1,250,000 - - - 1,250,000 03.10.2018-02.10.2027 HK$6.190
S - \#+A=AE-Z=t%t+A=H 6.190%7T
15,345,000 1,368,000  (1,086,000) - 15,627,000
Exercisable at the end of
the year
REXTA{TE 13,943,000
Weighted average
exercise price HK$6.865 HK$11.216  HK$4.970 - HK$7.378
T 6.865%57T 11.216%7  4.970%1 - 7.378% 7T
The weighted average share price on which the options LEEETEEREZMETARER
were exercised in prior year was HK$12.59. 12.59%87T ©
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iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 42. BRAEST (&)
(CONTINUED)
The Company (Continued) AL a] (&)
Particulars of share options: BARESFBT -
Exercise
price per
Date of grant Exercise period share
i B 1TEERAR BRITEE
HK$
BT
12.01.2010 (i) 50% exercisable not less than 6 months from date of grant 2.200
—E-TF but not more than 10 years, i.e. 12.07.2010-11.01.2020
—A+=H () EHFHN50%AETPREREBBHEASNERETEZN T4 - BlB=
T—ZTFELA+-—_HE_T-_TF— A+ —BHPERTE
(i) unexercised balance thereof be exercisable not less than 15
months from date of grant but not more than 10 years, i.e.
12.04.2011-11.01.2020
(i) HARITEONSBEAIETDRERL B BRET T REAERZR+TE - B
BH-_ET——FOA+BE_ZT_ZTF— A+ HHERNITE
20.12.2010 (i) 50% exercisable not less than 6 months from date of grant 3.750
—ET-TF but not more than 10 years, i.e. 20.06.2011-19.12.2020
+=A=+AH () ETN50%AIENPREREBBEANERETZN+F BB
T——FEXNA-F+HE-_T-TFE+ - A+ N BHEATE
(ii) unexercised balance thereof be exercisable not less than 15
months from date of grant but not more than 10 years, i.e.
20.03.2012-19.12.2020
(i) HWARITENSRBEANENDRERL BREF TREAEBENZR+F - B

- —FE=A-+HAE-_ZT=_ZTF+= A+N B HRAITE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 42. BIRET (&)
(CONTINUED)
The Company (Continued) AL a] (&)
Particulars of share options: (Continued) A EREBT - ()
Exercise
price per
Date of grant Exercise period share
R B THREHAME BRITEE
HK$
HBIT
08.10.2012 (i) 259,500 options exercisable not less than 6 months from 4.996
—ZE——F+H\H date of grant but not more than 10 years, i.e. 08.04.2013—
07.10.2022

() 259,500 BRI ET D B R H B B NER BT Z N+ - A
HZZ—=FWANRE_T__F+ A+-HEHERTE

(i) 259,500 options exercisable not less than 15 months from
date of grant but not more than 10 years, i.e. 08.01.2014—
07.10.2022

(i) 259,500 ERERIEN DR BT B BiET +RAEAETZRF -
BT —mE—ANBE_T=__F+ A+ AEBEATTE

(iii) 1,160,000 options exercisable during the period from
08.10.2013-07.10.2022

(iii)) 1,160,000 ERERIE—_ZE—=F+ANBE_Z__F+HLHH
RTTHE

(iv) 2,230,000 options exercisable during the period from
08.10.2014—-07.10.2022

(iv) 2,230,000fpEREAE_T—NF+ANRE-_T-_—F+ALHH
ERTT6E

(v) 2,650,000 options exercisable during the period from
08.10.2015-07.10.2022

(v) 2,650,000pfERERIE_E—AF+tANBE-_S-_—_F+AtHH
ERTTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(CONTINUED)

42. fERRERt 8 (&)

The Company (Continued) AL a] (&)

Particulars of share options: (Continued)

BREEELT : (8)

Exercise
price per
Date of grant Exercise period share
R B TR BRITEE
HK$
BT
05.04.2013 (i) 50% exercisable not less than 6 months but not more than 5.620
—E—=FTOAAH 10 years from the date of grant, i.e. 05.10.2013—-04.04.2023
(i) EHFNS50%AIENPREREBBHEASNERETEZN+F BBz
E—=F+ARHE_ZT - =FNAWMBEHEATTE
(ii) unexercised balance thereof be exercisable not less than 15
months from date of grant but not more than 10 years, i.e.
05.07.2014-04.04.2023
(i) RARITEABRBEAIENSDRBEEL B ERTREABTZR+F - A
H-Z—NOFE+tARRE-_FT = =F"AMABPERTTE
30.12.2013 (i) 1,614,000 options: 50% exercisable not less than 6 months 7.300
—ET-=F but not more than 10 years from the date of grant, i.e.
+=-HA=+H 30.06.2014 — 29.12.2023; and in respect of the unexercised

@

@i
(i)
(iii)
(iii)
(@iv)
(@iv)

balance thereof be exercisable not less than 15 months
but not more than 10 years from the date of grant, i.e.
30.03.2015-29.12.2023

1,614,000 Bkt : B HI50% AIE TR B & B HRLET /< E A
BRZR+E = NEAA=+HZE=ZE=_=F+=A=+h
HERRAITEE - RREEEARITENGET S - AIETDRER L B BE
H+RBEAEAZRTE R RE=A=tREE_ZE_=4%
T A=+ BEERTTE

669,000 options will be exercisable during the period from
30.12.2014 to 29.12.2023

669,000 EREAINR T —NF+_A=THE_ZT=_=F1+=H
T BEREAITE

669,000 options will be exercisable during the period from
30.12.2015 to 29.12.2023

669,000 EREAI N —_T—AF+ _A=1tRE_T_=F+_H
Z+ A BERATTE

702,000 options will be exercisable during the period from
30.12.2016 to 29.12.2023

702,000 R IEATRN _E—RFE+_A=+RE_T_=F+_H
—tThBHREATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 42. BIRET (&)
(CONTINUED)
The Company (Continued) AL a] (&)
Particulars of share options: (Continued) A EREBT - ()
Exercise
price per
Date of grant Exercise period share
RH B8 TR BRITEE
HK$
BT
07.10.2014 (i) 600,000 options: 50% will be exercisable during the period 10.340
—ZE-WFEt+ALR from 30.06.2015 to 06.10.2024; and 50% will be exercisable
during the period from 30.06.2016 to 06.10.2024
(i) 600,000 fERME : EFHS50% AR _TE—AFSA=THRE_T
—mFE+ANEBERTE  X50% R _E—AFAAA=Z+tHEZ
T_MFE+ ANBEBERTE
(ii) 250,000 options will be exercisable during the period from
03.10.2015 to 06.10.2024
(i) 250,000 BHREAIN _T—HF+A=BE_T_NF+ AXEHH
M1TE
(iii) 250,000 options will be exercisable during the period from
03.10.2016 to 06.10.2024
(iii) 250,000/ EARERIN —ZE—RF+HA=HE T NF+ H/XH A
AT
(iv) 250,000 options will be exercisable during the period from
03.10.2017 to 06.10.2024
(iv) 250,000 BBREAIN _T—+F+A=RE_T_NF+ XA HH
RTTE
31.03.2015 (i) 669,000 options will be exercisable during the period from 11.200
—T—hfF 30.09.2015 to 30.03.2025
=A=t+—H” (i) 669,000 EREATN _E—AFNA=TEE-_ZE_AF=A="H
HIRI AT

(i) 669,000 options will be exercisable during the period from
30.06.2016 to 30.03.2025

(i) 669,000 EREAIN T —"FAA=-FTHEZZ-_AF=H="+H
HEATTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(CONTINUED)

42. fERRERt 8 (&)

The Company (Continued) AL a] (&)

Particulars of share options: (Continued)

BREEELT : (8)

Exercise
price per
Date of grant Exercise period share
RH B8 TR BRITEE
HK$
BT
31.03.2016 (i) 880,500 options will be exercisable during the period from 5.754
—T—RF 30.09.2016 to 30.03.2026
—A=+—H (i) 880,500 BEREAIR_E—A"FNA=THEZE - F=A=1H
HARATTHE
(ii) 880,500 options will be exercisable during the period from
30.06.2017 to 30.03.2026
(i) 880,500 ERERIN T —+tF A AHA=THEHEZT=-F=H=1H
HERTTE
13.04.2017 (i) 885,000 options will be exercisable during the period from 7.548
—T—+F 13.10.2017 to 12.04.2027
mMA+=H (i) 885,000 BHREAIN_T—+F+A+=RE_ZT_+tFMA+_H
HEATTE
(ii) 885,000 options will be exercisable during the period from
13.07.2018 to 12.04.2027
(i) 885,000 BEREATN_ZE—N\F+rAT=BZ_F_+FMA+_H

HRE 1T
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 42. B e8I (&)
(CONTINUED)
The Company (Continued) AL a] (&)
Particulars of share options: (Continued) A EREBT - ()
Exercise
price per
Date of grant Exercise period share
R B THEHARE BRITHEE
HK$
BT
03.10.2017 (i) 250,000 options will be exercisable during the period from 6.190
—T—+¥+H=H 03.10.2018 to 02.10.2027
() 250,000 BHREFIN_T—-N\F+A=RE_T_+F+A_RHH
AT
(i) 250,000 options will be exercisable during the period from
03.10.2019 to 02.10.2027
(i) 250,000 BHREFIN-_E—NF+A=RE_T_+F+A-HHH
M7
(iif) 250,000 options will be exercisable during the period from
03.10.2020 to 02.10.2027
(iii) 250,000 EREAIN_ZE_TF+A=HE Tt F+ H_HHIH
AT
(iv) 500,000 options will be exercisable during the period from
03.10.2021 to 02.10.2027
(iv) 500,000 BBREAIN _T - —F+A=RE_T_+F+A_RHH
RTTE
13.04.2018 (i) 684,000 options will be exercisable during the period from 11.216
—E-N\F 13.10.2018 to 12.04.2028
mMA+=H (i) 684,0000BEEINR_T-N\F+A+T=RE_Z-/\FOA+_H
HAR AT

(ii) 684,000 options will be exercisable during the period from
13.07.2019 to 12.04.2028

(i) 684,000 EREAINR " -—NFLtA+=—HEZS - /\FHA+=H
HAM AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 42. BBIRET 8 (&)
(CONTINUED)
The Company (Continued) AL a] (&)
Particulars of share options: (Continued) BAEREBWT - ()
Exercise
price per
Date of grant Exercise period share
R B TR BRITEE
HK$
BT
15.04.2019 (i) 888,000 options will be exercisable during the period from 7.324
—T-NF 15.10.2019 to 14.04.2029
mA+HH (i) 888,000 BHREAIN_T-NF+ATRERE_ZT-_NAFMOA+TA
HRATTHE
(i) 888,000 options will be exercisable during the period from
15.07.2020 to 14.04.2029
(i) 888,000NEMEAN T _ZTFLATABRE_ZT_NFNA+IA
BRI A TIE
The following table summarised movements in the N ZR B R A 7] B AR A A AN 2 A Y
Company’s share options during the year: & :
Outstanding Outstanding
at at
01.01.2019 During the year 31.12.2019
R=B-N%F REFER R=ZB-1%F
—H—H Granted Exercised Lapsed +=H=+—H
ief RATAE g2 2171 BRM fe) R AT
Directors EF
Lee Siu Fong N 2,617,000 592,000 - - 3,209,000
Leelalertsuphakun 2 (4%

Wanee 2,417,000 592,000 — — 3,009,000
Li Xiaoyi =Y x 2,079,000 592,000 - - 2,671,000
Directors’ total By 7,113,000 1,776,000 - - 8,889,000
Employees ES 8,514,000 - (280,000) - 8,234,000
Grand total Faey 15,627,000 1,776,000 (280,000) - 17,123,000

248 Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEERZEAL A R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(CONTINUED)
The Company (Continued)

The Company issues equity-settled share options to
certain employees and consultants. Equity-settled share
options are measured at fair value (excluding the effect
of non-market-based vesting conditions) at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share options is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of shares that will eventually become vested
and adjusted for the effect of non-market-based vesting
conditions.

The fair value of the total options granted during the
year measured as at the date of grant on 15 April 2019 is

HK$5,288,000.

The following significant assumptions were used to derive
the fair value:

1. exercise price HK$7.324;

2. expected volatility 41.354%;

3. the options life is 10 years;

4. annualised dividend yield of 1.634%; and

5. the risk free rate of 1.677%.

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year was valued by Peak Vision Appraisal Limited,
independent professional valuers not connected to the
Group. The valuation was derived by the Binomial Model

taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

42. fBlRERt 8 ()

A2 a] ()

ARRABAE T EE KB RITIABRES
BB - LRGSR 2 BERERE
HE R Z A FEAE(TREFMSILR
Btz FE) - UBREEE 2 BERER
REERBEZAFE  NIERRAEHE
FriaFI SR BB 2R - REBHANA
BAUAXEE  YHRFEMHUEREB R
FEMELFE -

FRNAAROBREEREZ ATE PR
HHBH -_Z-NDFUATRBFESR
5,288,000/ T, °

1. 17E(E7.324/87T

2. TAHIKIEEE41.354% ;

3. BREASMHATE:

4. FEREE1.634% Kk

5. ERRMNE1.677% °
FARLZ BREN D TEDHRETN
HERAR(EASEVERENBEYE

ELERD) AT - KEERLBERAEZ K
AR A BEAR A S HAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(CONTINUED)

The Subsidiary — CVie Therapeutics
Company Limited

A subsidiary of the Company, CVie Therapeutics
Company Limited (“CVie”), also operates a share option
scheme (the “CVie’s Scheme”). The CVie's Scheme was
adopted pursuant to a resolution on 5 November 2012
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to eligible
employees of CVie. The share options were granted on
30 November 2012 and will expire on 30 November
2022. Under the CVie’'s Scheme, the board of directors of
CVie may grant options to eligible employees and eligible
grantees.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the CVie’'s Scheme shall not
exceed 500,000 shares of CVie. The overall limit on the
number of shares of CVie which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the CVie scheme and any other share
option schemes of CVie must not exceed 30% of the
shares of CVie in issue from time to time, without prior
approval from the shareholders of CVie.

All of the option granted are lapsed during the year
ended 31 December 2018. No options are granted for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

42. fERRERt 8 (&)

K18 2 5] — FE] £ n B YL RE

Rz &l

RAGIMBARIREEmEYLRER
BRAR([HPEED®]) NEEBRETE
([hEEwmETE ) - FEEmEEIRE
—E——FE+—- AR ERERE
By xZEMNARPEETHEER
EERMEE BREIN_ZT—=F
+T—A=1+HRL  UHR=ZFT==
+T—RA=+HEM BREPE LW
g FRETmHESENRAERKESR
REBRAR AR LB -

B P B A Ap 5T 81 AT BB IR O R AR B AT
W R H AR (D 4B E T 15 15 500,000 X H
BHAEmKRD BEESEESHEEDR
REHtE - ATEREBEPREMTE R
FR B A A ] L i B AR A T I R AT
RITER T BT SNIE AR AE 1T AT AE 3%
THRE A MmN S E NERERETS
BB TR E TR R B A T IR D HI30% ©
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BHEZT-NF+-_A=1+—"HIFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 42. BRRESTEI(E)
(CONTINUED)
The Subsidiary — CVie Therapeutics BB A al — PE L i YRR

Company Limited (Continued) R 2

] (#)

Details of the CVie’s Scheme during the prior year are TR EFER B RS 5S¢

summarised as follows:

Outstanding Outstanding
at at
01.01.2018 During the year 31.12.2018 Exercise
RZE-N\% REEER RZE-N\% price per
Date of grant —R-H Granted Exercised Lapsed +=H=1—H Exercise period share
Rt HARTHRE ERM B BAX HATRE TRAH BRITEE
Tranche 1
i
30.11.2012 133,000 - - (133,000) - Note a HK$1.628
“E-ZF+-A=1H ftita 1.628%57T
Tranche 2
EHt
30.11.2012 267,000 - - (267,000) — Note b HK$1.628
“E-F+-A=1H ftib 1628757
Tranche 3
F=Hit
30.11.2012 40,000 - - (40,000) - 01.12.2014-30.11.2022 HK$1.628
“E-E+-A=1H “Z-WEF-A-AZ 1.628% T
ZEIZEt-A=TH
440,000 - - (440,000) -
Exercisable at the end
of the year
RERTTTR -
Weighted average
exercise price HK$1.628 - - HK$1.628 -
IETIEE 1.628/T - - 1.628%T -
Notes: FfaE -
a. Upon the successful completion of Phase Il study of either L HA R IH 78 X Rostafuroxin sk Istaroxime

Rostafuroxin or Istaroxime but not more than ten years
from the date of grant.

b. One year after the successful completion of Phase Il study b.
of either Rostafuroxin or Istaroxime but not more than ten
years from the date of grant.

— HERRETIEIR - (BN B R A A
ity e

AR IH 7E Ak Rostafuroxinsk Istaroxime
—HAER R —4F - ENEBABERE
HHER#EET14F o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 42. BBIRET 8 (&)
(CONTINUED)
The Subsidiary — CVie Therapeutics B A E] — FE LY LR
Company Limited (Continued) R2 5] (#&)
Particulars of share options: BIRERFE
Exercise
price per
Date of grant Exercise period share
R B8 1TEEHAR BRITHEE
Tranche 1 (i) 133,000 options will be exercisable upon the successful HK$1.628
30.11.2012 completion of Phase Il study of either Rostafuroxin or
Istaroxime but not more than ten years from the date of
grant
F—Ht (i) 133,00013 B HE S A Rostafuroxinsk Istaroxime 55 — B ER AT 72k T 1.628% 7T
—E—=F SERIE R TLATTE - ENEBERE B R +F
+—A=+H
Tranche 2 (i) 267,000 options will be exercisable one year after the HK$1.628
30.11.2012 successful completion of Phase Il study of either Rostafuroxin
or Istaroxime but not more than ten years from the date of
grant
E8 (i) 267,000 B #E 15 Rostafuroxinak Istaroxime 55 — B R A 75 5k T 1.628/8 7T
—E—=fF TER R —F R FLATTEE - ETBEBRE B RE+F
+—A=+H
Tranche 3 (i) 40,000 options will be exercisable during the period HK$1.628
30.11.2012 01.12.2014-30.11.2022
E=4t (i) 40,000BEEEEN_T-—HNF+_A-RE_ZT-_"F+—A=+ 1.628% 7T
—T——fF HHEABART{T{E
+—A=+H

AEBERBEE=_ZS - LG +=A
=t HEFEBAARRIRFRHLED
PR 5% H 1Y B IR i 7R B 5,461,000
JT(ZZF—/\%F : 5,036,000/7T) °

The Group has recognised an expense of HK$5,461,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$5,036,000) in relation to share options granted by
the Company and CVie.

252 Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEER1ZEAL A R A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to owners of the Company
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt (which includes borrowings and lease liabilities/
obligations under finance leases net of cash and cash
equivalents) and equity attributable to the owners of
the Company (comprising issued share capital, share
premium, reserves and retained profits).

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

43. EXERER

AEBETERERE  ABEREAEEZ
ERENFEER  RANBRBLES
RBRAGBHRERNRBHEES A B REAK
- AEFES  AREZEERBR

AEBEZ ERGRBRERFR(BEN
BRRekReSEZEEREERE/
BMEMEARE) RARBER ARGOE
S (BRED BTN BEE - #Ek
REEH)

EEEEBLE

RiEPRERE ZEERBLERNAT

follows:

2018

—E-N\F

HK$’000

TR

Debt (Note 1) B (L) 130,874
Cash and cash equivalents Re&REEE (222,296)
Net debt B FE (91,422)
Equity (Note 2) R (faE2) 2,210,543
Net debt to equity ratio DER=R g s N/A
N3 A

Notes:

1. Debts are defined as bank and other borrowings and lease
liabilities/obligations under finance leases as described
in notes 32, 33 and 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

2. Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to the
owners of the Company.

PEE
1. EBER/FAPBHRRAMEI2

33 & 34Ffil 2 8717 R H Ath & A R A
EaE MEREHE -

2. EaBREARTEEAERGEZAEER
Keftit -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44. B TR
Categories of financial instruments B% T AEXEE
2018
—EF-)\F
HK$’000
THTT
Financial assets S EE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFESBERSRNEEE 36,362
Financial assets at FVTOCI BATESBEMEEREIERER
WIS EE 606,415
Financial assets at amortised cost RS AR BRI T & 700,984
1,343,761
Financial liabilities MKkEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1&Z# HK AT RN B E 484,040
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAFESEBERSIRNEAE —
484,040

Financial risk management objectives

The Group’s corporate treasury function provides
services to the business units, co-ordinates access to
domestic and international financial markets, monitors
and manages the financial risks relating to the operations
of the Group through internal risk reports which analyse
exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These
risks include market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

HMEEBEEER R

AEEPFRBMBERSEHEMRERR
% HREABARBRERTS 3B
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives
(Continued)

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these
risks and may use derivative financial instruments to
hedge risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives
is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the
board of directors, which provide written principles on
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the
use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial
instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. The
Group does not enter into or trade derivative financial
instruments for speculative purposes.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial
risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rates. The Group may enter into foreign currency
forward contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising
on foreign currency purchase.

Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity
analysis.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which these risks are
managed and measured.

Foreign currency risk management
The Group undertakes transactions denominated in

foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange
rate fluctuations arise.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

44, BIET R (&)

HEEBREZE R (A

AREBEREBEAITENBE T ELHE
@ ASRBLFRBROFZER M -
MBITETANERAIKESTSMEL
AEEBRAMEE @ ZFHERIEHIMNE
Rk - MXRERE - EERR - ERMB
TETRETAEMBTE  URKRE
SHORPESZETRE - AEEY
BRIVREETAMBTAERERR -

AEEERAMBIAEZRR 2 BRHA
SEEENGERBARR AL EE
ib o

5 B
AEEXGEERNEZMBRR SINE
PER AR #E) o NREEA ] IME

BN ASITEEINERE L NEX
Rk

NEERE DT ETSER

ARBEYTEARKNER R BUE
B2 AL RS -

INERBEERE

AREBETUINEEEZRS - BHItL
EXRFBREBREL
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44. BB T A (&)
(CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued) 5 (&)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued) IR R EE ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency AEBER RS BAFARFEAIINEEBE 2
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at EMEEREBABEZRABNAT

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2019 2018 2019 2018
= s T \F =i T \F
EDEHoelol HK$'000 WEDEHeloM HK$000
FET T FTET FAT
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARE(TAR®E]D) 432,484 LYl 340,913 144,412

United States Dollars E(E S )]

“UsSs$”) 548,147 109,669 169,367 68,486
Euro (“EUR”) BT ([&Tl) 1,425 523 83,470 50,854
Pound Sterling (“GBP”) s ([ 8 ]) 3 3 = =
New Taiwan Dollars mak(Hanl)

(“NTD") 2,287
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) HE( AE]) 438 1,398

984,784 609,158

271,799
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44, BB T A (&)
(CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued) 5 (&)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis INEBURE DT
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% TRFAMAEEFABBEING KB T 2 (&
(2018: 5%) increase in the relevant foreign currencies K EA5%(=F—/\F : 5%) 2 HKE
against HK$. The sensitivity analysis includes only DT o BURE D ITEBRIEAIINEEE 2
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary MAREEERKIER - WIAINE H R E
items and adjusted their translation at the period end 5% L HEIRME(ERE - FHE TR
for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive ki 2 G H0 - ¥ 5% 208 B R R A
number indicates an increase in profit or equity whereas iR o BARBING KT 2 EX
a number in bracket indicates a decrease in profit or WMAB%(ZF—/\F : 5%) * Al %n
equity. For a 5% (2018: 5%) decrease in the relevant ks E AR EFEERR 2 Z2E -

foreign currencies against HK$, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit or equity.

Other comprehensive

Profit or loss income
Bz Hi 2 mEks
2018 2018
—EB-NF —B-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FATT FATT
RMB AR 2,153 15,492
uss EH 2,059 —
EUR BT (2,517) =
GBP E25 — -
NTD ek - 13
JPY =YIE] (332) -
1,363 15,505
In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is ERERE  BRESNLREREKE
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk A HNE R - Ty R AR B I A I R
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure FAERE -

during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because
entities in the Group borrow funds at floating and fixed
interest rates. The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure periodically.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for both
derivative and non-derivative instruments at the end
of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the
liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2018: 50 basis points) increase or decrease in variable-
rate borrowings is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. Bank balances are excluded
from sensitivity analysis as the directors of the Company
consider that the exposure of cash flow rate risk from
variable-rate bank balances is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2018: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s pre-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2019 would decrease/increase by
HK$569,000 (2018: decrease/increase by HK$646,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate borrowings.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through
its investment in financial assets with the underlying
assets are equity securities. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on entities operating in
biopharmaceutical industry which are either listed in
Nasdaq Capital Market®/OTC Stock Market or unlisted.

Other price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting period.

If the price of the equity instruments had been 5%
(2018: 5%) higher/lower, other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2019 would increase/
decrease by HK$26,949,000 (2018: increase/decrease
by HK$24,533,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of financial assets at FVTOCI.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

44, BIET R (&)

G ()
Rt EAE AR

AEETFRBEBENVHEE(ETHH
BERBARES ) 2 & MAXBAER
Rk - AEERRAERREREEZES
REEMRETEZENBRBANER
HERKRRENIS®/ BIRZBRETIS L
MR EMEAER °

HtbERSBRED T

BA T GURRE 27 TOARIER 3745 HI R R
A EREREETET -

MERATAGHRIEMN B 5%(=F
—N\FE 5%) #HE-_ZT-—AFE+—=
A=+—BLEFE 22 Ekes g
m,/ w4 26,949,000 T (=T — )\
& 0,54 24,533,00058 L) 0 Uit
TVEAFESEBEMEE KRNI
BEENFEZEBME -

Annual Report 2019 3R

259



260

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR SRR T ot

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
counterparties is the carrying amount of each financial
asset as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group’s credit risk exposure is spread over a
number of counterparties and customers. Hence, it
has no significant concentration of credit risk by single
counterparty. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on
the financial condition of receivables.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework to
meet the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding
and liquidity management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a Repayment on
Demand Clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

44,

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

MBI A (&)

MEEL AR EE

nBEcRBERLRRETERES
€ EFCCRVAEZIAPDEZAR
BEER  UWOAAKEZEH  +H
EEHECHERRBDESEEER -
AEEBBER EHHE  RTBER
REEERE  RHEEEBRARERZ
BenEkEHMBEERBE DM
BRREE RS E AR -

\

i

RBEER

TRABRNEEFTERBREZIHRT
BHEHA - ZFXRBIREAKE R
EAXNZERREMZMBRE IR
RARSRERHE - ABME  MAEE
SOE R GERZ RITEREFFARERE
A SRITEBITHE RN Z AT RENE -
HaEPTAEMBABZZI B A UBHHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44, BT A (&)
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk management (Continued) HEELTREREE (B)
Liquidity tables (Continued) REBELR(E)
Weighted On
average demand or Total
interest  less than More than undiscounted  Carrying
rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
il RER AURRE

FENE  SR-F  BB-F  REAH REE
%  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
% TAT TAT TAT TAT

At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=A=+—H
Non-derivative financial  JEfTEBRBEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables AN
HAt (TR — 477,363 — 477,363 477,363
Leases liabilities HEEE 2.83-4.18 10,399 13,909 24,308 23,109
Bank and other borrowings 817X EMER 2.88-4.33 153,111 — 153,111 144,834
Retirement benefits RINER 4.73-5.20 — 262,119 262,119 89,230
640,873 276,028 916,901 734,536
At 31 December 2018 RZIZ-N\F
+-A=1+-H
Non-derivative financial —~ FEfTERBEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables EHBZRFRR
HtvfERFIE - 290,184 — 290,184 290,184
Obligations under finance MERSHE
leases 3.72-3.79 904 801 1,705 1,640
Bank and other borrowings  $R{TREMER 2.88-4.79 140,309 = 140,309 129,234
Retirement benefits RINEF 5.21-6.10 = 248,120 248,120 62,982

431,397 248,921 680,618 484,040
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at

AFER

44, BIET R (&)

MBI AZ A FEE

AEEETHMHEERMBREDRE
BREPRERKE ZAFEAE - TRIE
HUAEEXEMBEERMBAER
FEZERM(LERMERA 2 AERM R

wAHIE) -

Financial asset/ Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant
Financial liability 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable inputs
HBEE/ MHER ZE-NFtZAZ+-B ZB-N\FrZAZ+-B AVESER  AERWRIZBAHE TEFTRENBAYE
Financial assets at fair Investments in life Investments in life Level 2 Based on the lowest level of  N/A
value through profit or insurance policies insurance policies input and cash value.
loss HK$3,651,000 HK$3,588,000
BRATEERBRIIGNGE ASRRRERE ASRBRERE EZR HERBABBNSEKTRRSE  TEAR
BE 3,651,000 7 3,588,000/ {BfE-
Financial assets at fair Investments in N/A Level 2 Based on the lowest level N/A
value through profit or club debenture of input such as quoted
loss HK$3,800,000 price.
RATEEABRIRNMYE 8REFRE3,800,000 EA £ ERGABBOSEAT (R FER
£ BT f&)-
Financial assets at fair Unlisted warrants Unlisted warrants Level 2 Binomial Model was used N/A
value through profit or HK$48,161,000 HK$32,774,000 by applying a discrete
loss timestep lattice model
of the varying price over
time of the underlying
financial instrument which
based on current stock
price in active market,
the exercise price, time
to expiration and risk free
rate.
BRATEERERFRONE  FEmARES F Eh R EZR BREAEENBIARRERER TEAR
BE 48,161,000% 70 32,774,000 R AR BRI R

BAREREABRALIZ
EERMSRE - 17E - 2
HEBRRERRNR ARG -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44. BT B (&)

(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

MBI AZ A FEE(E)

Fair value as at

Financial asset/ D¥ER Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant
Financial liability 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable inputs
BHEE/BBAR ZE-NETZASt-B ZB-N\FTZA=+-B AVESR  AERWRIEBABE TETTENEAHE
Financial assets at fair Convertible promissory ~ N/A Level 2 Partial differential equation, ~ N/A
value through profit notes HK$2,543,000 especially the Crank-
loss Nicolson finite-difference
method, was used by
applying discount rate,
volatility levels and
underlying stock price as
quoted in active market.
BATERERRIIRNYE  TARERRE ER £ ERERE  RBKTRNE Gyl
£ 2,543,000 70 BSHELAERE - K

Financial assets at fair Unlisted warrants N/A
value through profit or HK$1,062,000
loss

BATEERER) FEmRRER TR
RNBREE 1,062,000 70

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

BfREHA A (AEAE -
Crank-Nicolson&RZ %
&)

Binomial Model was used by

applying discrete time-
step lattice model of
varying price over time of
the underlying financial
instrument which based
on the exercise price, time
to expiration, risk free rate
and stock price determined
by Income Approach.

ERERAENBIECARIA

EEEMTRE - FIEER
ERRNZRHSRERER)
(BFRERSTMA A NA B
BREAEEARER ZEAR
%o

Long-term revenue growth

rates, taking into account of
management’s experience
and knowledge of market
conditions of the specific
industries, ranging from

3% to 22%. Discount rate,
considering the weighted
average cost of capital
(“WACC") determined using
a Capital Asset Pricing Model
(“CAPM”), of 14.73%.
Increase in growth rate or
decrease in discount rate
would result in an increase in
fair value measurement, and
vice versa.

REPAERENFI%E

22% ' REREEERTE
TEMREBRRAE o B3R
R14.73%  BEEFRE
REETEEL([CAPM])
BN METYERRKA
(TWACC])  BREA N5,
BRERR D B R AT
SREMN RZIHA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value as at

44. BT R (&)

MHE TRz A FEE ()

Financial asset/ D¥ER Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant
Financial liability 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable inputs
BHEE/BBAR ZE-NETZASt-B ZB-N\FTZA=+-B AVESR  AERWRIEBABE TETTENEAHE
Financial assets at fair Listed overseas Listed overseas Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A
value through other equity securities equity securities active market.
comprehensive income HK$478,594,000 HK$490,652,000
BRATEEBEMEIENSS B ETRAES BN ERAE 5 £ RERTRHELEAE Em
BBBAE 478,594,000 490,652,000
Financial assets at fair Unlisted partnership Unlisted partnership Level 3 Based on the net asset value  The fair values estimated
value through other investment investment with reference to the prices with reference to the latest
comprehensive income HK$75,950,000 HK$71,272,000 of underlying investment private/market transaction.
portfolio quoted by fund
administrator.
BRATERAEMEIENSS FLHA¥RE FEMa¥RE E=k AREESFE(ZEECERARN  ATENZESERLA/ T
BHEBEE 75,950,000 7T 71,272,000 BNRBREALER) - Lo ETIkE
Financial assets at fair Unlisted equity Unlisted equity Level 3 Income approach, the Long-term revenue growth
value through other securities securities discounted cash flow rates, taking into account
comprehensive income HK$53,787,000 HK$37,544,000 method was used to management’s experience
capture the present and knowledge of market
value of the expected conditions of the specific
future economic benefits industries, ranging from
to be derived from the 3% to 20%. Discount rate,
ownership of this investee, taking into account of WACC
based on an appropriate determined using a CAPM, of
discount rate. 14.73% to 15.57%. Increase
in growth rate or decrease
in discount rate would result
in an increase in the fair
value measurement, and vice
Versa.
BATEFAEMEENES] FETRAES ¥ ETRAES E= WNE-RRUERREREEN  RENGERENT3%E
BHEBEE 53,787,000 37,544,00057C REGEHMAR HEMZ  20% GEREREREN

BRE D A RESHES
AREERIEHAEE -

EMREGR R - BRE

14.73%Z%15.57%  B£E
fEFCAPMETEMIWACC « 3%
REMEMKBRRNFD
BHATESNEN k2
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44. BT B (48)
(CONTINUED)
Fair value measurements of financial BB TAZ R FEE(E)

instruments (Continued)

Fair value as at

Financial asset/ D¥ER Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant
Financial liability 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable inputs
BHEE/ HBAE ZE-NETZASt-B ZB-N\FTZA=+-B AVESR  AERWRIEBABE TETTENEAHE
Financial assets at fair Unlisted equity Unlisted equity Level 3 Market approach uses Price-To-Book ratio (“PB
value through other securities securities prices and other relevant ratio”) taking into account of
comprehensive income HK$6,590,000 HK$6,947,000 information generated comparing similar industrial’s

by market transactions
involving identical or
comparable assets and
liabilities, a group of asset

and liabilities.
BATERBEMZEKERS FELmRAES ¥ EmRAES E= ez REy RER%AY
ROBBEE 6,590,000/75 6,947,000/7C REE B —HEERSE
BRMSRAMEEMERR

HAIERER «

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

market, ranging from 0.81
to 14.80. Discount of lack
of marketability (“DLOM”),
taking into account of
discount between public
market and market for
privately held stock of 20%.
Decrease in PB ratio and
DLOM would result in an
increase in the fair value
measurement, and vice
Versa.

EZEILBRUTEDS - T

RE(HER)NT0.812

14.80 - EZREARMER
ABRZER - B2 TR0
BmE (B heRELT
#1)A20% - mRERFE T
STAHTRORD BEHA
B 2R - R2HA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value as at

AHER

ire BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

44. BT R (&)

MHE TRz A FEE ()

Financial asset/ Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant
Financial liability 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable inputs
UHEE/ HBEE ZE-NFTZASt-B ZEB-N\FTZAS+-B AVESR  AERNRIEBABE IEFTRAGAYE
Retirement benefits Liabilities Liabilities Level 3 Discounted cash flows Annualised historical growth
HK$89,230,000 HK62,982,000 method was used to rate of 4.3%. Discount rate
capture the present value determined by the Hong Kong
of the expected future Interest Rate Swap Curve,
economic benefits that adjusted by county risk
will flow out of the Group premium and option adjusted
arising from the retirement ~ spread, ranging from 4.73%
benefits period till the year t0 5.20%. An decrease
of retirement. in annualised historical
growth rate or increase in
discount rate would result in
a decrease in the fair value
measurement, and vice
Versa.
SRINER #1589,230,000/7C 562,982,000/ =5 ERACRBADANGLRE  FEMELERR4.3%  §5
ERIEZAIMRABHNEDR T EBR R RhAE
HARE B AR ERN T BEREREE RS
HEE - BEBRE NT4.73%2

5.20% ° FE(LELEREN
RSB RS NS EHA
TEFERED  R2HA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value as at

44. BT R (&)

MHE TRz A FEE(E)

Financial asset/ D¥ER Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant
Financial liability 31.12.2019 31.12.2018 hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable inputs
BHEE/BBAR ZE-NETZASt-B ZB-N\FTZA=+-B AVESR  AERWRIEBABE TETTENEAHE
Derivative financial Liabilities N/A Level 3 Income approach, the Discount rate, considering the
liabilities HK$80,085,000 discounted cash flow WACC determined using a
method was used to CAPM, of 25.5%. DLOM,
capture the present considering the discount
value of the expected between public market and
future economic benefits market for privately held
to be derived from stock of 20%. Success
the ownership of the rate of drug development,
underlying entities, based with reference to published
on an appropriate discount ophthalmology drug
rate. development rate of 15.2%.
Decrease in discount rate or
Equity allocation model decrease in DLOM or increase
known as option-pricing in success rate of drug
method was used to development would result in
obtain the values of an increase in the fair value
liquidation preference and measurement, and vice
redemption right based Versa.
on the equity value of
the underlying entities
obtained by discounted
cash flow method. The
option-pricing method
treats common stock
and preferred stock as
call options on the equity
value, with exercise prices
based on the liquidation
preference, redemption
right and conversion prices
of the preferred stock.
ikp iz £1580,085,000/57C oyl =5 WAE-REERRSREEN  EZERACAPMETE

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

BEESHMAR - GHER
BREROMBRESNESEA
RAEEM R °

BENREA(RASETEE)
TiREEEERIGRA SR
EZRGNRERE UG
RERERNEERERIE -
S EAR LB LR
RAHKEEENERDE
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B RREREAERE
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—Z-NF+-A=+—HIFE

44. BT A (48)

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the RAFE  FE—REF_HHETEE
current year. B o
The directors consider that the amounts of financial assets EEZRANEE WTEHRENER 27
and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated BEMIBEBE 2EEFRE A TE
financial statements approximate their fair values. HaE e
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value FE=RAFEGTEZH K
measurements
Financial assets (liabilities)
BBEE(SR)
FVTOCI - FVTOCI -
FVTPL - Unlisted Unlisted Derivative
Unlisted equity  partnership  Convertible  Retirement financial
warrants securities  investment instrument benefits liabilities
EAVEER  BATEES
Eth2EhE  EtdEkE
BATEES Sl - it -
5% ERT 7N ) fi&
FEmRAES &% RE TERIA BARER BHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr T ThT ThI ThI ThL
Year ended HE-E-1%
31 December 2019 TZAZT-ALEE
Opening balance Eied 71,272 (62,982) -
Additions ) 5,834 - (86,636)
Total gain (loss): B (518) -
— in profit or loss ~NB&ER - (26,248) 6,551
— in other comprehensive income  ~REf2ENERA (1,156) - -
Closing balance EiSe 75,950 (89,230) (80,085)
Year ended BE-E-\E
31 December 2018 tZB=t-BLEE
Opening balance &S - - - 3,165 (56,010) -
Reclassification under REBRHBHEEY
HKFRS 9 FIRENIR - 46,671 65,909 - - -
Additions il - - 10,990 3,724 = =
Conversion of common shares ~ EHAZER = 6,957 = (6,957) = =
Total gain (loss): s () :
— in profit or loss -RERR - - - - (6,972) -
— in other comprehensive income  ~REf2ENER - (9,137) (5,627) = = =
Interest income HISHA - - - 68 = =
Closing balance B = 44,491 71,272 = (62,982) =
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

44,

45,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

Of the total gains or losses for the year included in profit
or loss:

- there is HK$26,248,000 loss (2018: HK$6,972,000
loss) related to retirement benefits recognised
under “administrative expense”; and

— there are HK$1,062,000 gain (2018: Nil) and
HK$6,551,000 gain (2018: Nil) related to financial
assets at FVTPL and derivative financial liabilities
respectively recognised under “other gains or
losses, net”.

Included in other comprehensive income is an amount
of HK$5,761,000 gain (2018: HK$14,764,000 loss)
related to unlisted equity securities classified as financial
assets at FVTOCI held at the end of the reporting period
and is reported as changes of “investments revaluation
reserve”.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows are, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

44,

45,

MBI A (&)

B=RRFlETEBZHRE

At AREMF AR SRE IR

—  RITHER |\ EREEENKE
#)26,248,000/8 TEE( = — N\
% : 6,972,000 TEE) : &

— I EfUasskEiEFEE ] P ER
EAZATEERETS? RN
BEERTENBABED B A
1,062,000 T = (=T — N\
& L) K%6,551,000/8 TS (=
T—N\F:F)o

ETAE b2 E s A TR BN FR A B R
FERATFTESREMEEKEIIRLY
MBEESDBAELTRABZLFEHEN
+ %8 45,761,0008 Tl (ZZF— N
F : 14,764,000 LER)  WIEAIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

45. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 45 METHEENEEZHER
ARISING FROM FINANCING (&)
ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Lease
liabilities/
Bank and Obligations
other under finance
borrowings leases Total
FITR HERE
Hit e BB ERIE ez
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET THT
Notes 33
Note 32 and 34
fizt32 Mi7E33 %34
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—\F—H—H 99,004 1,001 100,005
Changes from financing cash ~ BER&HEF :
flows:
New loans raised EER 101,750 - 101,750
Proceeds from obligations under  EREREREMEHE
finance leases - 1,427 1,427
Repayment of loans EREX (71,332) - (71,332)
Repayment of obligations under ~ [EEFEHEAE
finance leases - (788) (788)
Other changes: Hitn 8
Interest payable IS 4,099 62 4,161
Interest paid BAFIE (4,098) (62) (4,160)
Exchange rate adjustments fE R (189) - (189)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+_A=+—H 129,234 1,640 130,874
Adjustment upon application [ERB AN B MEERF 165
of HKFRS 16 P2 S8 - 9,258 9,258
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T—NFt+-A=+—HILFE

45. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 45 MEFREBEENEBE YR
ARISING FROM FINANCING (&)
ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Lease

liabilities/

Bank and Obligations
other under finance

borrowings leases
RITR HERE
HipfER MEHERE M
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET
Notes 33
Note 32 and 34
32 MEF33%34
At 1 January 2019 (restated) R-ZZE—N&E—F—H
(&g=5751) 129,234 10,898 140,132
Changes from financing cash ~ BEREHEH :
flows:
New loans raised HEER 68,713 - 68,713
Repayment of loans BEEN (53,677) = (53,677)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHERE - (12,380) (12,380)
Other changes: Hitr2g
Interest payable FERH S 5,067 692 5,759
Interest paid BAFFIE (4,592) = (4,592)
New leases entered/lease modified ##HHE /&E-IHE - 24,147 24,147
Exchange rate adjustments fE R 89 (ZE)) (159)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NF+-A=+—H 144,834 23,109 167,943
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

46. OPERATING LEASES 46. KEHE
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FATT
Minimum lease payments paid under FRARBLEEMEE N xEHS ¢

operating leases during the year:

Premises S 8,431
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had R BRI AE SR - NS B 3L 1) iH
commitments for future minimum lease payments KEMEIE N ARRKEES 2 FIFE - 5
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as BT -
follows:

2018
= N\F
HK$’000
FATT
Operating lease commitments in respect of BRI BT 2 K ETHEASE -

land and buildings which fall due as follows: FERATE -

Within one year —FR 6,877

More than one year but not exceeding five tRiE—EENHBBRR G

years 5,081
11,958
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

47.

48.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 47. BAREILE
2018
—ZT—)\F
HK$’000
FAT
Capital commitments contracted for: 5] 42 EARNHALE :
Investment in financial assets REQATFEEBEMEEWEE
at fair value through other PR TS EE I8 E
comprehensive income 27,780
Intangible assets — license fee and  EFEE — FHE KA
development cost 77,629
Property, plant and equipment Yz - = Rk 114,233
219,642

Authorised and not contracted for: EREERTL :
Intangible assets — license fee and

development cost

BV EE—-BNERFAEKA

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged bank
deposits security given to bank for facilities granted
to the group entities and CVie Taiwan, amounting to
HK$1,345,000 and HK$39,000,000 respectively.

At 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged bank
deposits of HK$38,770,000 to secure banking facilities
granted to CVie Taiwan and HK$7,754,000 to secure
bank deposits to Windtree.

In addition, the Group’s motor vehicles classified
right-of-use assets amounting to HK$468,000
(31 December 2018: obligations under finance leases

under

amounts to approximately HK$3,090,000) are secured
by the lessor’s title.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

48. BEEEA

R_ZE—NF+_A=+—08  X&H
ERETEEERERTESENRER
RITEARITER © 9 51/1,345,000
7570 5%39,000,000/8 7T °

R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—0 K&£H
2 Bl 4R 17 17 50 38,770,0007% 7T &
7,754,000 7T - EAETHERE
Windtree#JiR1TRLE AIHE(R ©

o AEBEREBERAEEESED
E 468,000 T (ZFE—NF+=
A=+—HB BMEBREZEENA
3,090,000/ 7T ) LA AR A 2 FT B RE(ER
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

49. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Financial guarantee to associates

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had contingent
liabilities amounting to HK$48,000,000 (2018:
HK$8,000,000) in respect of financial guarantees given
to bank for the banking facilities granted to associate.
Total HK$12,134,000 (2018: HK$8,000,000) has been
remained unutilised by the associate.

Financial guarantee to CVie Taiwan

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had contingent
liabilities amounting NTD180,000,000 which equivalent
to approximately HK$46,800,000 (31 December 2018:
NTD180,000,000 which equivalent to approximately
HK$46,080,000) in respect of financial guarantees given
to bank for the banking facilities granted to CVie Taiwan.
NTD138,000,000 which equivalent to approximately
HK$35,880,000 (31 December 2018: NTD138,000,000
which equivalent to approximately HK$35,328,000)
has been utilised by CVie Taiwan and NTD42,000,000
which equivalent to approximately HK$10,920,000 (31
December 2018: NTD42,000,000 which equivalent to
approximately HK$10,752,000) has been remained
unutilised.

The directors of the Company has considered the
probability of default is remote. Accordingly, no provision
has been made in the consolidated financial statements
for these guarantees.

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

49. AREE

BB E 2 AR R A B HE IR

RZT—hhFE+ZA=+—8 K&
[ /& 48,000,000 7t (=& — )\ F :
8,000,000 % JT ) sk A B FEE & A
AIERRITHEELTBERER -
2 %12,134,000 8L (=ZF — \F :
8,000,000/ 7T) Ty R Hk = A alE) A ©

[E A G B IR R R R

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—0 ' ~5H
A ¥ 4 # 180,000,000 7T & A B & -
HHE 1 #146,800,000/8 7T (— T — )\ F
+=ZHA=+—H : $151%180,000,000
JT  #8 & % 4 46,080,000 7 T )
HPLEaBERBITRERRITHE
EHMBERER  FEREE A
¥ & # 138,000,000 7T © HE R L
35,880,000 8 T(=ZF—\F+=A
=+—H : ¥ &% 138,000,000 T
HHE N 435,328,000/ 7T ) © M & #
42,000,0007T * HE R #)10,920,000
BLT(ZE—-—N\F+ZA=+—8H :
¥ & # 42,000,000 7T © B E R D
10,752,000 70 )R BN o

ARBEFEZFEIEZONAEHEER -

itk - WEBLZ FREARNER A M B HREK
AIEHL B
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iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

50. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 50. BEAEXRS
Balances and transactions between the Company and its RAREEM B AR (EAERA RS
subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, AT)EHNERRR ZRERE R E K
have been eliminated on consolidation and are not §H - WEFBENRANTE - AEBEEE 4
disclosed in this note. Details of transactions between A TR ZEFIBER N XHEE -

the Group and other related parties are disclosed below.

During the year, the Group entered into the following RAFERN  AEBE D HEEEEATET
transactions with related parties. In the opinion of the TS - EERA - TIRGERE
directors, the following transactions arose in the ordinary AEBE B EEBKBRERELSE -

course of the Group’s business:

(a) Compensation of key management (a) TEEZENSFHH
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members FRNEENRAMFEETEABNT
of key management during the year was as follows: B an T
2018
—EF-)\F
HK$’000
FATT
Short-term benefits %2 BiE A 27,356
Share-based payments VAR (7 32 5 B9 5038 2,470
Retirement benefits and other post- R{REH & H b BB 12 137
employment benefits 7,026
— Defined contribution plan — ERRHKETE 54
— Retirement benefits Nl 6,972
36,852
The remuneration of directors and key management EEREEEEENFBNTY B E
is determined by the remuneration committee ZE2ZREARERTSBEMm
having regard to the performance of individuals and EBiE °

market trends.

276 Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEERZEAL A R A 7]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

50. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 50. BEALRE ()
(CONTINUED)
(b) Transaction with associates (b) EHBE LG 2X 5
2018
—EF-N\F
HK$’000
FHETT
Interest income LB U A 1,339
Rental income il N =
Sales of goods SHEEm 2,606
Purchase of goods HKEEm 57
Service income RRFSULA 11,972
(c) Donation to Lee’s Pharmaceutical (c) HIEFABH —THEFS 5
— Kanya Lee Scholarship Limited BoERNG ([ ZHEEELE
(“Kanya Lee Scholarship™) B2 )IEHEE
During the year, total HK$3,244,000 (2018: RAFEEALRTHEFRESIE
HK$1,269,000) was donated to Kanya Lee Bi& 3,244,000 L (=ZF— N\
Scholarship. Dr. Li Xiaoyi, director of the Company, ¢ 1,269,000 7T) ° ANQAE
is also a member of key management of Kanya Lee EFNRBLINA/FTHFTRES
Scholarship and Kanya Lee Scholarship is considered ZEEERBEKE 2 —  MBELF
as a related party to the Group. FREBSWHR AR AEE CBHEA
R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT R A

.
B

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

50. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Acquisition of a subsidiary

In April 2019, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Dreamboat from Techno-Net at total
consideration of HK$2,400,000. Ms. Lee Siu Fong
and Ms. Leelalertsuphakun Wanee, directors of the
Company, are also the directors of Techno-Net and
Techno-Net is considered as a related party to the
Group.

(e) Shareholder loans from Perfect

Concept Holdings Limited (“PCH”)

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, the Group borrowed certain shareholder’s
loans from PCH, which bear interest rate of 4% per
annum and repayable within 1 year.

As disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements, interest expenses to loans from PCH
for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounts to
HK$545,000 (2018: HK$1,000).

Ms. Leelalertsuphakun Wanee, Ms. Lee Siu Fong
and Dr. Li Xiaoyi, directors of the Company, are the
also the substantial shareholders of PCH and PCH
is considered as a related party to the Group. PCH
is also the shareholder of China Oncology Focus
Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

50. BAEALXRZ (5)

Q) WEE—EHE A a

A—E—NFWA @ AEELAR

{&§2,400,000/% 7T [1] Techno-Net
Ui B Dreamboat 2 2% #E © A
AEEF NFREIRFTERLZ L
I8 ATechno-NetZ £ © Techno-
Net# R RAEE 2 FEAL -

(e) KEXAIFEERL A

([PCH) B9 REF

BE-_T-NAFRZFT-N\FF=
A=+—BLFE  AKERPCH
EHE TIRRER - ZFERIZF
FlZRa%st e AR —FREE

—

o

FANER S B TSR I s L LA #E 55 -
HE-_ZT-—NF+-A=+—HI
FERBPCHERMAEHRAEZ A
545,000 7L(=Z—/\% : 1,000
BIT) °

RNAREBFTERLL  TNFL
TREFNBETIAPCHZ EER
B PCHERAAREBE ZBEA
T o PCHI AR REIFEZEHBA
AR EEEEEARARIMARE



51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
sRa B RS R R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—Z-NF+-A=+—HIFE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

1.

General information of subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31 December 2019 are set out as follows:

Place of Paid up
incorporation/ issued/
Name of registration/  Class of registered
subsidiary operations share held capital
AL/ fi&® HRERYT/
HWEARER BR/LEns  RAER EMER
Lee’s Pharmaceutical British Virgin Ordinary US$1
International Limited Islands
Lee's Pharmaceutical ~ EBEXEHS LaEk 1%
International Limited
Zhaoke Pharmaceutical Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000
(HK) Limited
KMER(FB)ERAR FA LRk 1,000,000/7C
Lee’s Pharmaceutical Hong Kong Ordinary HK$18,400,000
(HK) Limited
FRAZH(FH) Y Lk 18,400,000/57C
ARAR
Zhaoke Pharmaceutical PRC Paid-up capital US$2,000,000
(Hefei) Co. Limited*
(Note 1)
KMEX(GIR)ER i BRRA 2,000,000%7T
al(fitE)
China Oncology Focus  British Virgin Ordinary US$173,000
Limited Islands
TEBEREERAR  REEXHES LR 173,000%7T

51. XRBEEMBLEFE

1. HBRaz—KEH

ARRNEEMRBRRR =

TN

FH+-_A=+—BOFEBHII®M

I

Principal
activities

TERH

Proportion ownership
interest held by the Company
KAREA A RRERL A
Directly Indirectly
B 5t
2018
—2-N\§
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
65%
65%

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding
and trading of
pharmaceutical
products

Manufacture and sale
of pharmaceutical
products

BERHERR

Development of
oncology products

REERZER
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iR e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 51. ARREXEME A RS (&)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
1. General information of subsidiaries 1. WEBREz—KRER (E)
(Continued)
Place of Paid up
incorporation/ issued/
Name of registration/  Class of registered Proportion ownership Principal
subsidiary operations share held capital interest held by the Company activities
AL/ FfisE BRERfT/
WRARER B/ Lens  RAER EMER RORFEAERARRERLA TEER
Directly Indirectly
HE GE3
2018
—T-N\F
Zhaoke Pharmaceutical PRC Paid-up capital US$16,000,000 100% Trading of
(Guangzhou) Limited* pharmaceutical
(Note 1) products
KMER (RN BR i BRBRA 16,000,000% T 100% EEZm
(i3]
China Cardiovascular  British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100% Investment holding
Focus Limited Islands
PEONERRERAR EERIEHS TRk eI 100% REEHR
Guangzhou Zhaoke Lian PRC Paid-up capital US$1,000,000 100% Trading of
Fa Pharmaceutical pharmaceutical
Limited* (Note 1) products
BMEREEEE i BRBRA 1,000,000% 7T 100% EEZm
ARAR (fzFL)
CVie Therapeutics Cayman Islands  Ordinary US$135,000 56.26% Development
Company Limited and trading of
pharmaceutical
products
PEEBENRR FEHS TRk 135,000%T SOl 56.26% HEREEER
BRAR
CVie Therapeutics (HK) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 56.26% Not yet commenced
Limited business
PEEREMRR(BE)E BA 3l 500,000 7T 56.26% =4 RE AT
[N

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited Z=F A Zfifi % B IR A 7



51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—Z-NF+-A=+—HIFE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

General information of subsidiaries

(CONTINUED)
1.
(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Name of registration/
subsidiary operations
ML/
WRARER B/ BEns

Class of
share held
fisE
BREER

Paid up
issued/
registered
capital
HRERfT/
EfER

Guangzhou Zhao Kang
Hospital Co. Ltd*
(Note 1)

EMERERARAR
(PizE1)

Zhao Kang Medical
Investment Limited

kERERARRAT

Zhaoke (Guangzhou)
Ophthalmology
Pharmaceutical
Limited* (Note 1)

KRR Rt
ARAR (fzFL)

Zhaoke (Guangzhou)
Oncology
Pharmaceutical
Limited* (Note 1)

KRHEM)EREy
ARAR(fzFL)

Zhao Kang Medical HK
Limited
KEBBEEAARAR

PRC

e

Cayman Islands

HEES

PRC

PRC

e

Hong Kong

BB

Paid-up capital

BB

Ordinary

TER

Paid-up capital

BB

Paid-up capital

BB

Ordinary

TER

US$19,000,000

19,000,000% T

US$1,000

1,000% 7T

US$16,000,000
(2018:
US$5,307,000)

16,000,000%C
(ZB-N&:
5,307,000%7L)

US$4,000,000
(2018:
US$600,000)
4,000,000% 70
(ZB-NE:
600,000%7T)
HK$10,000

10,0007

51. A AR EERME L AFE(E)

1. WEBRAEZ—KREH(E)

Proportion ownership
interest held by the Company

RORFEERARRERLA
Directly Indirectly
B GE3
2018
“T-)\E

Principal
activities

TEER

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

65%

65%

100%

100%

Hospital and medical
care

ER LB

Investment holding

RERR

Development and
manufacturing of
ophthalmology
products

% REEERNER

Development of
oncology products

HEERER

Not yet commenced
business

CEEEST
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51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Limited

(CONTINUED)
1. General information of subsidiaries
(Continued)
Place of Paid up
incorporation/ issued/
Name of registration/  Class of registered
subsidiary operations share held capital
AL/ FfisE BRERfT/
WRARER B/ Lens  RAER EMER
China Ophthalmology ~ British Virgin Ordinary US$40
Focus Limited Islands (2018: US$1)
Series A US$33.43
Preferred (2018: Nil)
China Ophthaimology ~ REREZES TRk 40ET
Focus Limited (ZZ-N\F:1%7)
AZFIEER 33.43ETT
(Z2-N\%:E)
Zhaoke (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
Ophthalmology
Pharmaceutical
Limited
M (BE) RHED &h TRk 10,0007
BRAR
Zhaoke (Hong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
Kong) Oncology
Pharmaceutical
Limited
KM (B EBEN i TRk 10,0007
BRAR
LPH Investments Limited Cayman Islands ~ Ordinary US$100
LPH Investments Limited H2#S LER 100%T
LPH I Investments Cayman Islands  Ordinary US$100
Limited
LPH II Investments FHEEE LA 100%7

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited Z=F A Zfifi % B IR A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Uy eI

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-_A=1+—HLLEE

51. A AR EERME L RS (E)

1. WEBRAEZ—KREH(E)

Proportion ownership
interest held by the Company

RORFEAERARRERLA
Directly Indirectly
B GE3
2019 2018
=i —F\F

Principal
activities

TEER

50.12% 100%

50.12% 100%

50.12% 100%

50.12% 100%

65%

65%

74% -

74% -

100% =

100% =

Investment holding

Development of
ophthalmology
products

FERNER

Development of
oncology products

HEERER

Investment holding

Investment holding



51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NE+-_A=+—HLEFE

51. A AR EERME L AFE(E)

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)
1. General information of subsidiaries 1. HBRalz—MREX (&)
(Continued)
Place of Paid up
incorporation/ issued/
Name of registration/  Class of registered Proportion ownership Principal
subsidiary operations share held capital interest held by the Company activities
AL/ fisE HRERfT/
WRARER B/ Lens  RAER EfER RORFEERARRERLA TEER
Directly Indirectly
B GE3
2018
“T-)\E
Zhaoke Lian Fa PRC Paid-up capital RMB500,000 100% Not yet commenced
(Guangzhou) business
Biotechnology
Limited*
KRER(EN) EMRE  HE BRBRA AR 500,000 100% HEAFRREREL
BRAR
Zhaoke Lian Fa PRC Paid-up capital RMB500,000 100% Not yet commenced
(Guangzhou) Logistic business
Limited*
KRB (M) ik BRBRA AR 500,000 100% EAFRREREL
BRAR
Zhaoke Lian Fa PRC Paid-up capital RMB500,000 100% Not yet commenced
(Guangzhou) business
Business Services
Limited*
KRB (RN BRRE S BRBRA AR 500,000 100% EAFRREREL
BRAR
Lee's Pharmaceutical Taiwan Ordinary NTD1,000,000 100% Trading of
Taiwan Limited* phamaceutical
(Note 1) products
AETREXERAR  AE LR #16%1,000,0007 100% EEZR
Gia
Lee's Pharm Genomics ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Not yet commenced
Lab Limited business
FRAEHERERZER B LER 1%7 100% EAFRREREL

R

Annual Report 2019

283



284

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRa RS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 51. A RRETEMBARAFEE)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
1. General information of subsidiaries 1. BBREIZ—MREF (&)
(Continued)
Place of Paid up
incorporation/ issued/
Name of registration/  Class of registered Proportion ownership Principal
subsidiary operations share held capital interest held by the Company activities
AL/ i BRERfT/
WRARER B/ Lens  RAER EMER RAREEERERL A TEXRK
Directly Indirectly
HE GE3
2018 2018
—2)\F —F)\F
Dreamboat Ventures British Virgin Ordinary US$1 - - Investment holding
Limited Islands
Dreamboat Ventures ~ HERZES LAk 1%71 - - REER
Limited
Lee's Keno Pharmaceutical Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - — Not yet commenced
Limited business (Note 2)
FRAHEE &h LER 18T - - HARERZB(HE2)
ARAR
Inner Mongolia Zhaoke  PRC Paid-up capital RMB5,000,000 - - Not yet commenced
Livestock Development business (Note 2)
Limited*
ey SSEL G e ARBRA AR5,000,0007C - - HARRER (Mi2)
BRAR
%= For identification purpose only = E{EHBRIAE
Notes: BfsE
1. These are wholly foreign owned enterprises. 1. WAINEZEHRBHEBAR -
2. Incorporated in current year. 2. RAFEFMAL -

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

2.

Details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests

The table below show details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-
controlling interests at the end of the current year:

Proportion of ownership

Place of interests and
Name of incorporation/  voting rights held by
subsidiary operations non-controlling interests
EmRL/ FERBEEFEFEL
WEARER e FERER R REEL
China Oncology Focus  British Virgin
Limited (“COFL") Islands
(Note) 35.00% 35.00%
TEEEERERLR  EERSES
(TCOFLJ)(FH3E)
China Ophthalmology  British Virgin
Focus Limited Islands
(“COPFL") (Note) 49.88%
China Ophthalmology ~£BRLEHE
Focus Limited
(TCOFLJ)(Hiz)

Note: Include its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Summarised financial information in respect
of Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-
controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE=F-NF+-A=t-BLFE

51. A AR EERME L AFE(E)

Loss allocated to
non-controlling

BEEAHZREZZHE
BB A AZFE

W FER AR B A E 50
BEAS RS2 2 AN B
A2 ¢

Accumulated
non-controlling

interests interests

PETFHERER2ER REtFERER
2019 2018 2019 2018
Lyl T )\& Wt Ik T )\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 [E[E0l0lo] HK$'000
TEx AT TEx AT
(46,474) (28,493) I EIRELS)) 29,715
(10,954) 206,131 N/A
NEA

M - BEEE2ENBAR -

ERBEEEANFERER I AKHE
MEBRARZHBENRZEHT
T A THBERME RN EENR
AR HE < S8
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_ZT-NF+_A=1+—HILFE

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 51. ZXAREEMEB A AIFE(E)

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

2. Details of non-wholly owned 2. BEEXHEZERERZHE
subsidiaries that have material non- BB AR ZFIE(E)
controlling interests (Continued)

COFL and COPFL and
its subsidiaries its subsidiaries
COFL COPFL
REKBATE REKBATF

2019 2018 2019 2018
Bl —T\F ity —T\fF

HK$’000 HK$'000 |« =li&olelo) HK$'000

BT FAT FHx FTEL

Current assets MENEE 40,452 7,999 294,503 N/A
TNEH

Non-current assets FEREEE 72,117 141,422 233,762
Current liabilities mEaE 156,632 62,617 21,490
Non-current liabilities EREEE

(29,379) 56,423 207,530

Equity attributable to the AR REA NS

owners of the Company e
Non-controlling interests FEIE R i 2R (15,820) 30,381 el R:L:p
COFL and COPFL and
its subsidiaries its subsidiaries
COFL COPFL
REMBEAR REMBAR
Year ended Year ended
HEFE HEEFE
2019 2019
—EB-NF —E-NE
Revenue Wz 4 595 10,023
Expenses 53 (132,786) (82,003) (41,462)
Loss for the year AEEEE (132,782) (81,408) | (eil “kele))
Loss attributable to the AR RMER NS (86,308) (15,756)
owners of the Company B8
Loss attributable to the FEiz iR R e (L T (46,474) (15,683)
non-controlling interests
Loss for the year AFE/BE (132,782) (81,408) | (el acle))
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ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE=

E-NF+ZA=+—HILFE

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 51. ZXAREEMEB A RIFHE(E)

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

2. Details of non-wholly owned 2. BEEAHEZRERZHE
subsidiaries that have material non- BB A az+# g (&)
controlling interests (Continued)

COFL and COPFL and
its subsidiaries its subsidiaries
COFL COPFL
REMBEAT REKBATF
Year ended Year ended
BEEE BEEE

2019 2018
Vit T \F
HK$'000 TG

TRT TAT

Other comprehensive income AR EIEES AN 506 296
(expense) attributable to Hip2EU
the owners of the Company (%)

Other comprehensive income JEERY LS E(E H A 159
(expense) attributable to PHEMEFX)
non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income A& H & E WS 778 455
(expense) for the year (%)

Total comprehensive expense ZAAAIHA AJE(S (85,802) (52,619)
attributable to the owners of 2 FERFI X &5
the Company

Total comprehensive R EREGRE (46,202) (28,334)
expense attributable to Fi s B8

non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive expense ZNF[E &[S A%
for the year

Dividend paid to non- BT ER 2 —
controlling interests 2

Net cash outflow from REEERES R (52,571) (20,700)
operating activities HER

Net cash outflow from RESBHH ML (235077 I ¢ K0K°17))
investing activities FE

Net cash inflow from BETBHSRA 77,730 157,294
financing activities HER

Net cash inflow RemAFE

2,082 5,637

2019 2018
=L BSRN —T\&
HK$'000 [TTENY
FExT FHAIL
(1,408)

(1,402)

(2,810)

(17.164) N/A
NEHA
(17,085) N/A
TNEHA

(34,249)

(77,487)

(55,723)

393,031

259,821
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

RYELAEEREZEE

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 51. AR REEMB L RFE (&)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
3. Change in ownership interests in S
subsidiaries

Deemed disposal of interests in subsidiaries

In March 2019, COPFL, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, issued 32,000 and 367,999
ordinary shares to an independent third party
and Lee’s Pharmaceutical International Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, for total
consideration of approximately US$20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$156,000,000) of
which US$1,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,406,000) was contributed by minority
shareholder, and the Group’s shareholding in COPFL
was diluted from 100% to 92%.

In June 2019, COPFL further issued 334,280 series
A preferred shares to independent third parties for
a total consideration of US$50,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$390,000,000), net of legal
expense approximate to HK$4,813,000. The Group’s
shareholding in COPFL was further diluted from 92%
to 50.117%. Details of which were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 23 May 2019.

As the Group retained control over COPFL after
the above transactions, the Group recognised, in
aggregate, a gain on deemed disposal of interests
in COPFL of approximately HK$92,545,000 under
“other reserves” within equity, and an increase
in non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$218,412,000 during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

A E A R 2

R=ZF—AE=A '  AAFHK
2 & Bt BB A 7] COPFL 7] ¥8 3L 5
= 7 X Lee’s Pharmaceutical
International Limited ( & 2
AMN—HE2EWBRA) ZHT
32,000/% X 367,999 % I 5@ % -
# R (B % /520,000,000% 7T (1
& K #) 156,000,000 /& 7T ) -
H #1,600,000 3 7T (18 & 7 4
12,406,000 7T ) B 2> 8RA% R i
& kA% E 7 COPFL Y AR # M
100%#5%2929% ©

—Z—NF/NA ' COPFLE—#
M5 = 75 347334,280A %
HIE S - 8K E &50,000,000
% 7t (48 & 7 #7390,000,000 /&
JT) - BRIEE R 2 474,813,000
I o ANE @ COPFLA R HE#E —
1 92%#FE50.117% ° S8
HEHNARBAHA-T—NF
FA-+=B22AMH -

HRASEE LR BERBY
COPFLEYIZEHITE - AREBEREZE
—E-AFE+-_A=t+—BItHF
ERERANIEmEE] THERR
7 E COPFLIEZ 2 Wam & =4
92,545,000 7T & JE R AR fE 2w 2
#h149218,412,00075 7T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—Z-NF+-A=+—HIFE

52. AQ A MR KK A

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&T T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AN NI 691,042 636,010
Investment in an associate R—REBE QR ZEE 10,000 10,000
Financial assets at fair value BN EEBEERTIRN
through profit or loss WIEEE 8,355 5,095
Financial assets at fair value BN FESEBEMEE R
through other comprehensive PIRREVET TS & B
income 125,801
776,906
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and E b EUGRIA -~ tRe KA
prepayments FRIE 2,688 2,772
Pledged bank deposits EERITER 39,000 46,524
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHEH 4,335 27,300
46,023 76,596
Current liability REAE
Other payables HAth e 5RIE 480 17,830
Net current assets REEEFE 45,543 58,766
Total assets less current liability ZEEZERRBARS 897,242 835,672
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital [N 29,396 29,601
Reserves ] 778,616 743,089
Total equity e 808,012 772,690
Non-current liability FEREBEE
Retirement benefits RONEF 89,230 62,982
897,242 835,672

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 26 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf

by:

Lee Siu Fong
ZNE
DIRECTOR
EZE

AARTERARER T -_TF=A
“t+AREEEETSRERBEEAM I
A TFEERERERS

Leelalertsuphakun Wanee

TR
DIRECTOR

EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE_ZT-NFT-_A=1+—HILFE

52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 52. KA RBBRAEREE(E)
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)
Movement in the Company’s reserves AL ER R EE B
Share-based Investments
Share Merger compensation revaluation Retained
premium  difference reserve reserve profits Total
URG %A
BRipEE BHEE  zMeRifE REEHRE REEN At
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR THRL TAR TAR ThR THRT
At 1 January 2019 WZZ-NE—-HA-R 731,771 9,200 18,661 (46,853) 30,310 743,089
Employee share option EERRERT
benefits - 5,461 5,461
Exercise of share options ~ {T{#EEiE 1,828 (447) 1,381
Repurchase and cancellation 5[ A E @
of ordinary shares (19,453) (19,453)
Profit for the year RERET - 100,616 100,616
Other comprehensive REEAMZERA
income for the year
— Fair value changes of —RATERREM
financial assets at fair 2ENERF RS
value through other EEZDTEED
comprehensive income 7,938
Total comprehensive TEEZARA
income for the year 38 100,616 108,554
2018 final dividend paid ENZE-NERERE (49,754)  (49,754)
2019 interim dividend paid B =E-NFRERE (10,662)  (10,662)
At 31 December 2019 RIZB-nE
+-A=1-H 23,675 (38,915) 70,510 778,616

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K 255 i A BR A 7
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52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

52. 28 R B EEAR R 2R B A s (7))

(CONTINUED)
Movement in the Company’s reserves KL AR R E) ()
(Continued)
Share-hased  Investments
Share Merger  compensation  revaluation Retained
premium difference reserve reserve profits Total
AR
RivaE aftEE  MeRfe REEREE FREBEN| st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FAL TAL FAL FAL TAL
At 1 January 2018 R=E-\5-A—H 724,868 9,200 15,247 (28,164) 19,466 740,617
Employee share option EERRRERT
benefits - - 4,996 - - 4,996
Exercise of share options d ¢ 6,903 - (1,582) = - 5,321
Profit for the year AERER - - = = 72,412 72,412
Other comprehensive MEEEMEERR
expense for the year
— Fair value changes of —BATEEBAM
financial assets at fair S EYESIRE %
value through other BEZATEEE
comprehensive income - - - (18,689) - (18,689)
Total comprehensive rE2AEFER)
(expense) income N
for the year - - - (18,689) 72,412 53,723
2017 final dividend paid ENZF-LFRERE - - - - (41439)  (41,439)
2018 interim dividend paid ~ EN=F—/\FFHRE - - = - (20129)  (20,129)
At 31 December 2018 R-B—\F
TZRA=t-H 731,771 9,200 18,661 (46,853) 30,310 743,089
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARe SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NFT_A=1+—HILFE

53. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

In February 2020, Lee’s Pharmaceutical International
Limited (“LP1”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and PCH subscribed for 34,580 and 18,620
shares of COFL at the consideration of US$7,434,700
and US$4,003,300 respectively (“Subscriptions”). Upon
completion of the Subscriptions, the entire issued shares
of COFL held by LPI and PCH remain unchanged as to
65% and 35% respectively.

54. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s presentation.

Lee’s Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2= K ZEE#2e A A R A 7]

53.

54.

BEMBRER

MNZZE_FTF_F ' Lee’s Pharmaceutical
International Limited ([ LP1]) (A2
Al 2 EMB AR ) RPCHS B ARKE
7,434,700 7T }24,003,3003% 7T * R
#%534,5800% X218,6200 COFLAZ 17 ([ 52
BB ) - RREETTAE - LPIXKPCHEF B K
COFLEHE ZHITRM L AIERITE - o
R 565% [ 35% °

EeE#F

ATHERFOENIR  CHaAFERN
BT ©
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